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CORPORATE PROFILE
7Ny

The Company is an established property developer in the PRC focusing on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
for customers of all ages.

In pursuing the development strategy of “based in Nanjing, cultivate the
Yangtze River Delta and radiate the urban area”, the Company has successfully
expanded its real estate development business from Nanjing to other cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis. The Group persists in its core
development strategy of “leading quality, excellent services and innovative
future”, which is aimed at developing quality property products “with healthy,
comfortable, smart and convenient living environment for customers of all
ages”. As one of the top 100 real estate developers in China, the Company has
been recognised by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association as one of the top 50
enterprises in the real estate development industry of Jiangsu Province in
terms of comprehensive strength consecutively for 18 years since 2002 and
ranked first on such list in 2019.

The Group adopts standardised development procedures to accelerate the
turnover rate of properties and promote efficient operations while ensuring
product quality. For customers of different ages, the Group specifically
designed five series of high-quality residential properties, being “Yi series”,
“Shang series”, “Zhi series”, “Zhong series” and “He series” to meet various needs
of the elderly, the younger generation, middle-income households, home
upgraders and upper-middle income households. In the meantime, the Group
introduces more flexibility to its business development by expanding into the
health and wellness industry and commercial real estate under a diversified
development strategy.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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AWARDS
BETH

PROMISING COMPREHENSIVE STRENGTHSAND 4#AEHRZEEMNS@ET  E
DEVELOPMENT PROSPECTS RECOGNISED BY ik =

THE MARKET
Comprehensive strengths gradually improving TEREEHEZELSEFH
- \-
x W
TOP100D
2020 E EmEEER TOPIS
R ER PR AR A S
o, GD
~Y fo
China’s Top 100 Real Estate China’s Top 100 Listed Real Estate
Companies in 2020 Companies in 2020
2020 Bl EHIEE B o4 1 2020 B FTEMEREE
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Top 100 Real Estate Products First in the Top 50 Enterprises with Specialised Chinese Real Estate Enterprise
in China in 2020 Comprehensive Strength in Jiangsu Real with Excellence in Operation in 2020
2000 FBIEMBRAER AR Estate Development Industry for the year 2019 200 B EEELERSLE
2019 FET#ERIEREITE
BEENCERATHREY
Constant accreditation by the market TEEETSESTE

Leju China's Most Innovative Leju Top 10 Brand Value of China’s
Real Estate Enterprise in 2020 Luxury Home Products in 2020
SAJE HAETTRE 2020 F R ) 285 B AR BT 92 B 2020 4R R Y
RERFNER EEATEMRMEEEI0R
Best IR Team in 2020 Gelonghui Best Real Estate Company in the 5th Zhitong
Greater China Area Award Finance Golden Hong Kong Stocks Award
X2 2020 FE AP E R FE R IE REMK FRESBUESERREMENR

Vice President Unit of the 9th Council of
Nanjing Real Estate Industry Association
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Well-recognised project quality HEmMERS
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Yuan Stream Mansion

« ICONIC AWARDS: Innovative Architecture 2020 in Germany
2020 41 B ICONIC AWARDS Bl ¥ 285 51 58

- Architecture Master Prize 2019
2019 5 [Z AMP SE BUZ SE KRl 82

- Silver Award for Residential Architecture of Pro+ Award 2020
2020 % 77 SR (E R SRR 47

- Silver Award for Architectural Curtain Wall of Pro+ Award 2020
2020 5 % 7 SHZ B IR 4%

« China Excellence Award for the 6th China Real Estate & Design
Award for 2019-2020
2019-2020 5 75 & M E SR 5T A 2 BB F 5

« 2020 Nanjing Excellent Engineering Survey and Design Award, First Prize of
Excellent Architectural Engineering Design

2005 ERERMES TIRDERTZEFRETRRG; —F8

« 2020 Provincial Urban and Rural Construction System Excellent Survey and
Design Award, Second Prize of Architectural Engineering Design

200 FEEFBEREZRES DRI ZRTIZRF 58

Peaceful Paradise International

Healthcare Community ;
EERSERERLE BT ;
KINMA Q+Community
KINMA Q+ # &
. ssmn s - Gold Prize of Golden Cicada International Creative Landscape Design

ST EREIRENR 2 RE%
« The Second Suzhou Xiangshan Cup Quality Engineering Award
BMTE —HEFILRES T2
« 2020 Provincial Urban and Rural Construction Engineering Excellent Survey
and Design Award, Third Prize of Residential District Design
2000 FEEMAZRTIREFHRRGTRET N\ BERA =5

RINEEFR

gt

mn
ST R el
it e - Eh -

Peaceful Paradise International
Healthcare Community Chengyuan
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MILESTONES
HLRE

February 2 A

Acquired 40% interest of the Lujing Hangzhou project for a land parcel
situated at Lot 5, Xiangyang, Chongxian New Town, Yuhang District.
YRR M IR B (RSB IR MG 55k %) 400% #55 o

March3 A

The Huiling Weilai project had a great success at its first launch with
90% apartments sold.

BERARRIAB ERARE - BRYIFENK

Huiling Weilai project
EEARKIER

April4 A

Held a press conference for the release of the annual results of 2019.

BR2019FFEEEEME -

Acquired Wenzhou Longwan Land Parcel (Lot B-32 of Yongzhong Unit
in Yonggiang Northern Area of Wenzhou City), which marked the
Group's first appearance in Wenzhou.

BUES R Bl B OR - MSR M EEE IR ORM okt Ak &8
TTB-32448) - BIREHEIRM -

Grand opening of Yincheng INC Center
SR INCH OB AR S o

The release of the annual results of 2019

019 FFEEERMS

Yincheng INC Center
SRIINC R 0

REERERARAT
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MILESTONES
HEY

May 5 A

Expanded business presence in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis by
acquiring a land parcel of Qiaosi Business City in Yuhang District,
Hangzhou, and acquiring a land parcel with Lot No. GX202003 in the
Gaoxin District of Hefei by tendering.

S R=AHEeAFAEE - FEBENINTRNES 7 EEHH
ﬁ&ﬁ%é%ﬁ%%@wmwmmﬁ

Constantly launched high-quality projects which attracted interests
from industry professionals and major mainstream media.
SmBEBRERE WO EAZTEALT  SRETMEER
IS o

Bz 2R

Convened the 2020 annual general meeting.

AR200FREAFKRE -

il mm

Opening of the Qingyunfu project Demonstration Area

BEMNIEE RHE R

Opening of the Shangtang Yihefu Demonstration Area
SR BRI 7 86 1 B AL

2020 annual general meeting

2020 FREAFKEG
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MILESTONES
P

June 6 B

Entered into a cooperation agreement with Sunriver Holding for the
joint investment and development of a land parcel in Guli, Changshu.

AEBEFRIZERBEZAIERE - KRB EREREALELI -

Successfully issued USD140 million senior notes which attracted over-
subscription of 200%, proving wide recognition from the market.
RNBETIABLREETLE  TESKSBEEMERE  ROR
BB RR o

The Qingyunfu project and the Shangtang Yihefu project had great
successes at their first launches with impressive sales.

FEMEAN L RENFER BR AR

The first launch of Qingyunfu project
FENEAER

Shangtang Yihefu project
FRBAMATIEE

July7 B

Acquired the land parcel of Chuncheng Elementary School, and
commenced the joint development of land parcel for IC apartments.

ERER 2R A EREICAEMIR -

Began delivery of the Honor Mansion project.
EARFHEBEERN -

Honor Mansion project
TARXREIER

SR BIFE R B R A A 07
—ETFER



MILESTONES
P

August 8 B
5 BEERERERAS
R 1902.HK
Held online press conference for the release of the interim results of 2020 18 5 i 52 i @
i Ul nnouncement ET
2020, which attracted the participation of over 200 fund managers and % (=]
analysts.

BIT2020F P HIEE R FBME - RS THB200VESEER
DHTEILE -

Acquired interest in the Yihe Project through merger and acquisition.

BB GBS JEENEE A TE B RS o The release of the 2020 interim results
2020 F R ERE BT S

The Lanshili project had a great success at its first launch.

MAERIER BFRARE -

Lanshili project

M ERIEA

September 9 A

Signed a cooperation agreement with Dexin for the joint development
of the land parcel on West Dada Road in Xuzhou Economic
Development Zone.

HEERFAIFERR A FRBERMTERRAKE AR -

Acquired the land parcel with Lot No.2020G50 at Tiexingiao Street,
Yuhuatai District, Nanjing City by tendering.
BIGERMMRIEA RE/OEETEN0.2020G50 H11#

Acquired interest in the Yudong Road Project in Guli Town, Changshu
City by tendering.
BB HERRE AT G @ HEERIZIE R A o

Dongyue Mansion project
RERIER
Successfully delivered the Dongyue Mansion Project.

RERTIE B EMZA -
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MILESTONES
HLRE

October 10 B

2V RinER
4

R 1 E PR (01902.1K)

Successfully issued US$200 million senior notes, which fully reflected ? mmaﬁ

investors' recognition of the Company's comprehensive strength and
financial position. e 7FETT fﬁﬁ%*&
RNEIT2IREETEBERE  RORMKREAHRARGAE N
TSR SLEY FRAT

Issued US$200 million senior notes

BIT2EETEERE

Grand opening of the demonstration area and showroom of the Zhi Lu
project and the first sound museum in Hefei, alongside a product
launch event.

MEHE TSR  SKRENARESEEEESEYEEXFRK - I
BMTEREMSG -

A high-end customised perfume exhibition together with the opening
of demonstration area, and a wedding dress show together with
showroom opening was held for the Chun Xiao Guan Tang project.

EEEEIEERRSTEKNREREEEN - WRERSEYE The demonstration area and showroomffzhi Lu project
B EHRER 0D - AR TR B

Began delivery of the Huijian Weilai project.

BRARKIBABRN

Chun Xiao Guan Tang project was held with a high-endcustomised
perfume exhibition and the opening of demonstration area.

ARHRBE BN EE KRB RERHAMN

November 11 A

Successfully acquired the land parcel with Lot N0.2020G41 in Lishui,
Nanjing Airport Exhibition Town by tendering. Subsequently entered
into a cooperation agreement with Zhongnan and Greentown to jointly
develop the land parcel with Lot No.2020G83 in Huitong Road,
Jiangning District, Nanjing.

BIGEAREEGR/NENIRIK2020G41 Hi 3R - & B AR - 4%
#HEESEHGT - SERERRT LB RERENC2020G83H I ©

Town City project
OBERIA B
Began delivery of the Sheltered Mansion project and the Town City
project.

RITEE RORARE S0 -

REERERARAT
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MILESTONES
P

November 11 A

Recorded impressive sales of Mei Gui Gong Guan in Wuxi, and Lin Xi
Yuan Zhu, Zhi Lu and Guan Hu Zhi Chen in Changshu upon their first
launches.
BHBRAE  BAMEREIRE  MEBEBELBMCRERS
FNR o

Held the 2020 investor reverse road show.

B 2020 FREERARE

The 2020 investor reverse road show

2020 F IR EE R MR

December 12 A

Entered into a cooperation agreement with Wuxi Huayu Real Estate Co.,
Ltd.* in relation to the Hefeng Road project in Wuxi and acquired 50%
interest in such project.
BHEFEXARAAMEHNEKIERRITSERTE - LIS
FEEEIE B 50% HE s o

Completed the acquisition of 100% interest in the Shui Pan Hua Ting
project in Changshu.
TERCUMUIE H RUKREZE REIE B 89 100% #E 2 ©

The Jin Ling Jiu Yuan project and the Chun Xiao Guan Tang project
achieved great successes at their first launches at the end of the year.

SRAERR MEREXEENFRERHEERNBAEE -

Jin Ling Jiu Yuan project had its first launch with good
sales performance

BRAERR BFRAE

Chun Xiao Guan Tang project ZEEEIHIE B
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Non-executive Directors
HUANG Qingping (Chairman)

XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHEN Shimin (Chairman)
CHAN Peng Kuan
HUANG Qingping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CHAN Peng Kuan (Chairman)
CHEN Shimin
MA Baohua

COMPANY SECRETARY
WONG Yu Kit

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

MA Baohua
WONG Yu Kit

REGISTERED OFFICE

Sertus Chambers

Governors Square, Suite #5-204,

23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue

P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
o wlE R

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

19-21 Floors

Block A Yincheng Plaza
289 Jiangdongbeilu
Nanjing

People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4502, 45/F

Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

p.C.Woo & Co.

12/F, Prince’s Building
No. 10 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

1 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited
40/F, Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) — Hong Kong Branch

29/F, ICBC Tower
3 Garden Road
Central

Hong Kong

China Merchants Bank — Hong Kong Branch
31/F, Three Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China — Nanjing West Branch
289 Jiangdongbeilu

Gulou District

Nanjing

Bank of Jiangsu — Head Office, Sales Department
26 Zhonghualu

Qinhuai District

Nanjing

Agricultural Bank of China — Nanjing Jianye Branch
207 Jiangdongzhonglu

Jianye District

Nanjing

Bank of Communications — Jiangsu Branch
218 Lushan Road

Jianye District

Nanjing

China Construction Bank — Nanjing Xuanwu Branch
9 Hongwubeilu

Xuanwu District

Nanjing
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COMPANY’S WEBSITE NGIE N

www.yincheng.hk www.yincheng.hk

COMPANY’S INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 2 B & & B8 & 2B P

Tel: (852) 3107 0066 FaE 1 (852) 3107 0066
E-mail: ir@yincheng.hk BH : ir@yincheng.hk
STOCK CODE BRAD LR

1902.HK 1902.HK
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A 5 41k 22

Revenue in 2020 was approximately RMB10,679.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 17.5% as compared to
approximately RMB9,092.5 million in 2019.
2020 F N A ARKE 106796 BETT + B2019F ML ARKE 9,092.5 B B ITIE MK 17.5% °

Gross profit in 2020 was approximately RMB1,157.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 21.8% as compared to
approximately RMB1,479.3 million in 2019. Gross profit margin in 2020 was approximately 10.8%, indicating a decrease of
approximately 5.5 percentage points as compared to that in 2019.

220F EFHBARKLIS7TAAE T B019FHHNARKE 14793 B BT D 4921.8% ° 2020 F EMEX LY R
10.8% * 82019 A4 5.5 BB 9 B

Profit in 2020 was approximately RMB386.1 million, representing an increase of approximately 7.1% as compared to
approximately RMB360.4 million in 2019. Net profit margin in 2020 was approximately 3.6%, indicating a decrease of
approximately 0.4 percentage point as compared to that in 2019.

2020 MA /AR 3861 BETT * B2019F K AR 3604 B ETTIE K 7.1% © 2020 FF M E L) F3.6% * B
2019 DK 04 A 5 B -

Profit attributable to owners of the parent in 2020 was approximately RMB182.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 21.5% as compared to approximately RMB150.3 million in 2019.
2020 F P RRIHEA AR GENAR/RARK 1826 BETT * B2019FHHARKE 1503 BETTIEMNLI21.5% °

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company in 2020 was approximately RMBO0.13 per share.
220 FARAE MRS EARLEERENNASARKE0I3T -

Contracted sales amount in 2020 was approximately RMB23,208.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 17.1%
as compared to that in 2019; contracted sales GFA in 2020 was approximately 1,153,237 sq.m., representing an increase of
approximately 2.1% as compared to that in 2019.

2020 F B HHESBEHNABARKE 232083 B EIT © B2019FHMNLI17.1% 1 2020 F A KIS REMIELA1,153,237
IR - E2019F B ANKTI2.1% o

The Board recommended the payment of final dividend of HK$0.0306 per share for the year ended 31 December 2020.
ExegaNEZE 2020412 A31 BIEFENRBAREG00306 8T

L T I
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
KA H

Sales performance achieved record high, revenue growth remained stable

HERBBAHS KABRESRE

A W/
E’ o CONTRACT SALES AMOUNT S #SHESE

-’l RA"CEBg 23 ,208.3 / Ayear-on-year increase of
million BE& 7T ,a BEiER 17.1%
II  GROSS PROFIT £
RMB
\9 New 1,157.4
million B& 7T

SBF
&  PROFIT &R
=o RMB
b AR® 386.1 / Ayear-on-year increase of
million B& T ,ﬁ BHLER7.1%

- NET PROFIT MARGIN I =
=D 3.6%

-

== FINAL DIVIDEND R 2

@®  REVENUE i3

=U RMB

NU. g AE¥10167906 / Ayear-on-year increase of
million & &3t 20 mrer17.5%

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN EF|&

10.8%

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
) OF THE PARENT & 2 Bl A FE{L BRI
l%l

RMB
million B& T /,fa
EARNINGS PER SHARE &R Z F

B e 0as. 4

Ayear-on-year increase of
ELEER 21.5%

Ayear-on-year increase of

B R 18.2%

HK$
BT

0.0306 = /5
j

Remained 20% dividend ratio to Shareholders

#1520% KB REEERER

A year-on-year increase of

Rt & 31.9%

Record high value of land bank and active acquisition of high-quality land parcels

tiREERHS BRKBEELR

Total GFA of land bank
THh B EREmEE

GFA of land bank with interests
attributable to the Group

REBEGER D IbRERZERE

B o

Acquisition of 17 high-quality
land parcels

U B 1 718 2 & th 1

Q
fiie
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GFA of newly acquired land parcels

B LR ERR

16

5,990,000

sq.m. 3K

4,780,000

sq.m. FFK

Located in the core cities of the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis such as Nanjing, Southern Jiangsu,
Zhejiang, Huaihai and Anhui

wn BN « Bl L B RRMs
REABFHAIZOHET

2,160,000

sq.m. FHK



RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
T

Deep cultivation of the core cities of the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis with a
more balanced business presence

ABR=ARMET HREBEHEG

% Further development in the five regional markets
flmiﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂim 5

NanJlng | Southern Jiangsu (Wuxi, Suzhou, Zhenjiang) | Huaihai (Xuzhou)
Zhejiang (Hangzhou, Wenzhou, Taizhou) | Anhui (Hefei, Ma'anshan)

BW | B s w1 | EE ) | T Gam - mM - am)
ZH (AR B8L)
Eﬁ A total of 49 projects located in 10 cities in the PRC
3 s 10@mm - 491836

|> First foray into Wenzhou with contracted sales exceeding
RMB2,443.4 million
BREE B ANHESTEEERARN244348ET

Xuzhou &M
(3)

Nanjing B
(18)

JIANGSU
PROVINCE
LERE

Zhenjiang $HiL
(2)

Hefei & 8B
= ANHUI K\%
PROVINCE @ () W“’f;)ﬁﬁ

Suzhou &M
(5)

Ma’anshan HELL
(1)

ZHEJIANG
PROVINCE
pRiipA=) o

Taizhou &M
(1)

Hangzhou #i
(6)

Wenzhou &M
(2)

SR BIFE R B R A A 17
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present you with the annual results of
our Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, as well as the review and
outlook for the business development of our Group over the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2020 was an extraordinary year for the real estate industry. The development of
various industries and businesses in the country was hindered by the outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic at the beginning of the year, commodity properties
sales, in particular, were severely and adversely affected. As the COVID-19
pandemic was gradually brought under control, the real estate market began
to recover in the second quarter of the year. Following the promulgation of the
“three red lines” policy by regulatory bodies in the second half of the year
whereby further regulation and control measures against the real estate market
were imposed, real estate developers experienced limited growth in interest-
bearing debt financing. The guiding principle of “no speculation of residential
properties” was maintained throughout the year, which aims to encourage
stable and healthy development of the real estate market. Notwithstanding the
adoption of increasingly stringent control policies in the midst of faltering
market and economic conditions, real estate developers have demonstrated
great resilience by taking the initiative to deal with the pressure and

1 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020

HUANG Qingping
HEY
Chairman
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

challenges. According to the latest information released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, sales GFA of commodity properties in the PRC
amounted to approximately 1,761 million sq.m. in 2020, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 2.6%; meanwhile, sales of commodity
properties amounted to approximately RMB17.36 trillion, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 8.7%. The introduction of the “three red
lines” policy focuses on mitigating financial risks faced by the real estate
industry, which resulted in the imposition of positive limitations on market
expansion and caused increasingly fierce industry competition. How to
ensure long-term stable development notwithstanding the implementation
of deleverage exercises, reduced debt financing and stabilised sales has
become a question faced by every real estate developer.

2020 has also been a year of preparation for our Group. Our Group consistently
adhered to the development strategy of “based in Nanjing, cultivate the
Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis”, pursued the product philosophy which
places equal emphasis on both quality and service, and maintained robust
development for our business in general. With the full resumption of our
business operation at the end of February 2020, various construction projects
and sales activities of our Group have been carried out steadily. Over the past
year, all of our employees have gathered together to overcome numerous
challenges, and achieved breakthroughs as shown in various business
performance indicators. For the year ended 31 December 2020, our Group
recorded revenue of approximately RMB10,679.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 17.5% as compared to approximately RMB9,092.5
million for the same period last year; meanwhile, our Group's profit for the year
amounted to approximately RMB386.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 7.1% as compared to approximately RMB360.4 million in 2019.
Our Group's heightened turnover strategy has achieved further results,
exemplified in a steady growth in profitability, with moderate expansion of our
scale of operations and significant improvement in the quality of operations.
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Adjusted project launch schedule despite challenges
and achieved record high contracted sales

Under the influence of the COVID-19 pandemic, commencement of
construction, investments and sales of the real estate industry were susceptible
to certain constraints. Nevertheless, our Group responded proactively and in a
timely manner by adjusting our project launch schedule and promoting our
business through multiple channels, including the adoption of “cloud property
viewing”, “cloud sales” and “cloud delivery” through online live broadcasting
and small applications of the new media. Through such approaches, while
property owners could enjoy convenience on the one hand, our Group could
develop our online customer base and undergo digital transformation on the
other hand. Along with the improving pandemic conditions, our Group
gradually stepped up its project launch effort. During the second half of the
year, various project launches were well received and we had excellent overall
sales performance. Relying on our steady project launch strategy throughout
the year, as well as our accumulated positive brand image and high market
recognition over the years, our Group achieved a historic breakthrough in the
total amount of contracted sales for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2020, our Group's total contracted sales reached a record high of
approximately RMB23,208.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 17.1%. The total contracted sales GFA amounted to
approximately 1,153,237 sq. m. with a contracted ASP of approximately
RMB20,125 per sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
14.6%. As regards the breakdown of contracted sales of our Group by cities,
nearly 60% of such sales for the year were derived from two new first-tier cities,
namely Nanjing and Hangzhou, which are under our key market establishment
strategy. Our Group had excellent performance in generating contracted sales
of more than RMB2,443.4 million (representing approximately 10.5% of total
contracted sales) from and after its first entry in Wenzhou in 2020 . As regards
the breakdown by projects, Lanshili and Qingshanhupan in Hangzhou and
Bejoy Villa in Nanjing, were the top three projects of our Group which
contributed the highest amount of contracted sales. It is worth noting that
sales of approximately RMB11,212.1 million were generated in the fourth
quarter, being a record high for one single quarter, due to the collective
endeavour of all members of our Group. Among which, the initial launch of
Zhi Lu in Hefei and Jin Ling Jiu Yuan in Nanjing were well received by the
market as demonstrated by their respective overall sales rates of 80% and 92%.
Other projects which were subsequently delivered, namely Huijian Weilai in
Nanjing, Sheltered Mansion in Wuxi and Town City in Ma‘anshan, also reached
a delivery rate upon property purchasers’ visits of 100%, 99.5% and 96%,
respectively.
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Continue to maintain our regional market penetration
strategy with ample land reserve resources

In 2020, our Group was committed to our existing strategies of serving the
markets in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis. During the year, we extended
our business presence to Wenzhou to further develop the five regional markets
of Nanjing, Southern Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Huaihai and Anhui. Our Group had
acquired a total of 17 land parcels within the year through various means,
including tendering, mergers and acquisitions, and bidding at property
exchange centres, which contributed to an increase of approximately 2.16
million sq.m. and over RMB33,148 million in total GFA and sales, respectively.
As at 31 December 2020, the GFA of our Group's total land bank amounted to
approximately 5.99 million sg.m., of which, approximately 4.78 million sg.m.
was attributable to our Group, and the sales value of such completed
properties held for sale was approximately RMB55,484 million.

Our Group's land bank is mainly situated in core land parcels in the core cities
of the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, including Nanjing, Hangzhou and Wuxi.
Such geographical advantage has provided strong support for our future
development and continued growth in contracted sales.

Significant improvement in operating efficiency and
maintenance of quality services

Our Group has adopted standardised property development procedures in
order to speed up property turnover and promote efficient operations. In 2020,
both the average duration for the obtaining of the four certificates and the
average initial sales period were shortened by approximately one month to
approximately 3.8 months and 6.1 months, respectively, as compared with that
in 2019. Development efficiency has improved significantly and the pace of our
operation has been further accelerated. As our Group acknowledges that
product quality is the foundation of our success and the cornerstone of our
sound development, in addition to improving efficiency, our Group has always
focused on the development of quality residential properties, and quality,
livable and environmentally friendly property products for customers of all
ages. We constantly perfect our product design system and enhance customer
service. Our score for overall customer satisfaction in 2020 was 88, which was
close to industry benchmark. Our Group delivered more than 4,300 properties
throughout the year with a delivery satisfaction rate of 82%. In the meantime,
our Group's physical examination initiative including the performance of
annual inspections and maintenance for the extension of properties’ service
lives, was well received by property owners. During the year, our Group
completed physical examinations on properties in 22 communities, served
over 20,000 households, and obtained an overall satisfaction rate of 92%. Our
Group is committed to providing better products and services to our
customers, and growing together with the communities.
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Successful issuance of US$ senior notes and more
diversified financing channels

Since our listing in 2019, with the aim to become a leading real estate enterprise
in the region, our Group has been striving to enhance our capabilities in all
aspects. Relying on our stable business growth, excellent financial performance
and results of operations, we have gradually gained recognition and reputation
from the capital market. In 2020, our Group was rated by two major international
authoritative credit rating agencies, namely Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and
Lianhe Ratings Global Limited, as having a stable outlook with an issuer credit
rating of “B2" and “B+" respectively. During the year, our Group actively expanded
our external financing channels and enhanced our overseas financing
capabilities. We successfully issued US$140 million and US$200 million senior
notes, all of which were over-subscribed. With our solid corporate strength and
stable and substantial investment returns on US$ denominated senior notes, our
Group was awarded the “2020 Outstanding Chinese Offshore Bonds Issuer —
Real Estate Category*” prize from Golden Duration* and was listed by BNP Paribas
as one of the recommended investment targets for US$ denominated bonds in
the real estate sector. The shares of our Company were also given “buy*” ratings
by numerous brokerages, which were optimistic about our Group's future
growth in sales, performance and development potential.

Gradually improved industry rankings and receipt of
multiple honours on comprehensive strengths

In 2020, our Group has enhanced our comprehensive development and
operation capabilities in four aspects, namely, investment and financing,
business development, sales, and internal management, which contributed to
the growth in sales, and brought about recognition from all walks of life and
numerous awards. During the year, our Group was awarded “2020 Top 100
Listed Real Estate Enterprise in China*”, 2020 China Specialised Real Estate
Company*’, “The Best Small and Medium Sized Enterprise*”, and “The Best IR
Team of the Year*”, and ranked first on the list of the “Top 50 Enterprises with
Comprehensive Strength in Jiangsu Real Estate Development Industry*” for the
first time. In addition, with excellent design and quality engineering
capabilities, residential projects as developed by our Group have won 12 major
local and international awards, including a total of four design awards in
respect of architectural engineering design, urban housing and residential
community design in the selection of the “2020 Provincial Urban and Rural
Construction System Outstanding Survey and Design Award*” as announced
by Housing and Urban-Rural Development Office of Jiangsu Province* in early
January 2021. These awards will inspire our Group to make persistent efforts to
maintain our excellent product or service specification, standard and quality.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward, even though there may be uncertainties as regards policy
adoption and the macro environment, our Group will actively overcome
challenges, seize opportunities and strive to pursue better results. In terms of
policies, in November 2020, the central government once again highlighted in
its 14th Five-Year Plan the principle of “no speculation of residential properties
(B{ETK)", the maintenance of balance between leases and purchases, and
the implementation of policies according to the actual situation in different
cities, which set the basis for real estate development in the coming few years,
and the policy to “stabilise housing prices, land prices and market
expectations” shall remain as the key of real estate regulation. With the
introduction of the “three red lines” policy, the central government made great
efforts to reduce the financing leverage and debt level of real estate
enterprises, which means, in the next two to three years, development models
which depend on financing leverage for business expansion as adopted by real
estate enterprises will no longer be sustainable. Instead, sales proceeds and
operating cashflow would gradually return as the driving force for
development of real estate enterprises. As far as the market is concerned,
according to the National Bureau of Statistics, although the large market size of
the industry was remained in 2020 with sales area of 1.7 billion sq.m. and sales
amount of RMB17 trillion, there was clear market differentiation and more
intense market competition. The prevalence of market challenges, such as the
difficulty in land acquisition and declining overall profit margins of investment
projects, will be normalised. The realisation of profits for future developments
will require better investment judgement and development management
capabilities from enterprises. While our Group shall continue to adopt a
prudent management style and control our operation risks in our future
development, we shall also strike a balance between survival and development
in the regional market at the same time by leveraging our brand image and
competitive edge in our products and services.
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Our Group believes that only steady and healthy development will sustain in
the long run. In the future, and on the basis that our Company has sufficient
capital, our Group will continue to employ a combination of measures to
pursue reasonable expansion, improve operating quality, and achieve stable
growth in profitability. To these ends, our Group will continue to focus on the
Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, and based on the five major regional markets,
expand our business presence in new cities when opportunities arise. We will
persist in making targeted investments, exercise strict control over project
quality by reference to multiple indicators, including net profit margin and
operating cashflow, and maintain diversified channels for the acquisition of
land parcels, so as to promote sound development of our investment projects
and business operations. We will also persist in optimising the financial
indicators, maintain the current size of debt and debt ratio, lower the net debt
ratio and achieve stable development under the “three red lines” policy.
Further, we will improve our level of cashflow, promote sales, collect
receivables, enhance operation and management efficiency with lower costs,
improve cashflow turnover and maintain stable operations. We will also expand
our financing channels, minimise financing costs, and proactively look for both
local and international financing sources. Our Group will continue to
optimise and improve product offerings and services, put forward upgraded
product series, enhance engineering quality and maintain our benchmarked
customer satisfaction rate. At the same time, our Group will continue to
improve our operation and management efficiency, further practise our culture
of “"honesty, responsibility, cooperation and innovation”, endeavour and grow
together with all employees of our Group. Our Group will certainly live up to
expectations, strive to become a leading real estate enterprise and bring
continuous and stable returns to our Shareholders.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
HUANG Qingping
Chairman

Nanjing, China, 29 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the subsidiaries of the Company now comprising the Group
were involved in property development, hotel operations, property investment
and exhibition operation.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The Group is an established property developer in the PRC focusing on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
for customers of all ages. The Group commenced its property development
operations in Nanjing and successfully expanded its footprint to other cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group continued to focus on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
while expanding its footprint to other cities in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis, including Wenzhou. The Group believes that the unique
geographical advantages of the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis will remain
substantial in the future. Due to the prosperous economic development and
growing population in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, the residential
properties development market has significant growth potential. The Group
will continue to focus on the Nanjing market in the future and strategically
expand its reach in other cities in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, further
accelerating asset turnover and improving operational efficiency while
maintaining property quality, and strive to become the leading quality property
developer catered to customers of all ages in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis.

Contracted Sales

Despite the challenges brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
accelerated its contracted sales from the second quarter as the market began
to show signs of recovery. For the year ended 31 December 2020, contracted
sales amount of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates
amounted to approximately RMB23,208.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 17.1% from approximately RMB19,821.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
contracted sales GFA of the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates to approximately 1,153,237 sg.m. for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing an increase of approximately 2.1% from approximately

1,129,071 sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, ASP recorded in the contracted sales of
the Group together with its joint ventures and associates was approximately
RMB20,125 per sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 14.6% from
approximately RMB17,555 per sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the higher ASP recognised for projects
in Nanjing and Hangzhou.

Contracted sales from Nanjing, Wuxi, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Taizhou, Wenzhou,
Xuzhou, Hefei, Zhenjiang and Ma'anshan contributed to approximately 39.2%,
5.2%, 5.0%, 20.2%, 3.6%, 10.5%, 6.8%, 4.8%, 3.8% and 0.9% respectively of the
total contracted sales of the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates in 2020.

The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of the contracted sales
of the Group together with its joint venture and associates in 2020 with

comparative figures in 2019.
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For the year ended For the year ended
City 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Fonil HZ20205 12831 ALLEE HE019FNANALEE
Contracted  Contracted  Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
GFA sold sales ASP % of GFAsold sales ASP 9% of
BHEE &#  contracted AisE oY) contracted
BEHEE EHHE THER salesin BEWE BHEE THEE salesin
sq.m. RMB'000  RMB/sq.m. 2020 sg.m. RMB'000 RMB/sq.m. 2019
{62020 F 1520196
AR¥T,/ BHHE AR¥ET/ BHIHE
Ak  AR%®Tn EHK B ¥rk  AR®TR Rk BA
Nanjing BR 392,735 9,107,960 23,191 39.2% 584,090 11,433,340 19575 57.7%
Wuxi £ 83,889 1,205,710 14,373 5.2% 216,282 2,820,405 13,040 14.2%
Suzhou EN 47,167 1,169,630 24,798 5.0% 50,885 1386410 27,046 7.0%
Hangzhou M 196,838 4,678,240 23,767 20.2% 61376 1,591,420 25929 80%
Taizhou BN 44,729 830,680 18,571 3.6% 9827 191,110 19447 1.0%
Wenzhou B 105,063 2,443,378 23,256 10.5% - - - -
Xuzhou &I 132,287 1,574,580 11,903 6.8% 74,964 686,840 9,162 35%
Hefei Al 57,704 1,123,450 19,469 4.8% 52,746 750,440 14,207 37%
Zhenjiang b 59,890 873,340 14,582 3.8% 39,362 625,420 15,889 32%
Ma'anshan &1 32,935 201,360 6,114 0.9% 39539 336,000 8498 1.7%
Total @t 1,153,237 23,208,328 20,125 100.0% 1,129,071 19,821,385 17,555 100.0%
26 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GFA Delivered and Revenue Recognised from Sale of
Properties

For the year ended 31 December 2020, total GFA delivered amounted to
approximately 586,525 sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 33.3%
from approximately 439,866 sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Revenue recognised from sale of properties increased by approximately 17.7%
from approximately RMB8,996.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB10,589.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
accounting for approximately 99.2% of the Group's total revenue. Such
increase was primarily due to the total GFA delivered from Honor Mansion,
Bejoy Villa, Hui Mountain International Community and Yungutianjing Mansion
which generated revenue of approximately RMB2,373.92 million, RMB1,731.29
million, RMB952.34 million and RMB1,188.42 million, respectively, during 2020.

ASP recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB18,055 per sq.m., representing a decrease of approximately 11.7% from
approximately RMB20,452 per sg.m. in 2019. Such decrease was primarily due
to the lower ASP attributable to sales of Sheltered Mansion and Hui Mountain
International Community.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the properties delivered
by the Group mainly included Honor Mansion, Hui Mountain International
Community and Qingshanhupan. The following table sets forth the details of
the revenue recognised from the sale of properties of the Group by
geographical location in 2020 with comparative figures in 2019.

o PR o s B o3 A

EXRNVEEHBRAYEHERRZ
s
HE200F12A3BIFE B fEEL

MHiE# 5586525 F A K BEZE 2019512 A
31 B 15 2 49 439,866 F 77 K8 h14933.3% °
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HIEFEHAREES96.1 H BT INL17.7%
ZEEHE200F12A3BIEEEHARE
10,5896 A BT * (G A S BB I E B9 4) 99.2% ©
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B E B R E BT R B BRR AR A
HEERIEME -

HE200F1N2ANBHLEFE  AEEER
VMEFBEEZEXRE  BLUBEBRHERS L
HARE o TNREFIF 2020 FAREBIZHIEALE S
DTHREVEHECERN G 2FFE - ER
2019 F A LLRELE -

SR BIFE R B R A A
—ETFER

27



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B L i B

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A310LEE

2020 2019
2020 F 20195
GFA  Recognised GFA  Recognised
Revenue  delivered ASP Revenue delivered ASP
gt =+ gxft EHER
ki BEEE 2 THEE W BREEERE  THEE
RMB’000 sq.m. RMB/sq.m. RMB'000 SQ.M. RMB/sa.m.
AR¥TR/ ARET/
ARBTR FHK VRN ARETT FhHK FhHK
Nanjing e
Peaceful Paradise FERF 25,064 859 29,178 175413 5,563 31,532
Blue Stream Town ERE 26,018 1,069 24,339 63927 4692 13625
Dongyue Mansion RER 509,792 13,232 38,527 868,710 21,120 41,132
Ideal Palace —Al 7,314 610 11,990 94929 8,348 11,371
Honor Mansion ZEAKRE 2,373,919 94,810 25,039 3,796,526 141,130 26,901
Kinma Q+ Community Kinma Q+ 4L [& 33,721 1,911 17,645 939,645 44,743 21,001
Long Island Qin Park REBRLR - - - 48 12 4,000
Xidi International Community Ptk il 1,132 101 11,208 80 - 506
Bejoy Villa A RE 1,731,287 57,858 29,923 632,717 21409 29,534
First phase of Airport Exhibition  Z=/8 &R /NE—H]
Town 697,317 61,713 11,299 - - -
Jiang Shan Yu Mansion T 415,137 22,685 18,300 - - N/A
5,820,701 254,848 22,840 6,571,995 247,017 26,605
Wuxi i3
Tianyuan Mansion VAVRLER 97 36 5,139 207 - -
Canal Park 728 985 192 5,130 2016 39 5001
Hui Mountain International ENE
Community 952,341 86,851 10,965 489,023 80,138 6,102
Sheltered Mansion R 681,443 61,823 11,022 1,469,969 78,361 18,759
1,634,866 148,902 10,979 1,961,215 158,895 12,343
Zhenjiang T
Yuefu Mansion g 342,459 21,889 15,645 - - -
Tang Dynasty Mansion BER 194,022 15,195 12,769 462918 33,953 13634
536,481 37,084 14,467 462918 33953 13,634
Suzhou B
Yuan Stream Mansion RE 377,970 12,620 29,950 - - NATER
Hangzhou M
Yungutianjing Mansion EAKE 1,188,418 48,296 24,607 - - NATER
Qingshanhupan LR 621,425 37,303 16,659 - - NANER
1,809,843 85,599 21,143 - - NATER
Xuzhou BN
Yinshan Road Parcel R BE 409,758 47,472 8,632 - - NATER
Total st 10,589,619 586,525 18,055 8,996,128 439,865 20452

2 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Properties under Development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value. Upon completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had properties under development of
approximately RMB20,327.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
25.7% from approximately RMB16,166.5 million as at 31 December 2019. The
increase was primarily due to the change in land bank and property
development activities which are in line with the Group’s business strategy.

Completed Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale represent the completed development properties
ready for sale and were unsold at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had completed properties held for sale of
approximately RMB2,851.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
54.2% from approximately RMB6,227.5 million as at 31 December 2019. The
decrease was primarily due to the sales of completed properties of Honor
Mansion, Bejoy Villa and Yungutianjing Mansion.

Project Management for Property Developments

The Group provides various project management services to property projects
developed by associates and joint ventures of the Group, including but not
limited to engineering, procurement, design, cost control and customer
services.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated from the Group’s
project management services was approximately RMB30.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 61.7% from approximately RMB79.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was primarily due to the fact that
less project management services were provided in 2020 for the existing
property projects as developed by the Group’s associates and joint ventures.

HOTEL OPERATIONS

The Group operates and manages the Hangzhou Zhongdu Qingshan
Wonderland Hotel, which is the first ecotypic and commercial resort hotel
constructed pursuant to the standard of five-star hotel in the Lin'an District.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, income generated from the operation
of the Hotel was approximately RMB40.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 198.5% from approximately RMB13.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase was attributable to the full year operation of
the Hotel in 2020 as compared to such income generated in the last quarter of
2019 since the acquisition of such Hotel in September 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) i K% o3 A

PROPERTY INVESTMENT
Rental Income

The Group's rental income for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB16.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
412.5% compared to the rental income of approximately RMB3.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The sharp increase was mainly due to the
growth in revenue generated from the leasing of investment properties of
Peaceful Paradise.

Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had seven investment properties with a
total GFA of approximately 335,247 sq.m.. The Group had commenced the
leasing of three investment properties with a total GFA of approximately 98,154
sg.m..

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are as follows:

FEiERE
HEWA

AEENEHE2020F12A831BIEFENHES
WAL EBARE164BEIL ' BEZE2019F 12
A3 BIFERSRANAREIEE TS
DI#I4125% ° sZ RIEIE N E B RN EERF
HIREMERERGBRALER -

BREYHE

MR2020F 124318 AEEHEBLEEREY
¥ OBEEmMBYOA335247F K KER
BRBHEZERENE  LEEMBHA
98,154 F J5 K

R2020F 12 A31H » REBMKEMEBR
mE

GFA Attributable
Project BEEE interest to
No. company name Project name Location Land use term Usage sq.m. the Group
@5 HEDRER HEER it THEREEH il Tk rEBEEGRR
1. Nanjing Eastern Senior Living  Elderly apartments of No. 3 Maqun Avenue, Qixia District, Nanjing 50 years, expiring on Commercial 68,687 75%
Health Industry Co,, Ltd. Peaceful Paradise City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 27 August 2065
HRRAEFREES BERAZER PRIHEERTEERSHAER  0F 20655 EE3
BRERRA 8A 27 BEIH
2. Nanjing Xicheng Real Estate Gymnastic centre of Xidi No. 126-1 Hengshan Road, Jianye District, 50 years, expiring on Commercial 4244 100%
Co, Ltd. International Community  Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 10 July 2053
HRENFIERE ARERES PEIIHEBERTRERELE 506+ 20535 EE3
BRAR i 126157 7A108 55
3. Hangzhou Yinhong Industrial  Self-owned residential 100 metres to the west of the intersection 70 years, expiring on Residential 1884635 100%
Co, Ltd. building of Hangzhou of Zhuangdun Road and Rujia Street, 16 July 2088
Yungu Tianjing Mansion Xihu District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC
MMBLEEER MMEAKE PEMIEMMTRSRESRENR  70F - 20885 TE
BARTA BREE HRXAFE100% 7R 1685|H
4. Nanjing Yincheng Medical Land parcel situated at the - Nanbu Xincheng Jiankang Industrial Park, 50 years, expiring on Medical 151407.22 100%
Management Co,, Ltd. Nanbu Xincheng Jiankang  Honghua Street, Qinhuai District, 18 November 2069 management
Industrial Park Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HRRHREER HETARREEE PRIHEERTRERLELESRN  0F - 2069F BRER
BRAF ih TREREXE 1118855
5 Nanjing Eastern Senior Living ~ Nanjing Eastern Senior No. 3 Maqun Avenue, Qixia District, 50 years, expiring on Medical and 5063837 75%
Health Industry Co, Ltd. Living Land Parcel C Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 27 August 2065 health
HRRAEFRRES HRRAEECHR FEIHEERTHERTHAEY  S0F 20655 BRRRE
BERERAA 8A 27 BEIH
6. Hefei Yinfeng Real Estate Co,  Self-owned residential South of Tianda Road, east of TianzhiRoad, 70 years, expiring on Residential 16,200.58 60%
Ltd. building of Hefei Gaoxin Gaoxin District, Hefei City, Anhui Province, 23 June 2090
Zhilu the PRC
AIEREREDERSE RIESHAMEER HEZEESENERERERUE - 0% 2000F =
BRAR BREE REBUAR 6A23 BEIH
7. Nanjing Yinxing New Material 2%, 3* Building, Keya Room 1001, Block 3, No. 59 Tianyuan West 50 years, expiring on Office 2495488 100%
Technology Co, Ltd. Mansion Road, Moling Street, Jiangning District, 15 September 2053
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HRBERA R BoAEY 3 RRIIHEERT IERKEE S0 + 2053F HOE
BRAR BATERSIRIRI000E 9A15A5H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXHIBITION OPERATION

In 2020, through the operation of the first phase of Airport Exhibition Town, the
Group extended its business to the provision of exhibition management
services, including but not limited to the leasing of venue, and the provision of
administration and marketing services for exhibitions of various nature.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, income generated from such exhibition
operation was approximately RMB2.9 million, which represents a completely
new revenue stream of the Group.

LAND BANK

In 2020, the Group continued its expansion in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis and acquired 17 land parcels. The total contracted land price of
such newly acquired land parcels was approximately RMB15,240 million. The
average cost of the land parcels acquired in 2020 was approximately RMB7,052
per sq.m.. The table below sets forth the particulars of the newly acquired land
parcels by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

o PR o s B o3 A

EREH

20205 - BBEL=BERNAH - AKE
EREXGRRERTEREERS - BEE
TRAMES M REHBZEERNTERERTS
HEERT -

HE20200F12A3HIEFE -
AL BAREIOBETT
RIS 2ROR o

T bl

R2020%F  REBRE=ARFERREITI
BE17IEM R o B R A A (B AR
HEARB15240 B8 TT ° 2020 F T HY
HIRFHK AN BT FEHRKARE 70527 -
TRV AEBEHZE2020F12A31BIEFE
FUL BB IR 2 FFIE o

EREBEL
HAAGKE2

Average
land cost
(Based on the
Land parcel/ Estimated Land estimated
No. City Project name Land use Site area total GFA premium GFA)
LK
EHE $:3 (ReEfE
Ehi] Hm Wi/ BEER TR AR HE  IHNES BEEETE)
sqm. sqm. RMB million RMB/sq.m.
ARE  ARER/
TRk FHK BET Tk
L Property projects developed by subsidiaries of the Group
AEENEARBERNNEER
1 Wenzhou Jiulongtianzhu Residential 21,186 51,955 537 10,340
M RREAE =
2 Hefei Zhilu Residential 40,391 94,137 782 8307
i HE Fx
3 Wuxi Chun Xiao Guan Tang Residential 22,125 59,822 460 7694
b7 FRER F=E
4 Wuxi Mei Gui Gong Guan Residential 30,028 89,609 656 7324
i3] BRNE £
5 Hangzhou Qing Shan Gui Yu Residential/hotel 343443 408,175 1,650 4,042
M Bl e/ BE
6 Suzhou YuDong Lu Residential 65,539 182,155 %1 5275
&M BRHK F=x
7 Wuxi He Feng Lu Residential/retail 28,845 108,030 752 6,962
g7 MR /28
8 Suzhou Shui Pan Hua Ting Residential 29962 88,770 165 1,859
&M KB R Fx
Sub-total /it 581519 1,082,653 5963 5508
RN BRI A IR A A 31
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B L i B

Average
land cost
(Based on the
Land parcel/ Estimated Land estimated
No. City Project name Land use Site area total GFA premium GFA)
FHLBRA
FHE £ (BB
Ehi] wm Wi/ EEEB TR it ER HE  thEE BEERTE)
SQ.M. sq.m. RMB million RMB/sq.m.
ARB  ARERL/
PR FHx AET Pk
1. Property projects developed by associates and joint ventures of the Group
FREBENARSELRRRNNEER
1 Hangzhou Lanshili Residential/retail 48,848 162,833 1,365 8381
M R e/ 2%
2 Hangzhou Guan Hu Zhi Chen 05 Residential 26019 85,084 1,186 13938
M B 2R 05 €
3 Hangzhou Guan Hu Zhi Chen 04 Residential 43112 126,649 1,770 13972
M Bz R04 =
4 Suzhou Lin Xi Yuan Zhu Residential 44,088 102,846 463 4,502
B WEIREE £
5 Wenzhou Wen Hua Fu Residential/retail 19852 64,779 372 5743
M SR it/ 28
6 Xuzhou Wei Lai Zhi Chen Residential 36,353 113,194 421 3721
M ARZR ffx
7 Nanjing Yunwangfu Residential 35058 135,198 1,710 12,648
MR E2f f=E
8 Nanjing Jun Hui Residential 57303 195512 660 3376
MR 7E FE
9 Nanjing Hui Tong Lu G83 Residential/retail 35,247 92,294 1,330 14410
B B 4755 G83 fix/ 28
Sub-total /Mt 345,880 1078389 9277 8,603
Total st 927,399 2,161,042 15,240 7,052
3 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPERTIES DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP AND
ITS JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 49 projects located in 10 cities in the
PRC, of which 33 projects are developed and owned by the Group and the
remaining 16 projects are developed and owned by the Group's joint ventures
and associates. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a land bank with an
aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 5,988,145 sg.m., out of which the
land bank with interests attributable to the Group amounted to approximately
4,782,696 sq.m.. The following table sets forth the GFA breakdown of the
Group's property portfolio as at 31 December 2020 in terms of geographical
location:

o PR o s B o3 A

HASERESECEREBE
DAY

MR2020F 124318 REEHBEBLNRFE0
ESR 49 EIBEE - EF3BEEERAEH
FrA%RES  HT16cEBERALEENS
ELENBERNRIRELES - 120204F 12
A3 AEBEHREGMTLEERRY
5,088,145 5 KA i il - HP RSB EG
TR T R T FE 494,782,696 7K » Tk
Y AREBOYELAAT 2020512 A31 B A
IR B S5 LA R4

Completed
GFA available
for sale/ Planned GFA
Number leasable GFA under of future % of land
City of projects GFA"  development  development Total GFA? reserve
BRIN
ARHE/ AREH f
G Ll hHa BEg 1ibfte
B HEEE BEEEY BEEE BEER HE® HEAL
(sq.m,) (sqm,) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAX) (FAX) (FAx) (FAX)
Property projects developedby ~ REBHEA B
subsidiaries of the Group N¥ER
Nanjing BR 12 18414 816,636 333580 1,168,630 195%
W 57 9 35,147 449,066 207,076 691,489 116%
Suzhou &M 3 1,161 88770 18,155 21208 45%
Hangzhou M 3 1716 217957 869,574 1,089,247 182%
Xuzhou M 2 - 13018 - 243018 4.1%
Zhenjiang BI 2 2126 258,500 69,240 329,866 5.5%
Hefei AR 1 - 94137 - 94137 1.6%
Wenzhou bl 1 - 52853 - 52853 09%
Sub-total Nt 33 58,564 2,221,137 1,661,825 3,941,526 65.8%

BABRARARAT 33
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) i K% o3 A

Completed
GFA available
for sale/ Planned GFA
Number leasable GFA under of future % of land
City of projects GFA"  development  development Total GFA? reserve
BAIH
e/ AREE 1
Clit Rl i agg i
m L] BEEEY BEER BEEE HE® WEA
(sqm) (sqm) (sqm) (sqm.)
(FAR) (FHR) (FAR) (FH%)
Property projectsdevelopedby ~ REEKEZAFRAY
associates and joint ventures SERRNNEER
of the Group
Nanjing HR 6 463 563,808 287806 852077 142%
Suzhou M 2 %7 101,254 - 102,221 1.7%
Hefei Al 1 745 5,702 - 13,156 02%
Ma‘anshan el 1 4633 288434 131455 424522 71%
Taizhou aM 1 - 106,640 - 106,640 18%
Hangzhou M 3 - 367,599 - 367,599 61%
Wenzhou BN 1 - 67,210 - 67,210 1.1%
Xuzhou Gl 1 - 113,194 - 11319 19%
Sub-total Nt 16 13,517 1,613,841 419,261 2,046,619 34.2%
Sub-total attributable to the Group A& B (/)i NIAFER 6,464 638,810 195,896 841,170 NATE
Total land reserves B1ihkE 49 72,081 3,834,978 2,081,086 5,988,145 100.0%
Total land reserves attributableto  KEBE(L4 1 b5
the Group NATER 65,028 2,859,947 1,857,721 4,782,696 NATER
Notes: 5T
1) Includes saleable GFA remaining unsold and leasable GFA. (1) BERELIEZEmMBE A HHEEERE -

) Total land reserves equals to the sum of (i) the total GFA available for sale and total
leasable GFA for completed properties; (i) total GFA for properties under development;
and (iii) total GFA for properties held for future development. For properties held by the
Group's joint ventures and associates, total GFA attributable to the Group are calculated

based on the Group's equity interest in the respective projects.

34 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) i K% o3 A

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB1,587.1 million or
approximately 17.5% from approximately RMB9,092.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB10,679.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 as a result of an increase in revenue derived from
sale of properties. Details of the increase in revenue derived from sale of
properties are set out under the paragraph headed "Property Development —
GFA Delivered and Revenue Recognised from Sale of Properties” in this report.

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue for each of the components
described above and the percentage of total revenue represented for the

periods indicated.

5o %5 1o R
Uy 358

AEBEBMNWRZEBAEZE2019F12A831BIEFE
HIH AR 0,0025 BB ITIE ML AR 1,587.1
BEITHA175%2HZE 2020512 A31 BIEF
EHHARE 1067906 BETT - ThAR Y
ERMBUREIEIN - MEEEFEREIEINGFE
HNAARE [BihERE —BEXNEEARRER

IR ERR W] — B

TREHIAEE L& ERED R AR BE A
Weas A R FTiE U B DL -

2020 2019
2020 F 2019%F

Year-over-

Year

% of Total % of Total Change

Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue in Revenue

EE L 1E M l&iil]nd

U 2 Aotk & Btk 28

RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %

AR®TR U ARETT % %

Sale of properties WIS E 10,589,619 99.2 8,996,128 989 17.7
Project management BB EBIA

income 30,489 0.28 79,679 0.9 (61.7)

Hotel operations G 8 40,290 0.37 13,460 0.1 1993

Rental income B WA 16,360 0.14 3,205 0.1 4105

Exhibition operation SREK 2,876 0.01 - - -

Total et 10,679,634 100.0 9,092,472 100.0 17.5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales mainly comprised cost of property sales which was
directly associated with the revenue from the sale of properties, which
represented direct construction costs, land acquisition costs and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowings for the purpose of property
development during the period of construction.

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately RMB1,909.0 million or
approximately 25.1% from approximately RMB7,613.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB9,522.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the higher cost of per
sg.m. of Yungutianjing Mansion, Bejoy Villa, Tang Dynasty Mansion and Yuefu
Mansion. Such increase was also attributable to the fact that the Group
recognised a large amount of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020,
and accordingly, the related cost of sales was recognised during the same year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately
RMB321.9 million or approximately 21.8% from approximately RMB1,479.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB1,157.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group's gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 16.3% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 10.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily
due to the low gross profit attributable to the sales of Yungutianjing Mansion,
the revenue of which accounted for approximately 11% of the total revenue of
the Group generated from sales of properties. Such decrease was also
attributable to the recognition of relatively high cost incurred in several
acquisition projects.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains primarily consist of interest income,
investment income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), dividend income from equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), government grants, forfeiture of
deposits, gain on disposal of a subsidiary and others.

The Group's other income and gains decreased by approximately RMB1.0
million or approximately 1.5% from approximately RMB65.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB64.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. Although there was an increase of investment income
from financial assets at FVTPL, the Group's other income and gains decreased
as no recovery of financial guarantees contracts and security deposit for
breaking contracts was recognised during 2020.

o PR o s B o3 A

SHEKA
AEBENHEXN AT EBRYEHERRN » %
FRARTHERY R HE 2 W B ARRE - HIE@ s
HIABMERBRET = ERREKA - L1l
BB KB B SR B A C AR -

AEBRHEEKRATHEZ=2019F 1283181
FENHOAREIB2BBTIBMHARE
1,909.0 A & T8 49 25.1% E & & 20204F 12 A 31
BItFEENHARB S 2 BE T BT E
HREAKXE  ARRE « BRENLKMEETF
TR Bk o 523818 78 R A 2N S (8] 8 2= 2020
FNANALFEBRRAE R ARFER
TERESH &S AT ER ©

EMREFR

R ESCAT - REBE/ENHEZ2019F
NRAJNBEFEMNHOARKE 147938 & LR
DEARBEI219FE LA 21.8% EEZE 2020
FNRANALEFENHDAREIS7TABET ©
AREBNEFEHREE2019F12A31HIEF
ERE163% MV EEHE2020F 12 A31 B IEF
EH#I108%  TIEBHANEEZARE (HIK
HHMEAEBEEMEMSRKZEM %) E
EREFEEAE - R IMBEE TUREEE
BEARY SRR -

HAb WA K Wz

AEERMBPARKETEBRENBEA - &
NHER ARG ([RAFERABRE DR
BENREWA  KERAFEAAREMEE
Wzt (MR AFEFARMEZERE ) 2 BAR
BZBRBWA ~ BB - RURE M E—
P 2 B A e Ko E Al o

REBMEMBARRKSEBHEZ2019F128
JTHIEFEMNARKEGSHEETRIOAR
BI10BEBITE15%2EHE 20209412 A31 H
IFEENAOARKESASET - BEIRATE
AFABEMEREEMNIRERAGREN B
FH A 2020 FF HA 7 37 4 Uz 0] B A5 1R IR & 49 K 1
REHNRES  AEEHEMKRA R

SR BIFE R B R A A
—ETFER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) i K% o3 A

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly represented staff cost,
advertising and business development expenses, office expenses and others.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
RMB36.6 million or approximately 12.4% from approximately RMB295.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB258.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease in
advertising expenses incurred for Sheltered Mansion, Jiangshan Yue Mansion
and Kinma Q + Community, the disposal of the Tianjing project in Ma'anshan
and the lowered staff cost incurred during 2020.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily comprised staff costs, travel and
entertainment expenses, professional fees, office expenses, other taxes and
surcharges, depreciation and amortisation and others.

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB65.7
million or approximately 22.5% from approximately RMB292.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB226.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the adjustment of the
organisational structure of the Group in 2020, which contributed to improved
efficiency on human resources utilisation and the reduction in unnecessary
manpower expenditures.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses mainly comprised one-off expenses including
financial guarantee, contract expenses, compensation to customers, charitable
donation expenses, foreign exchange losses and others.

The Group's other expenses decreased by approximately RMB2.7 million or
approximately 11.8% from approximately RMB22.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB20.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was mainly due to the fact that less foreign exchange
losses was incurred as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The Group’s fair value gains on investment properties increased by
approximately RMB19.4 million or approximately 18.3% from approximately
RMB106.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB125.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly
generated from the increase in fair value of the projects of Peaceful Paradise,
Keya Mansion, Zhi Lu and Yungutianjing Mansion.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest on bank and other borrowings,
interest expense arising from revenue contracts and interest on lease liabilities.

The Group's finance costs increased by approximately RMB35.3 million or
approximately 21.1% from approximately RMB167.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB202.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was primarily due to the increase in interest expenses
caused by the increase in borrowings and advance receipts.

Share of Gains/Loss on Joint Ventures and Associates

The Group's share of loss on joint ventures decreased by approximately RMB5.5
million or approximately 35.7% from a loss of approximately RMB15.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to a loss of approximately RMB9.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the
profit generated from cooperative projects operated and delivered by joint
ventures, such as Dream Mansion and Suhe Bay.

The Group's share of gains on associates decreased by approximately RMB37.4
million or approximately 45.9% from a gain of approximately RMB81.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to a gain of approximately RMB44.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly attributable to
the lower gross profit margin of the projects operated and delivered by
associates, such as Town City and Huilingweilai.

Income Tax

Income tax represents PRC corporate income tax and LAT payable by the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by approximately RMB291.5
million or approximately 50.3% from approximately RMB579.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB288.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease in profit
before tax.

o PR o s B o3 A

B 7 AR AR

IE AT EBERIT REMBERFE - K
BHEENNEFAXUREERENTE -
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REBRPTEKAREZ=2019F12A318 1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Profit for the Year

The Group's profit for the year increased by approximately RMB25.7 million or
approximately 7.1% from approximately RMB360.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB386.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The Group's net profit margin decreased from approximately
4.0% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 3.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to (i) the decrease in gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2020; and (i) the decrease in the
share of gains of joint ventures and associates for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB182.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 21.5% as compared to approximately RMB150.3 million for the
year 2019. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the valuation of the
Group's investment properties and the corresponding profit attributable to the
Group.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Property development is capital-intensive and the Group expects to continue
to incur a high level of capital expenditures for project development in the
foreseeable future. The Group funds its business operations both through cash
flows generated from its business operations and through external financing,
primarily including bank and other borrowings.

The Group's primary uses of cash are for the payment of acquisition of land use
rights, construction costs, staff costs and various operating expenses.

Cash Positions

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB3,518.3 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB2,894.3 million), pledged deposits of approximately RMB2,194.1 million (31
December 2019: approximately RMB0.03 million) and restricted cash of
approximately RMB708.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB1,137.1 million).

Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total borrowings (including interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings) of approximately RMB12,148.2
million, compared to approximately RMB10,500.0 million as at 31 December
2019. The Group's borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the Group’s total borrowings as at the dates

B DL o i

&g

TREINFAR AR EE OB RAEE

indicated.
As at 31 December
MR12A31H
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AE¥T ) (ARBFIIT)
Current: BOER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — HEA = 200,000
Other loans — secured HEEH — BEMH 576,000 373,000
Other loans — unsecured HiER— EEKIF 326,245 697,620
Current portion of long term bank REAIRITE A BN ER
loans — secured 2o — BIKHE 2,321,141 2,863,036
Current portion of long term other RHEEME KA BN E
loans — secured 2o — BHEA 99,700 634,163
Current portion of long term other REAH th B R E BN ER
loans — unsecured B — EmIK - 150,000
Total current borrowings BIHAE S4B RE 3,323,086 4917819
Non-current: JEBDER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — BHEIF 7,401,345 3,485,634
Other loans — secured HitvER — BEHF 1,381,497 2,093,506
Other loans — unsecured HiER — EEIF 42,252 3,000
Total st 12,148,180 10,499,959

The following table sets forth the repayment schedule of the Group’s
borrowings as at the dates indicated.

TR AR B B A & B8 5 2 5K
% o

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AR¥%T ) (AR®TT)
Repayable within one year AR—FREE 3,323,086 4917819
Repayable in the second year JBRE - FEE 2,455,705 2,316,179
Repayable within two to five years BARMERFENER 5,886,433 2,810,431
Repayable after five years BRAFRER 482,956 455,530
Sub-total /NF 8,825,094 5,582,140
Total @et 12,148,180 10,499,959
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The following table sets out the range of interest rates for the Group's

borrowings as at the dates indicated.

TREFINFR B AR EUE R REHE -

As at 31 December

M®12A318
2020 2019
2020 FF 20194
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRI =R BB F &
(%) (%)
(%) (%)
Current: BNHER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — BT N/ATER 8.00
Other loans — secured HibEm — G 13.00 11.50-12.40
Other loans — unsecured Hih B — g 12.50 1250
Current portion of long term bank RERITE R ENER
loans — secured B — B 4.69-6.90 4.72-6.81
Current portion of long term other REAH th B FRE BN ER
loans — secured B — B 13.00 8.38-13.00
Current portion of long term other REAH th B R E BN ER
loans — unsecured #Ho — mEH N/A RiE A 7.50-15.00
Non-current: JEENHR :
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BHEIF 4.46-6.65 472-6.8]
Other loans — secured HitEZ — HFIKHF 7.00-13.00 7.00-13.00
Other loans — unsecured HithE — mIKH 7.00-7.50 15.00

The Group's certain secured borrowings were secured by the pledges of the
asset portfolio which includes investment properties, prepaid land lease
payments, properties under development and completed properties held for

sale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes Issue

In order to refinance certain existing indebtedness of the Company and
general corporate purposes, senior notes have been issued during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

On 26 June 2020, the Company issued US$140,000,000 12.0% senior notes due
2021, which were listed on the Stock Exchange on 29 June 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the net proceeds had been fully utilised. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19 June 2020 and
26 June 2020.

On 4 November 2020, the Company issued US$200,000,000 12.0% senior notes
due 2021, which were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5 November 2020. As at
31 December 2020, the net proceeds remained unutilised. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2020
and 4 November 2020.

Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to market risks from changes in market rates and prices,
such as interest rates, credit, liquidity and foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk.
The Group manages its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and
other borrowings. For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Interest-Bearing Bank and Other
Borrowings” in this section for the range of interest rates for the Group's
borrowings as at the dates indicated therein.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of a
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. The Group has no
concentrations of credit risk in view of its large number of customers. The
Group did not record any significant bad debt losses during the year ended 31
December 2020. All trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
based on invoice date, had an age of less than one year. The credit risk of the
Group's financial assets, which mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, pledged deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, equity investments
designated at FVOC|, and financial assets included in prepayment, deposits and
other receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates its business in the PRC. Other than the foreign
currency denominated bank deposits, exchange rate linked structured deposits
and senior notes, the Group did not have any other material direct exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Directors expect that any such fluctuations in exchange rate would not have
material adverse effect on the operation of the Group.

The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate risk regularly and make
foreign exchange hedging arrangement when necessary. The Group considers
that no foreign exchange hedging arrangement is needed currently.

Key Financial Ratios

The Group's current ratio remained relatively stable at approximately 1.3 and
approximately 1.2 as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 respectively.
The Group's net gearing ratio decreased from approximately 160.6% as at 31
December 2019 to approximately 151.0% as at 31 December 2020, primarily
due to the increase in the Group’s cash reserves and total equity as at 31
December 2020 as compared to that as at 31 December 2019.

Note:

Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the net of interest-bearing bank borrowings minus
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and pledged deposits by the total equity.

Contingent Liabilities
Mortgage Guarantees

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the mortgage
loans they provided to the Group's customers in order to secure the repayment
obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees are issued from the
date of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon the earlier of (i)
the transfer of the relevant real estate ownership certificates to the customers,
or (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans by the customers. If a customer
defaults on the mortgage loan, the Group is typically required to repurchase
the underlying property by paying off the mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the
mortgagee banks will auction the underlying property and recover the balance
from the Group if the outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure
sale proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the customers of its completed properties held for sale.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default on
mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and
penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those banks. Under the above
arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks as collaterals
for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage repayments by these
customers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise the
pledged properties through open auction. The Group's guarantee period starts
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the
issuance and registration of property ownership certificates to the purchasers,
which will generally be available within one to two years after the customers
take possession of the relevant properties.

As at 31 December 2020, such guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks to the customers of the Group's completed properties
held for sale amounted to approximately RMB5,130.6 million, compared with
approximately RMB5,258.7 million as at 31 December 2019.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year ended 31
December 2020 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. The
Board considered that in case of default on payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

The Directors confirm that the Group has not encountered defaults by
customers in which it provided mortgage guarantees that, in aggregate, had a
material adverse effect on the Group's financial condition and results of
operations.

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its ordinary
course of business from time to time. The Group believes that no liabilities
resulting from these proceedings will have a material and adverse effect on its
business, financial condition or operating results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's commitment for property development
and capital commitments which it had contracted but yet provided for was
approximately RMB12,843.1 million, compared to approximately RMB6,848.1
million as at 31 December 2019.

Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Arrangements

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital issued or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans, debt securities, borrowings or other similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade bills),
acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance leases or hire
purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

Significant Investments Held

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 880 employees. The Group
offers employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. It contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering

The Company completed the global offering and its shares were successfully
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 March 2019. On 3 April
2019, as a result of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus)
being partially exercised, 29,914,000 new shares were allotted and issued at the
offer price of HK$2.38 per share. The total net proceeds raised from the global
offering (after issuance of the shares pursuant to the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option) after deducting all the underwriting commissions,
transaction levy and trading fee (as applicable) and all other listing expenses in
connection with the global offering was approximately HK$855.8 million,
which is intended to be utilised for the intended purposes as set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had fully utilised the net proceeds, which have
been applied as follows:
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Intended allocation
(based on total net Actual utilised
Intended usage as proceeds of HK$855.8 million) amount as at
disclosed in Prospectus (approximately) 31 December 2020
RESER (EREFRERE R202012F 318
RRERFHEEZRERR FHes5.8HEBET) (HA) ERBRLE
Construction costs for the development of property projects, namely Honor 60% of total net proceeds HK$513.5 million
Mansion, 2017G63 Ninghai Road Parcel and Huijian Weilai. — HK$513.5 million
RENFERE (EERE  2017G3EBHIIBRE AR NERAA - BFRFTURFEN60% SBSEBAT
—SI3SAEEET

Repayment of all or any part of certain existing bank and other borrowings:

30% of total net proceeds

HK$256.7 million

— HK$256.7 million

BEMBIAMBPETEERTREMER WBFNE AT R R 30% 567 BB
— 2567 EEBATT

0] bank borrowing with outstanding balance of
approximately RMB477.4 million with a floating
interest rate of 0.6% above the PRC inter-bank loan
prime rate per annum and maturity date of 21 June
2026, which is used for payment of development cost
for the relevant project company; "
REEEBOARBI4BETL(FDFEA
06% * mRPERTHSEEERENR) BR
202656 421 BB RITERAREHER 2
AIEBB AR ; (=D

bank borrowing with outstanding balance of
approximately RMB241.1 million with a floating
interest rate of 0.6% above the PRC inter-bank loan
prime rate per annum and maturity date of 21 June
2026, which is used for payment of development cost
for the relevant project company; "
REBEBOARBUINBETL(EBDNER
06% * mRFERTHSZEEERENE) BR
2026% 6 A 21 BRI EMRITRERARARER 2
RIENBA BB L D
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Intended allocation
(based on total net Actual utilised

Intended usage as proceeds of HK$855.8 million) amount as at
disclosed in Prospectus (approximately) 31 December 2020

BESE (EREFEHE 202051283180

RRERFBREZRERR REes5.8HRET) (W) ERBASH

Notes:

58

(i) bank borrowing with outstanding balance of
approximately RMB399.8 million with a fixed interest
rate of 6.27% above the PBOC benchmark rate per
annum and maturity date of 11 June 2021, which is
used for payment of development cost for the
relevant project company;
REEEBOARE9SEET(EAEHEA
627% * mARPEARRITHEEFHE) AR
20216 A1 BB RITEFARNERER R
AR BN ;

(iv)  bank borrowing with outstanding balance of
approximately RMB163.4 million with a floating
interest rate of 5.0% above the PBOC benchmark rate
per annum and maturity date of 15 March 2019,
which is used for payment of development cost for
the relevant project company; and
REBERODARK 13488 T(EDFIXA
500 BRPEARRTHEEFHNX) AR
201943 A 15 B EMRITERARARER &
AIERBHRANT - &

(v) other borrowing with outstanding balance of
approximately RMB100.0 million with a fixed interest
rate of 7.5% per annum and maturity date of 14 June
2020, which is used for settling the consideration for
the transfer of shares in Nanjing Yincheng to Nanjing
Yingang as part of the Reorganisation.
RERBEANARE 10008 ET (BTEFNER
75%) BFY 202056 A 14 BEIEME g (EA
EAN B0 AREERERREEZHE AR
WA 2 KB -

General working capital 10% of total net proceeds HK$85.6 million
— HK$85.6 million

—REEESE BREFOEIFEM 10% 856 BEBTL
— 86 BB

Mt -

As disclosed in the Prospectus, approximately 9% of the total net proceeds were 1. PINBREIZFTIRE - P18 RIBFREAATERIA99%
intended to be utilised for the repayment of the outstanding bank borrowings as BB EEE L () R )BT A R EERITE
referred to in items (i) and (i) above, namely approximately HK$77.0 million in o BIAHLY770EEET

aggregate.

Capitalised terms used in the above table shall have the same meanings as defined in 2. ERFAAEEEBRERMATEAFERR
the Prospectus. E=

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property development
business and acquiring high-quality land parcels in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis in the PRC. No concrete plan for future investments is in place as
at the date of this report.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 25 February 2020, Hangzhou Yinjiahong Corporate Management Co. Ltd.*
("Hangzhou Yinjiahong"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Shanghai Juanlang Real Estate Development Co. Ltd* ("Shanghai
Juanlang’), Greatmind Developments (HK) Limited (“Greatmind
Developments’) and Shanghai Juanyue Property Co. Ltd.* (“Shanghai
Juanyue’) entered into a development cooperation agreement (the
"Cooperation Agreement’), pursuant to which, (i) Hangzhou Yinjiahong
agreed to purchase, and Shanghai Juanlang agreed to sell, 40% of the entire
equity interest in Shanghai Juanyue at the total consideration of
RMB549,045,600; and (ii) the rights and obligations of the parties to the
Cooperation Agreement and the management and affairs of Shanghai Juanyue
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hangzhou Juanjin Property Co. Ltd.*
("Hangzhou Juanjin”), are governed. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
equity interest in Shanghai Juanyue will be held as to 40% and 60% by
Hangzhou Yinjiahong and Greatmind Developments, respectively. Hangzhou
Juanjin holds a parcel of land situated at the Hangzhou City of the Zhejiang
Province in the PRC. For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 25 February 2020.

On 15 June 2020, Hangzhou Yinjialuo Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*
("Hangzhou Yinjialuo”), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Jiaxing Zhenli Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) Partnership Agreement* with other investment partners, pursuant
to which, Hangzhou Yinjialuo shall make the capital contribution in the amount
of RMB157.5 million for the establishment of Jiaxing Zhenli Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*, and ultimately, for property development
purposes. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company published or to be published on or around 30 April 2021.

On 15 July 2020, Wuxi Yincheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
("Wuxi Yincheng"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Wuxishi Xinwu District Jiangxi Street Assets Operation Company* (the
"Assets Operation Company’) entered into an equity transaction
agreement, pursuant to which Wuxi Yincheng agreed to acquire, and the
Assets Operation Company agreed to sell, at the total consideration of
RMB460,279,040, (i) the entire equity interest in Wuxi Chengxiang Real Estate
Co., Ltd* ("Wuxi Chengxiang") at the equity transfer price of RMB104,312,211;
and (i) a debt in the amount of RMB355,966,829 owed by Wuxi Chengxiang to
the Assets Operations Company. Wuxi Chengxiang holds a parcel of land. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15
July 2020.
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On 20 August 2020, Wuxi Yinxuan Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* ("Wuxi
Yinxuan’), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a cooperation agreement with Shanghai Sunac Real Estate Development Co,,
Ltd. ("Shanghai Sunac”) and Wuxi Rongshi Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*
(“Wuxi Rongshi") for the joint development of a parcel of land through Wuxi
Xinfa Jiayuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.*. Pursuant to the cooperation agreement,
among others, (i) the registered capital of Wuxi Rongshi shall be increased to
RMB100,000,000, of which RMB50,000,000 and RMB50,000,000 shall be
contributed by Wuxi Yinxuan and Shanghai Sunac, respectively; and (ii)
shareholder’s loans shall be provided by Wuxi Yinxuan and Shanghai Sunac to
Wuxi Rongshi in proportion to their respective equity interest in it, of which a
total amount of RMB332,092,860 shall be provided by Wuxi Yinxuan. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 August
2020.

On 15 September 2020, Hangzhou Zezhou Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*
(‘Hangzhou Zezhou"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the following agreements:

(i) the equity interest transfer framework agreement with Yihe Real Estate
Group Co,, Ltd.* ("Yihe Real Estate”), Hangzhou Qingcheng Property
Development Co,, Ltd* (‘Hangzhou Qingcheng"), Mr. He Jianliang, Mr.
He Jianxin and Hangzhou Hongyuyuan Enterprise Management
Partnership (Limited Partnership)* for the acquisition of 67% equity
interest in Hangzhou Qingcheng and a debt of Hangzhou Qingcheng
owed to Yihe Real Estate; and

(i) the equity interest transfer framework agreement with Zhejiang
Huahong Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (“Zhejiang Huahong"), Mr. Zhao
Chongging (“Mr. Zhao"), Mr. Zhou Qingxing (“Mr. Zhou") and
Hangzhou Qingcheng for the acquisition of 33% equity interest in
Hangzhou Qingcheng and a debt of Hangzhou Qingcheng owed to
Zhejiang Huahong, Mr. Zhao, Mr. Zhou and their associates.

For further details, please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 15 September 2020 and 26 February 2021 respectively.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020

60

MR2020F8 208 » ARRIzEEEEMB A
AIEGRECEEERBR AR ([EFERE]) K
LEmaEERBEEEBR AR L
B REGRBECEEERRAG([EHRER
2 EERE  BBEHMMEERES
ARARFERFEE—IE L - BIEAER
EhaiEESREMAMEREENEAR
100,000,000 7T + H A A R % 50,000,000 7T &
AR 50,000,000 70 #9 5| FH EHIRE K £E
mAEIHE « &) EHIREN DEmAIBIRES
BRI RRBELL ) E G R A IR IR R E S - KA
EHIREBIREE AR 3320928607T °
M — S B2HARR BEA20204F8
A20B8A% »

R2020F9 A 158  ARRIZzEEEZENBER
ATUIEMNCEEEERAE ([HMEMNDET
SLUA T WpER

) HEMHESEAERF(ENM
El mMNSHEMEREERRAF
(THMEH ) - (AIZREE - (ARIEE
ERMNBERCREEABEE(BR
BRI BEERE R R - ABN
JN B K 9 679 B A K2 AN 75 490 4 R BR LA
HWEMIER © &

(i) EMNTEMZEREERARAR ([HTE
W) BREELE(THEEE]D  AEE
FTETRRE]) RIMMEWAT L ES
EAER M E - LA 5 LAY 33% %
N AN B AR ROW T 2841~ R4 -
BERE R R ERE ANER

EREE—FSFHE B2HEAQRRBEHI A
202059 A 15 B KR 202152 A26 BRI A S il



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 20 December 2020, Nanjing Yincheng Real Estate Co., Ltd* (“Nanjing
Yincheng"), Nanjing Yinzhuo Real Estate Co., Ltd* (“Nanjing Yinzhuo"),
Wenzhou Yinjiahui Enterprise Management Co., Ltd* ("Wenzhou Yinjiahui")
(all of which being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company) and
Hangzhou Qianyan Enterprise Management Consulting Co.,, Ltd* entered into
an investment cooperation agreement for the joint investment in Wenzhou
Yinjiahui, and ultimately, for the proposed acquisition by Wenzhou Yinjiahui of
51% equity interest in Wenzhou Overseas Chinese Town Investment
Development Co., Ltd.* which principal asset is a parcel of land situated at
Wenzhou with the properties erected thereon. As at 31 December 2020, such
proposed acquisition was yet to be completed. For further details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 20 December 2020.

On 23 December 2020, Wuxi Yinzetao Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*
(“Wuxi Yinzetao”) and Wuxi Yinzexuan Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*
(“Wuxi Yinzexuan’) (both being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Wuxi Huayu Real Estate Co., Ltd.* ("Wuxi Huayu") entered into a
cooperation agreement. Through a series of equity interest transfers, allotment
and the settlement of consideration and fees pursuant to such agreement,
Wuxi Yinzetao and Wuxi Huayu shall jointly develop a parcel of land through
Wuxi Yinzexuan and Wuxi Xuelang Changguang Real Estate Co., Ltd.*. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2020.

On 23 December 2020, Wuxi Yinzezhou Enterprise Management Co., Ltd* (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the following
agreements:

(i) the equity transaction agreement with Shenzhen OCT Properties Co,,
Ltd. ("Shenzhen OCT") and Changshu Shajiabang Town Operation and
Investment Co., Ltd.* ("Changshu Shajiabang") for the acquisition of
80% equity interest in Changshu Shajiabang Huading Land Co., Ltd*
(“Changshu Shajiabang Huading") and the debt of the Changshu
Shajiabang Huading owed to Shenzhen OCT and Changshu Shajiabang;
and

(i) the equity transfer agreement with Jiangsu Zhongding Real Estate
Development Co, Ltd. ("Jiangsu Zhongding’) for the acquisition of
20% equity interest in Changshu Shajiabang Huading and the debt of
Changshu Shajiabang Huading owed to Jiangsu Zhongding.

For further details, please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 23 December 2020 and 26 February 2021 respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did
not perform any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Subsequent Events

On 4 February 2021, Nanjing Yincheng and Jiangsu Winfast Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Winfast’) entered into an equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Jiangsu Winfast agreed to sell, and
Nanjing Yincheng agreed to acquire, 25% equity interest in Nanjing Eastern
Senior Living Health Industry Co., Ltd.*, which principally engages in the
development of properties for the elderly and investment and management of
hospitals, at the consideration of RMB335,347,000. For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 February 2021.

On 17 March 2021, the Company issued US$165,000,000 11.8% senior notes
due 2022, which were listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 March 2021. The
Company intended to use the net proceeds from the issue of such senior notes
for refinancing certain existing indebtedness of the Company and general
corporate purposes. For further details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 12 March 2021 and 17 March 2021.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Qingping, aged 57, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director. Mr. Huang joined the Group in September 1992. He is primarily
responsible for formulating and providing guidelines and strategies for the
overall development of the Group. He was appointed as a director on January
8,2018 and re-designated as a non-executive director on August 19, 2018.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Huang was the section chief at Gulou District
Urban Construction Bureau® (currently known as Gulou District Construction,
Real Estate and Transportation Bureau®), from October 1983 to September
1992, responsible for urban planning.

Mr. Huang obtained his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Nanjing Jinling Vocational University* in the PRC in August 1983. Mr. Huang has
over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Huang is currently a non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922.
HK).

Mr. XIE Chenguang, aged 58, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Xie joined the
Group in December 1998. He is mainly responsible for providing guidance for
the overall development of the Group and was appointed as a non-executive
director on August 19, 2018.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xie worked several positions, including vice
general engineer and chief of the technical department at Nanjing Sanjian
(Group) Company* (currently known as Nanjing Jiangong Group Co., Limited*)
from October 1983 until November 1998, responsible for construction project
management.

Mr. Xie obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983, and obtained
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 2000. He
subsequently received his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC in
September 2007. He has more than 30 years of experience in the engineering
and real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Xie is currently a chairman and a non-executive director of Yincheng Life
Service, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1922 .HK).
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Executive Directors

Mr. MA Baohua, aged 59, is an executive Director and the President of the
Company. Mr. Ma joined the Group in February 2004. He is mainly responsible for
the overall strategic decisionmaking, business planning and daily operation
management of the Group. He was appointed as an executive director on August
19,2018.

Prior to joining the Group, he worked from March 1986 until he joined the Group in
February 2004 at Nanjing Urban Planning Bureau®, and was deputy director of the
General Management Department, responsible for plan implementation
management work. Prior to that, Mr. Ma worked at the Gulou District Urban
Construction Bureau* (currently known as Gulou District Construction, Real Estate
and Transportation Bureau*) from October 1983 to March 1986, responsible for
urban planning.

Mr. Ma received his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Jinling
Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He then obtained his
bachelor's degree in urban and rural planning and land management from
Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2001, and obtained professional
qualification as a registered urban planner since May 2001. He subsequently
obtained his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from
China Europe International Business School in the PRC in September 2007. He
has over 30 years of experience in the real estate related industry in the PRC.

In 2017, Mr. Ma was recognised as one of the top 100 property managers co-
awarded by Sina Finance, Leju, China Real Estate Association, Shanghai
Securities News and China Entrepreneur Magazine. In January 2021, Mr. Ma was
awarded the "Best Leader Award” at the 2021 Investor Relations Innovation
Summit for Listed Companies and the “Fourth China Excellent IR” Awards
Ceremony, which was organised by Roadshow China.

Mr. Ma is currently a non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922 HK).
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Mr. ZHU Li, aged 47, is an executive Director and the vice President of the
Company. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in July 1995. He is in charge of the
operation of the information centre and marketing of the Group. He was
appointed as an executive director on August 19, 2018.

Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from
Southeast University in the PRC in July 1999, and received his Executive Master
of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School in the PRC in September 2010. He has over 25 years of
experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Zhu is currently a non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922.
HK).

Mr. WANG Zheng, aged 41, is an executive director and vice president of the
company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2003. He is mainly
responsible for the operation of the Group’s Zhejiang regional business and
was appointed as an executive director on August 19, 2018.

Mr. Wang received a diploma in international business administration from
Nanjing Normal University in the PRC in July 2001 and obtained his Real Estate
Brokerage Practise Certificate on 24 June 2009. He subsequently obtained his
Master’'s degree in administrative management from Nanjing Tech University
in June 2014. He has over 15 years of experience in the real estate industry in
the PRC.

Ms. SHAO Lei, aged 39, is an executive director, vice president and financial
director of the company. Ms. Shao joined the Group in July 2004. She is
currently in charge of the Group’s financial capital centre and capital market
centre. She was appointed as an executive director on August 19, 2018.

Ms. Shao received a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Nanjing University
of Finance and Economics in the PRC in June 2004. She obtained professional
qualifications as an accountant in May 2005, and a certified public accountant
in February 2008. She has over 17 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. CHEN Shimin, aged 62, is an independent non-executive director of the
company. Dr. Chen was appointed to join the Group on February 18, 2019, he
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board.

Dr. Chen has been a professor of accounting at China Europe International
Business School in the PRC since August 2008. Prior to his current position, Dr.
Chen worked as assistant professor at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong from August 2005 to August 2008. Dr. Chen also worked as
assistant professor at Lingnan University in Hong Kong from September 1998
to August 2005.

He also served as an independent director of Zhejiang Wolwo Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300357) which is a biopharmaceutical company engaged in the
research of allergic diseases, and the development, production and sales of
treatment products, from January 2011 to January 2017. Dr. Chen also served
as an independent director of Hangzhou Shunwang Technology Co., Ltd*, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300113) which is
principally a service provider for an internet cafe platform, from November
2009 to March 2016, an independent non-executive director of China High
Speed Transmission Equipment Group Co,, Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 658) which is principally engaged in the manufacturing
of high-speed gear transmission equipment in China, from June 2007 to
December 2016, and an independent non-executive director of Hailan
Holdings Limited*, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2278)
which is principally engaged in the development and sales of properties in the
PRC, from June 2016 to December 2018.

Dr. Chen currently serves as an independent non-executive director,
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Huafa Industrial Co,, Ltd. a company engaged in property listed on the independent director

Zhuhai development and operation
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Shanghai Oriental Pearl
Media Co., Ltd.
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recreation and media services
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Place of listing and Position and
Name of Entity Principal business stock code period of time
) FATHE R
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Sun King Power Electronics a company engaged in the listed on the independent

Group Limited

Advanced Micro-Fabrication
Equipment Inc. China
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Postal Savings Bank of China Co,, Ltd.
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Anxin Trust Co., Ltd
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China Fortune Land
Development Co,, Ltd.
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Dr. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in July 1982, and received his
master's degree in economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC in July 1985. He subsequently received a doctor degree
from the University of Georgia in the United States of America in August 1992.
He obtained his professional qualification as a Certified Management
Accountant in January 2008 from the Institute of Management Accountants in
the United States of America. He has over 30 years of experience in the
accounting industry.

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director of
the company. He was appointed to join the Group on February 18, 2019. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board.

Prior to his current position, he was the chief financial officer of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 907) which is primarily engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of eyeglasses from October 2017 to May 2019. He served as a chief
operating officer of CITIC Merchant Co., Limited, a company primarily engaged
in the provision of merchant banking services, from January 2012 to September
2017. Prior to that, Mr. Chan was the responsible officer at Piper Jaffray Asia
Limited, a full-service investment bank, from February 2011 to November 2011.
Mr. Chan also worked from March 2005 to January 2011 at BNP Paribas Capital
(Asia Pacific) Limited, a company primarily engaged in the provision of
investment banking services, and was a managing director of the corporate
finance and Greater China Coverage department at the time of his departure.

From 15 August 2000 to 4 December 2004, Mr. Chan served as an executive
director of Sanyuan Group Limited, a company delisted from the Stock
Exchange in December 2009 (stock code: 140), which was principally engaged
in the research and development of bio-pharmaceuticals. Mr. Chan was
appointed to the board of directors of Sanyuan Group Limited to handle the
restructuring of its business activities and materialising its debt restructuring
plan.

Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor's degree in commerce from the University
of Canterbury in New Zealand in May 1989. He subsequently received his
master’s degree in applied finance from Macquarie University in Australia in
November 1998. Mr. Chan has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (previously known as Hong Kong Society of
Accountants) since July 1993. He obtained his professional qualification as a
Chartered Accountant in November 1992 from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Australia and New Zealand (previously known as Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand). He has over 20 years of experience in the
finance and banking industry.
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Mr. LAM Ming Fai, aged 45, is an independent non-executive director of the
company. Appointed to join the Group on February 18, 2019, he is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.

He is currently a partner of Messrs. D. S. Cheung & Co. specialising in corporate
finance, corporate/commercial and compliance and regulatory matters. Mr.
Lam worked as an associate in the Hong Kong office of Messrs. Sidley Austin
focusing on corporate finance works. Mr. Lam subsequently joined Messrs. DLA
Piper Hong Kong as an associate focusing on corporate finance works and was
promoted to be a partner in 2002.

Mr. Lam graduated with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong and was subsequently admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong in 2001. Mr. Lam has over 20 years of experience in the legal industry in
Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WANG Ke, aged 47, is the vice president of the Group. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in 2016. He is in charge of the Group’s strategic investment centre,
legal monitoring centre and customer relations.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as the head of the Fifth Division of
the Secretary of the General Office of the Nanjing Municipal People’s
Government from April 2012. From August 1998 to March 2012, Mr. Wang
served as the deputy director and director of the Nanjing Planning Bureau.

Mr. Wang graduated with a bachelor's degree in urban planning from the
Department of Architecture of Wuhan University in 1995. He then graduated
with a master’s degree in Human Geography from the Department of City and
Resources of Nanjing University in 1998,

Mr. WU Wei, aged 58, is the Group’s chief engineer and is responsible for the
project management of the Group. Mr. Wu joined the Group in April 2004. He
is mainly responsible for the engineering and procurement management of
the Group and was subsequently appointed as the chief engineer.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu was deputy manager at the time of his
departure at the fifth branch office of Nanjing First Construction Engineering
Group Co. Ltd* from October 1983 to 2004.

Mr. Wu obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He obtained his
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 1999. He has over
14 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
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Ms. LIU Xuegqian, aged 44, is the assistant president of the Group. Ms. Liu
joined the Group in March 2015. She is in charge of R&D, design and cost
management of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, she first served as a manager of the design
management department then later served as the manager of the commercial
management department of Nanjing Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.*, currently
known as China Vanke Co., Ltd.) from September 2008 to March 2015. Prior to
that, Ms. Liu was a project manager at (China Shanghai Architectural Design
and Research Institute Co., Ltd) (Jiangsu Branch Office)* from July 2000 to
August 2008, where she was responsible for architectural design.

Ms. Liu received a bachelor's degree in architecture from the Nanjing Institute
of Architectural Engineering (currently known as Nanjing Tech University) in
the PRC on 3 July 2000. She obtained her professional qualifications as a
National First Class Certified Architect on 22 June 2012 and senior engineer on
13 December 2012. Ms. Liu has over 20 years of experience in architectural
design management.

Company Secretary

Mr. WONG Yu Kit is the company secretary of the Company. He was
appointed on August 6, 2018.

Mr. Wong is currently the president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and
Management from the University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom in
November 2007. After that he obtained a master’'s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong in November 2013 and
became an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Chartered Governance Institute. Mr. Wong has over 10
years of experience in the corporate services field.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
and business practises. The Company’s corporate governance practises are
based on the principles of good corporate governance as set out in the CG
Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied with
the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success
of the Company by providing effective leadership and direction to its business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of its operations. The Board is
responsible for all decision-making in respect of all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control systems, risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other
significant financial and operational matters. The Board has the full support of
the management of the Group to discharge its responsibilities.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions. All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each Director may seek
independent advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
Committees of the Company. Further details of the Board Committees of the
Company are set out below in this corporate governance report.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for all the
Directors and officers of the Group, including company securities, employment
practises, crisis management, investigation, litigation, tax liabilities and public
relation, etc,, which is reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.
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COMPOSITION

The Nomination Committee ensures the composition of the Board has a
balance of skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the business and development of the
Company. The current composition of the Board consists of two (2) NEDs, four
(4) executive Directors and three (3) INEDs. INEDs are responsible for exercising
independent judgment on various Board decisions. The Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2020 were set out below:

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and each of
the NEDs and INEDs has entered into an appointment letter, with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to
the retirement and re-election in accordance to the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the Director or the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Zhu Li, Ms. Shao Lei and Mr. Wang
Zheng will retire from the office of Director and shall, being eligible for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
The Board and the Nomination Committee have recommended the re-election
of all the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the AGM.
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The participation of INEDs in the Board brings a diverse range of expertise, skills
and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's strategies,
performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the
interests of all Shareholders have been duly considered. Each of the INEDs has
confirmed in writing his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Board and the Nomination Committee considered
that all INEDs are independent.

There is a balance of skills and experiences for the Board, which is appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

The list of current Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this report and all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The Company also maintains on its website (www.
yincheng.hk) and on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) an
updated list of current Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills as to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. In connection with the Listing, all the Directors
had received during the year ended 31 December 2020 comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction at time around or before the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of
the Group structure, Board and Board Committee meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Group, etc. and that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and applicable regulatory requirements.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors in
continuous professional development during the year ended 31 December
2020:

TR ESEETREZ 202012 A31HILEF
ELHBETEERNEN

Reading Legal and
Regulatory Updates
Attending and other Reference
Name of Director EEpR Training Courses Materials
BB EHEGI KRR
HEEAIRE kHEM2EZEH
Non-executive Directors FHTES
HUANG Qingping =5 F v v
XIE Chenguang HEX v v
Executive Directors BITES
MA Baohua HIREE v v
ZHU Li KN v v
WANG Zheng T v v
SHAO Lei filiF v v
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES
CHEN Shimin PR - 8¢ v v
CHAN Peng Kuan PRIAES v v
LAM Ming Fai ey v v

Besides, the Company will keep providing information and materials to
develop and update Directors’ knowledge and skills as and when appropriate.
Such information and materials are relevant to the Group's business, corporate
governance, rules and regulations, accounting, financial or professional skills
and/or directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also arrangements in
place for providing continuing professional development to each Director. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense. The company secretary is responsible for keeping records of training
taken by each Director.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should meet
regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year for
reviewing and approving financial statements, operating performance,
budgets, rules and regulations, announcements and circulars issued by the
Company and considering and approving the progress of the various on-going
projects, the overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional
meetings would be arranged if and when required.

Annual meeting schedules of each meeting of the Board and for the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee are
made available to Directors in advance. Board members are provided with all
agenda and adequate information for their review before the meetings. The
Board and Committee members are provided with comprehensive meeting
papers and relevant materials within a reasonable period of time in advance of
the intended meeting date. All Directors and the Committee members are
given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for regular Board and
Committee meetings and/or their meetings, if required. To facilitate the
decision-making process, the Directors and the Committee members are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required.

After the meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and Committee
members for comments. Minutes of Board meetings and Committees’
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors at all times.

Directors and Committee members may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications. Directors and Committee members are
free to contribute and share their views at meetings and major decisions will
only be taken after deliberation at meetings. Directors and Committee
members who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests
in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted in
the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions. For the year ended 31 December 2020, four (4) Board meetings
were held. The individual attendance records of each Director at such Board
meetings and other meetings are set out below:
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Attendance record of Directors at the Board meetings and other meetings held
for the year ended 31 December 2020
BEESZNEE2020F12 A31 B LFEETH

ExgeaRHMSRNHFERTHE

Audit Nomination Remuneration General

Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

Name of Director ESH £ EEe EREEE REZEE FMZEES BREXE
HUANG Qingping &8 F 4/4 4/4 1/1 N/A A>3 A 2/2
XIE Chenguang Eil=9" 4/4 N/A N3 N/A N3 A N/A A>3 A 2/2
MA Baohua E{REE 4/4 N/A N3 A N/A N3 A 11 2/2
ZHU Li KN 4/4 N/A 7~ A N/A 7~ A N/A 7T~ 2/2
WANG Zheng Fik 4/4 N/A N3 N/A N3 A N/A A>3 A 2/2
SHAO Lei a3 4/4 N/A N3 N/A N3 A N/A A>3 A 2/2
CHEN Shimin Bkt 8% 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 2/2
CHAN Peng Kuan  BRIE$5 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 2/2
LAM Ming Fai M pE 4/4 N/A N3 N/A N3 A N/A A>3 A 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2020, one (1) annual general meeting and
one (1) extraordinary general meeting were held.

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring Board approval may be
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions to all Board members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions were
well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written resolutions are
kept by the company secretary and are available for inspection by the Directors
at all times.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board’s chairman throughout the year is Mr. Huang Qingping, being a
NED. Mr. Ma Baohua is the Group's president and an executive Director. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company are
currently delegated to the executive Directors and the senior management of
the Group. Therefore, there is no issue of the role of the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Group being performed by the same
individual and leading to power being concentrated in any one individual.
Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
different aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.yincheng.hk. All Committees should report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations made. All Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 February 2019 with
written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board to
provide independent oversight of the Group's financial reporting and internal
control systems, and the adequacy of the external audits.

The Audit Committee currently consists of two (2) INEDs, namely, Dr. Chen
Shimin and Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, and one (1) NED, namely, Mr. Huang
Qingping. Dr. Chen Shimin currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, the members of the Audit
Committee should meet at least two times a year to consider the budget,
revised budget, interim report and annual report before submission to the
Board and meet the external auditors at least twice a year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee has held four (4)
meetings which were also with the presence of the external auditor. During
the said meetings, the following major tasks were performed:

a. reviewing and discussing the (i) annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019, annual results announcement
and the annual report; (ii) interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2020, interim results
announcement and interim report; (iii) the audit plan and scope for the
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020; and (iv) the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit findings;

b. reviewing and discussing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

C. discussing and recommending the re-appointment of external auditor.

e Rk e

Esazan
EEgERU=-@ZET AE
g %ﬁ@*‘\%é@&ﬁ%iég A
NATRBENER - ﬁi?ﬁ@
AENEmBEEE ZS8E TR
X BT #8 Uk www.hkexnews. hk& PN/NICT I
www.yincheng.hk ° FTEZ B &7EME 5 & EH
HEELRATSIERER - TEZE SR
RHEFRCTERNBITARE WA EEEEX
REEBATERAEBIEEER  BAHLAR
AIEIE -

EZZEE
KATER2019F2 A18HERVEREZES -

,\EEH&$%§QIEETEAE§%X}E&£H;S&$ A) 4
UEER o

Wt B m

=Y

3

ﬂﬁﬁﬁ”@%
%)ﬂnﬂnﬁw

EVZESREZTERE AERVEELE
EPFER TIERAMEIERR - WHRARASE
BABRHNINEEZER -

ERZESRIKAMQ BB LIENITESE (B
PR SIS T REMABEE) M— () RIERITE
F(AIEFFRE) AKX - REBELRETS
BZEeEXR FRELMHRIRTHNEES
EER - BEERZETHNEEHEEE KD
¥ERTAZTFANENECI3G  BELES

ﬁaiﬁiﬁ?tﬁ”ﬁﬂﬂﬁuﬁ?% ' J//\EALX§§
EEHEERE  EBFEE - FHREK

Fif o WEDGFEIMNEZEEIS MK
HZE200F12A31BIEFE  EXEEEE
?ﬁiﬁm( VR G BN EINEAZ AN E -

REMEZES - BT TIATERER

a.  EFMFWOEZ2019F12A3181EF
ERNFELGAVBHRR FEEERE
MER ()EE2020F6 A308 1F /<A
Reh EARGER4R & B IS 3k ~ R EAZEE
NE N ARERRE ¢ (i) B Z 2020512 A 31
HIEFENTELRE PERROBZT
B REBE K (v) $EI%&%WE’J$B%%EE+
[REI R E A AR A 4

b. TR RAKENEREIENRAE
IR R

c A REEERIMNEZERED -

R BIFHER B R A

—q—iiiiﬁ 77



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

B3 B IR ol

The Audit Committee has recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditor, Ernst & Young.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly discharged its
duties and responsibilities for the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fee paid/payable to the auditor
of the Company is as follows:

R#MEE

Nature of services

ERZBRERERINERBE L KGR
T ©

HE200F12A3BIEFE  EE2RAE
“EESERERITEBBEIEE -

¥ BB BN =

HZE20205F 12831 B ILEE > B ERK
NRIZEAZBRANT :

2019
20194
RMB
ARMTT

Audit and other assurance related services

2B N B Ao A% 35 AR R AR 7%

3,800,000

2,800,000

Reporting accountant’s services in relation to issuance B ¥R & &+ EM 4 B3 21T 38 1K H9 R 7%

of circulars
Reporting accountant’s services in relation to Listing

G FHEN AR LT A BRTS =

2,000,000 -
500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 February 2019
with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company's website. The Nomination Committee is delegated
with the authority from the Board to formulate and implement the policy for
nominating Board candidates for election by Shareholders and to assess INEDs'
independence and commitment.

The Company also has a Board Diversity Policy and a Nomination Policy in
place. The Nomination Policy aims at improving the transparency around the
process by setting out the criteria and factors to be taken in account by the
Nomination Committee in selecting and recommending candidates as
Directors (including NEDs and INED(s)).

In identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. A number of factors will be taken
into account, including but not limited to age, skills, regional and industry
experience, cultural and educational background, race, gender and other
qualities. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Nomination Committee
will also take into account factors based on the Company’s own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy have been reviewed and
shall continue to be reviewed on regular basis.
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As to the right to nominate, both the Directors and the Shareholders may
nominate person(s) to be appointed as a Director. Upon assessing the merits
and, for INEDs, their independence, by the Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of two (2) INEDs, namely, Dr. Chen Shimin
and Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, and one (1) NED, namely, Mr. Huang Qingping. Mr.
Huang Qingping currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among
other things, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategies.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, one (1) meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held. It had reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs and reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the Nomination Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18 February 2019
with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board
to establish, review, and make recommendations to the Board on the Group's
remuneration policy and practises. The Remuneration Committee ensures that
all employees and Directors are appropriately remunerated in accordance with
the Group's strategy as well as its long-term and short-term performance.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one (1) executive Director, namely
Mr. Ma Baohua, and two (2) INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Shimin and Mr. Chan Peng
Kuan. Mr. Chan Peng Kuan currently serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, making recommendations to the Board on the
Group's policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for assessing the performance of the Directors
and approving the terms of their service contracts.

The aggregate remuneration (including salaries, allowances, performance-
related bonuses, pension scheme contributions and social welfare, share-based
payment and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB12.3 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and performance of the Group. Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of
the CG Code, the annual remuneration of the senior management (non-
director and non-chief executive) by band for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out below:

EEHMN2EELBRARMYANES -
EENRERARBEARAEENREE
TE o IR ¥EEASTRIA TSN EBI S5 -
HZE2020F 231 HILFERRERRE (EE
ERFEETETHAB)NFETHEESS N
T

Number of employees

Remuneration band HiNEEE EE®E
2019
20194
HK$500,000 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,000 7 7T & 1,000,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 78 7T 2 2

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (4) of them (2019:
four (4)) are the executive Directors and one (1) of them is a NED (2019: one (1)).
Details of the remuneration of each Director and the five individuals with the
highest emoluments in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, one (1) meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. It had reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and
the remuneration package for the Directors and senior management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practises, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practises on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Anglo Chinese, the Company’s compliance adviser, save for the
compliance agreement entered into between the Company and Anglo
Chinese dated 8 June 2018 in connection with the Listing, none of Anglo
Chinese or its directors, employees or close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in the Group as at 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report, which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rule.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited, external service provider, and Mr. Wong Yu Kit has been appointed as
the Company's company secretary. The primary contact person at the
Company whom the service provider can contact is Ms. An Qi, director of
Investor Relations of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the company secretary had taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out on pages 112 to 119 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this report.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code was noted by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains sound risk management and internal control systems
within the Group and to review the effectiveness of the systems.

Such systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
Group's business to an acceptable level, but not eliminating the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility to
oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group on an
on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the systems annually. The
review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Under the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure, the management is responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of risk management and internal control
systems to ensure, amongst others, (i) appropriate policies and control
procedures have been designed and established to safeguard the Group's
assets against improper use or disposal; (i) relevant laws, rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with; and (iii) reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

The Company has an internal audit function which aims at helping the
Company accomplish its objectives by applying a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

The Group's internal control system includes a well-established organisational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-
day departmental operations are entrusted to individual department which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance and is required to operate
its own department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority and
to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the
Company from time to time. Each department is also required to keep the
Board informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular
basis.
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With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted the Inside
Information Policy which governs the disclosure of inside information and
strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information and has communicated
that to all relevant staff. The Board is aware of its obligations to announce any
inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules and conducts the affairs
with reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012. In addition, only the
Directors and delegated officers can act as the Group’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. No incident of non-
compliance of the procedure, and internal controls in the Inside Information
Policy was noted by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The
review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular, the Board
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by discussions with the
management of the Company and the assessment was conducted by the
Board.

The Board noted that, due to the misunderstanding and misinterpretation of
the Listing Rules, the Company has failed to comply with certain requirements
under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for certain transactions
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2020. In order to ensure
timely disclosures of notifiable and connected transactions and compliance
with the Listing Rules in the future, the Company plans to adopt measures for
the review and modification of its internal control system, and the results of
which shall be announced in due course. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company published or to be published on or around 30
April 2021.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group's
business, performance and strategies.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company
and the Directors always make efforts to fully address any questions raised by
the Shareholders at the annual general meetings of the Company. The
chairman of the Board will attend the annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The auditor of the Company will also attend the
annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit.

A notice convening the AGM shall be sent to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals

Pursuant to the Articles, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings. Any one or more members of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a written requisition
(the "Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 4502, 45/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the company secretary.
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The Requisition must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, the reason(s) to convene an EGM, the
agenda proposed to be included, the details of the business(es) proposed to
be transacted in the EGM, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned. The
Eligible Shareholder(s) must prove his/her/their shareholding in the Company
to the satisfaction of the Company.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the shareholding
of the Eligible Shareholder will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM within 2 months
and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the contrary, if
the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an EGM and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the
Eligible Shareholder at the EGM.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are
available on the website of the Company.

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to its principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 4502,
45/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong or such
other means of contact as set out in the website of the Company from time to
time.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business, performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board, the chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings and other general meetings to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a Dividend Policy in effect. The Dividend Policy sets out the
factors that the Board will take into account in deciding the declaration of
interim dividends, special dividends and final dividends. The Dividend Policy
aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the
Shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions relating to
the Company.

The dividend that the Directors may recommend or declare in respect of any
particular financial year or period will be subject to the Group's operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition,
contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future development
requirements, Shareholders’ interests and other factors which the Directors
may deem relevant at such time.

No arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividends was made by the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The existing Articles were adopted on 18 February 2019 and became effective
on 6 March 2019.

A copy of the Articles is posted on the designated website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.yincheng.hk).

There had been no changes to the Articles for the year ended 31 December
2020.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Qingping
Chairman and non-executive Director
29 March 2021
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 March 2019. The Company and its
subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation plan as set
out in the Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group were involved in property
development, hotel operations and property investment.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. A review and
analysis of the Group’s performance, including details of its material
acquisitions and disposals, for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections in this annual report. For future business development, the Group will
continue to focus on its existing property development business and acquire
high-quality land parcels in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis in China. Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Subsequent Events” in this annual
report, the Group has no significant events after the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
of this annual report. A financial summary of the Group for the five years ended
31 December 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively as extracted from
the published audited financial statements have been set out on pages 275 to
276 in this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of final dividend of HK$0.0306 per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$0.0232 per Share). The
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid in or about July 2021 following
Shareholders” approval at the AGM. The Company will make announcement
regarding the exact payment date of the final dividend as and when
appropriate in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces, among others, the following principal risks and uncertainties:
(i) uncertainty as to obtaining adequate financing to fund the Group's projects
and future development; (i) uncertainty as to business expansion into new
cities and regions; (iii) risks relating to the performance of the PRC property
markets; (iv) uncertainty as to acquiring desired land reserves for development
at locations suitable for the Group's development and at acceptable prices; (v)
risks relating to profitability of property projects; (vi) risks relating to fluctuation
in cost such as construction materials and labour costs; and (vii) risks relating to
the government policies and regulations affecting the PRC property markets.

For details of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Factors” in the Prospectus, and for details of the financial
risks and the related risk management policies and practises used by the
Group, please refer to note 43 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies” to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2020 in the
share capital of the Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the amounts and movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's aggregate reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB930.8 million
(2019: RMB817.0 million).
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NOTES ISSUE

Details of the issue and sale of the senior notes by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Notes
Issue” in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue derived from the Group's
largest customer accounted for approximately 0.4% (2019: approximately 0.9%)
of the Group's total revenue for the year; whereas, revenue derived from the
Group's five largest customers accounted for less than 30% at approximately
0.8% (2019: approximately 1.7%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

During the year, purchases from the Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 6.1% (2019: approximately 9.0%) of the Group's total purchases
for the year; whereas, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% at approximately 23.4% (2019: approximately
25.8%) of the Group's total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year under review, that any of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
who owns more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital), had any
interests in any of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group
for the year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance practises as adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report “ on
pages 71 to 86 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising the
negative impact of the Group’s existing business activities on the environment
and complying with the applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The administrative procedures in relation to environmental protection for
property development projects may vary depending on the practise of the
local government authorities. For cities such as Zhenjiang, each of the Group’s
property projects must undergo an environmental impact assessment; and the
Group shall submit the relevant environmental impact study report to the
environmental authorities for approval before commencement of construction
of our projects, and submit the relevant environmental impact analysis table to
the environmental authorities for record-filing. For cities such as Nanjing and
Hangzhou, the Group submits the relevant environmental impact table for
construction projects to the environmental authorities for record-filing. Upon
completion of each property construction, pursuant to the Administrative
Regulations on the Environmental Protection of Construction Projects and
other relevant laws and regulations, the environmental protection facilities are
subject to corresponding checks and acceptance procedures.

Under the Group’s standard construction contracts, the Group requires its
contractors to strictly comply with the relevant environmental and safety laws
and regulations. The Group's legal and audit department and human resources
and administration centre also provide trainings to other departments on the
updates in PRC environmental laws and regulations.

None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or penalties
associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations since the
commencement of their operations during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions as set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which is to be issued within five
months after the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. To the best
of the Company’s knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
published or to be published on or around 30 April 2021 and in this annual
report, the Group is not aware of any non-compliance in any material respect
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in the Listing Rules are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Zhu Li, Ms.
Shao Lei and Mr. Wang Zheng will retire from the office of Director and shall,
being eligible for re-election at the AGM, offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of all the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 63 to 70 of this report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that
all the INEDs as independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and each of
the NEDs and INEDs has entered into an appointment letter, with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
the Director or the Company.

Pursuant to the individual service contracts or, as the case may be,
appointment letters, each of the executive Directors and the NEDs is entitled to
a fixed amount of emolument and discretionary bonus to be determined by
the Board. For the INEDs, pursuant to the then individual appointment letters,
each of them is entitled to a fixed director’s fee.

All of the executive Directors’ service contracts and the NEDs' and INEDs' letters
of appointment entered between the Company and the respective Director
has been reviewed and ratified by the Nomination Committee. None of the
Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 880 (2019: 927) employees. The
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated by the
Remuneration Committee based on their merit, qualifications and competence.
It is the Group's policy to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The
Group has a system for measuring employees’ performance against agreed-
upon goals with specific performance standards. Performance discussion is
carried out on an ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least
once a year to review employees’ overall performance, achievements, and
areas in need of improvement. Salary review will be based on both Group's
performance and individual performance and subject to the Group's discretion.

The Group entered into labour contracts with all of its employees. The Group
offers its employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. To incentivize its employees and promote the long-term growth of
the Company, the Group had adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme’). Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
sections headed "Director’s report — Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report.

The emoluments of the Directors are generally decided by the Remuneration
Committee and then recommended to the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. All
the emoluments of Directors have been reviewed and approved or ratified by
the Remuneration Committee.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, no amount was paid to
the Directors or the five highest paid individuals, as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group. In addition, no compensation was paid to the Directors or
past Directors for the same period in connection with the loss of office as a
director of any member of the Group or of any other office in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors or the five highest paid employees
of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 18 February 2019, the Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved
and adopted by the then Shareholders of the Company and its implementation
is conditional on the Listing. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a means of incentivising or rewarding the
Participants (as defined below) for their contributions or potential contributions
to the Group, and to motivate employees to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Company and attract and retain an on-going
relationship with participants whose contribution are or will be beneficial to
the long-term growth of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at
any time within the period of 10 years after the adoption date, being 18
February 2019 to 17 February 2029, to grant options to, among others, any
director or employee of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Participant’).

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any Participant in
circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules
or by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified to
the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval of
the Company's results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim period;
and (i) the deadline for the Company to an announcement of its annual results
or half-year, or quarterly or other interim period (whether or not required under
the Listing Rules); and ending on the date of actual publication of such results
announcement.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share
option schemes existing at such time of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 141,704,813 Shares (representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as of the Listing Date, the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"), which represents approximately 9.8% of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the date of this annual report (based on the total number of Shares
inissue as at the date of this annual report, i.e,, 1,446,962,138 Shares).
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to any Participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12 month period shall not
at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue, unless otherwise
separately approved by Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted more than
10 years after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to a
Participant but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of
an option granted to them.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2020, no option under
the Share Option Scheme has been granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and directors
of the Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding
Limited, being the Controlling Shareholders, have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to the
Company under a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition’) entered into between the Controlling Shareholders and the
Company dated 20 February 2019 during the period under review. Details of
the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with
by the Controlling Shareholders during the period under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PROVISION
OF SERVICES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in note 40 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, there were no contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by any Controlling Shareholder or substantial
Shareholder or any of the subsidiaries or companies controlled by any
Controlling Shareholder or substantial Shareholder, which subsisted at the end
of or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in note 40 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, there were no transaction, arrangement, or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party
and in which any Director or any entities connected with a Director, the
controlling Shareholders, the substantial Shareholders had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which are (a) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard dealings by Directors as referred to the Model Code, were as
follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares N/ ZHFE

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding

interest

Number of in the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares (hote7)

KA R R E

EEnE EEME BRHHE BHABED

(Wi#7)

Mr. Huang Qingping e Interest in controlled corporation 539,089,534 37.26%
EN=R e S R EE R

Mr. Xie Chenguang *et? Interest in controlled corporation 78,085,490 5.40%
A= e S HE aE2) R EE R

Mr. Ma Baohua ®ore3) Interest in controlled corporation 71,919,056 497%
FEARZE ST A ) R EE R

Mr. Zhu Lj (Nete4 Interest in controlled corporation 36,192,609 2.50%
oK 7 5 A e R EE R

Mr. Wang Zheng ®ete? Interest in controlled corporation 10,627,861 0.73%
F R o A i) R EE R

Ms. Shao Lei More® Interest in controlled corporation 10,627,861 0.73%
BB 2 4 (ize) R EE R

RARREBARAT
e
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Notes:

Q) Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of each of Silver Huang
Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by each of Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited
under the SFO.

2) Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited
under the SFO.

(3) Mr. Ma Baohua is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Ma Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Ma Holding Limited under
the SFO.

4) Mr. Zhu Li is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Li Holding Limited and is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Li Holding Limited under the SFO.

(5) Mr. Wang Zheng is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Wang Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Wang Holding
Limited under the SFO.

6) Ms. Shao Lei is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Shao Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Shao Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(7) The percentage shareholding interest was calculated based on the total number of
Shares inissue as at 31 December 2020, i.e. 1,446,962,138 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had registered an interest or
short position in any Shares or underlying Shares and/or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares and Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report was the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies a party to any arrangement which would enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2020, the following persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company whose interests are disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” above) have interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares R Z2HFE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
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Number of in the Company
Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares (Notes)
RAA R R RE
TERRBE LB EEME BRHHE BHABED
(Wfats)
Silver Huang Holding Limited " ” Beneficial owner 517,833,810 35.79%
Silver Huang Holding Limited 1 Ema A
Silver Dai Holding Limited ®e«? Beneficial owner 187,777,351 12.98%
Silver Dai Holding Limited "2/ EmHEAA
Mr. Dai Chengshu 2 Interest in controlled corporation 187,777,351 12.98%
B E ST ) Ry EE R
Silver Zhu Holding Limited ®ee3 Beneficial owner 101,730,089 7.03%
Silver Zhu Holding Limited "3/ EmHEAA
Mr. Zhu Linnan ®ete3) Interest in controlled corporation 101,730,089 7.03%
SRR 5 A () Ry EE R
Silver Xie Holding Limited ®te? Beneficial owner 78,085,490 5.40%
Silver Xie Holding Limited 4 EmHEAA
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Notes:

Q) Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Huang Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Huang Holding
Limited under the SFO.

(2) Mr. Dai Chengshu is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Dai Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Dai Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(3) Mr. Zhu Linnan is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Zhu Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Zhu Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(4) Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited
under the SFO.

(5) The percentage shareholding interest was calculated based on the total number of
Shares inissue as at 31 December 2020, i.e. 1,446,962,138 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors were not aware
of any other person who had or deemed to have interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares which has disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them, their or any of their executors or administrators, shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices
or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own
fraud or dishonesty. Such provision shall be in force from the Listing Date. The
Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance that provides appropriate
cover for the Directors.
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COMPETING INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Yincheng Real Estate” and
"Delineation of Business” in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus, during the year ended 31
December 2020, none of the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders or their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is interested in any business
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group nor any conflicts of interest which has or may have with
the Group of interests with the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total bank and other borrowings of
RMB12,148.2 million, compared with RMB10,500.0 million as at 31 December
2019. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

The details are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Interest-Bearing Bank
and Other Borrowings” of this annual report.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year end 31 December 2020 was the Company, or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right
to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. No equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Anglo Chinese, the Company’s compliance adviser, save for the
compliance agreement entered into between the Company and Anglo
Chinese dated 18 June 2018 in connection with the Listing, none of Anglo
Chinese or its directors, employees or close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in the Group as at 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report, which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rule.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board Committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are published on
the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at www.yincheng.hk.

All the Committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at the
Company's expense.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In connection with the Listing, on 6 March 2019, 354,262,000 Shares were
issued at a price of HK$2.38 per Share and 1,058,534,993.4660 new Shares were
issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus). On 3
April 2019, as a result of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the
Prospectus) being partially exercised, 29,914,000 new Shares were allotted and
issued at the price of HK$2.38 per Share. The total net proceeds raised from the
global offering (including the issuance of Shares pursuant to the partial
exercise of the Over-allotment Option), after deducting all the underwriting
commissions, transaction levy and trading fee (as applicable) and all other
listing expenses in connection with the global offering, was approximately
HK$855.8 million.

The details of use of proceeds by the Group are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital
Resources — Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering” of this annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Yincheng Real Estate and Yincheng Life Service are owned as to approximately
53.11% and 38.91%, respectively, by Mr. Huang Qingping, who is a non-
executive Director and one of the Controlling Shareholders. As such, Yincheng
Real Estate, Yincheng Life Services and their respective subsidiaries are
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Nanjing Yinjiaan Trading Co., Ltd.*
(“Nanjing Yinjiaan") and Nanjing Yincheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.* ("Nanjing Yincheng"), each being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, have entered into the following pledge transactions
(collectively, the "Deposit Pledges”) as financial assistance offered to
subsidiaries of Yincheng Real Estate, which constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules:
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Transaction amount for
the year ended 31
Description of connected transactions Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement Term December 2020
HZE2020512A31H
HERZ &R SEBH CIEEED AR LEEXSEH
1. Nanjing Yincheng agreed to pledge its Pledge agreement 7 December 2020 () Nanjing Yincheng;and  From 7 December 2020 to RMB730,000,000
deposits in the savings account maintained (i) the Industrial Bank 7 February 2021
with Industrial Bank Co, Ltd, Nanjing West
Beijing Road branch* (the “Industrial
Bank'") as security for full repayment of the
facility granted by such bank to Nanjing
Langchu Material Trading Co,, Ltd*
(‘Nanjing Langchu’)
HRBHRAEEREREERTRNE ERER 202061278 0 FREHE K 200%12A78% AR 7300000007
RAF AR R AT ([ EERT]) (i) EERIT 202162A78
HUMBRERFPNER  (FATHEER
ZEOTRERATNEESERRA
([ERBH ) KR AN ER
2. Nanjing Yinjiaan agreed to pledge its Pledge guarantee 11 December 2020 () Nanjing Yinjiaan; and From 11 December 2020 to RMB500,000,000
structured deposits maintained with the agreement (i) Bankof Jiangsu the date of full repayment
Bank of Jiangsu Co,, Ltd* (the "Bank of of such facility granted to
Jiangsu’) as security for full repayment of Nanjing Langchu
the facility granted by such bank to Nanjing
Langchu
BRBEZRAZERENIHROTRND EREREA 00FERANE () BREER: R 82020512811 BRE AR 5000000007
BRAF (CIRERT]) FENGERILT (i) ITERRIT 2RERAERA
Ho ERZBITMARANRLRES RtmEnREAIE
FEEELER
3. Nanjing Yincheng agreed to pledge its Pledge agreement 16 December 2020 () Nanjing Yincheng;and  From 16 December 2020 to RMB500,000,000
deposits in the savings account maintained (i) the Industrial Bank 16 March 2021
with the Industrial Bank as security for full
repayment of the facility granted by such
bank to Nanjing Langchu
BRBBAEEMENEERORUL EAER 00F 12816 () BRER: R 2005 128168E AR 5000000007

FERPHOEN - (EATHEEZLRT (i)
MERAR L RANER

BERIT

20216378168
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Transaction amount for

the year ended 31
Description of connected transactions Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement Term December 2020
BZE2020512A31H
BERSHE &R aRBEH BRTNE AR LFERZEHE
4. Nanjing Yinjiaan agreed to pledge its Pledge guarantee 21 December 2020 () Nanjing Yinjiaan; and From 21 December 2020 to RMB500,000,000
structured deposits maintained with the agreement (i) Bankof Jiangsu the date of full repayment of

Bank of Jiangsu as security for full

such facility granted to

repayment of the facility granted by such Nanjing Tepuna
bank to Nanjing Tepuna Trading Co,, Ltd.*
('Nanjing Tepuna’)
BRRERAREALEIHRTEE ERAERAR 200512A218 () ERBEZR B2020F 12811 BEE AR 5000000007
MEBRER  ERZBIMERES (i) TTHERIRTT 2REENERBHN
MESERRA ([BEREHEH) R LR RtgEnRSALE
BNERERER
5. Nanjing Yincheng agreed to pledge its Pledge agreement 23 December 2020 () Nanjing Yincheng;and  From 23 December 2020 to RMB400,000,000
deposits in the savings account maintained (i) the Industrial Bank 23 March 2021
with the Industrial Bank as security for full
repayment of the facility granted by such
bank to Nanjing Langchu
BARBBRASERAREERTHLY EHRAR 20206128238 () EREH R 2020F12A238% AR ¥ 4000000007
FRERPNER  ERTEEEZRT (i) EERT 2021 F3A3H
MERANR LA AN ER
6. Nanjing Yincheng agreed to pledge its Bank of Hangzhou Co, Ltd. 29 December 2020 () Nanjing Yinjiaan; and From 29 December 2020 to RMB300,000,000
structured deposits maintained with the pledge agreement (i) Bank of Hangzhou the date of full repayment
Bank of Hangzhou Co, Ltd,, Nanjing branch* of such facility granted to
(the "Bank of Hangzhou'") as security for Nanjing Juxin
full repayment of the facility granted by
such bank to Nanjing Juxin Material Trading
Co, Ltd* ('Nanjing Juxin")
BRREZAREALENMBRTRG MNBITRABERE  200F128298 () BEREER: R B2020F 12 A29ARE AR 3000000007
BRAFNERAT((RMNRTDEEN  ERAR (i) HMERIT 2RERAEREORE
HERUEY  FAZBOMERELY BEMBHARILE
BEHERAR(ERBL])KLEE
HEREEER
Compliance with the Listing Rules BFEmRA

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) for the provision of the
first deposit pledge on 7 December 2020 exceeds 25% but is less than 100%,
such provision, on a standalone basis, constituted a major and connected
transaction of the Company which should have been subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent Shareholders” approval requirements under
Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) for the provision of each
of the Deposit Pledges except the first deposit pledge on 7 December 2020,
exceeds 5% but is less than 25%, each of such other Deposit Pledges, on a
standalone basis, constituted a discloseable and connected transaction of the
Company which should have been subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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As all Deposit Pledges were provided for the benefit of subsidiaries of Yincheng
Real Estate, such provisions would be aggregated for the purpose of
computing the relevant percentage ratios pursuant to Rule 14.22 and Rule
14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio for the provision of all Deposit
Pledges on an aggregate basis, exceeds 25%, such provisions constituted a
major and connected transaction of the Company which should have been
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Due to the misunderstanding and misinterpretation of the Listing Rules that
the provision of the above Deposit Pledges would not have fallen within the
ambit of Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Company failed
to comply with the requirements under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in a timely manner. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company published or to be published on or around 30 April 2021 for further
details.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has entered into the
following transactions with the Yincheng Real Estate Group and/or the
Yincheng Life Service Group, which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and has on the dates indicated in the table
below entered into written agreements with Yincheng Real Estate and/or
Yincheng Life Service to govern such continuing connected transactions:
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TEBBARKSSHET -
AREI0EETLR
AEB610EET

Transaction amount
Description of continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Dateof agreement  Parties toagreement ~ Term Annual cap 31December 2020
EZ20205128318
FEBERS 2EL i HERE [iE AR MR EELR LEEZREH
Yincheng Real Estate agreed to grant to the  Trademark Licensing 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;  From the Listing Date to N/A. On royalty N/A. On royalty
Group non-transferrable licence to use Agreement and the expiry date of the — free basis — free basis
several trademarks registered in the PRC and (2) the Company relevant trademark
in Hong Kong registration
PHMERERTAEEAIERS  BRIIHE W9F2A1BE () PHE: R BrmHERE TEf « Bef TEf - e f
AR NERENEEEMERSE 2 AR B EREMER B 4 RREEE RRERE
AR
Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to Master Hotel Services 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate; ~ From the Listing Date Will not exceed RMB2.2 million,  Approximately
provide to the Group hotel accommodation, ~ Agreement and until 31 December 2021 RMB2.6 million and RMB2,276,000
conference facilities and catering services in (2) the Company RMB4.0 million for each of
return for service fees the three years ending
31 December 2021,
respectively
PHHESERERASRERMEEE EERBEGE W9F2A18E (1) BHE: R BrmHSRE HZ01%12A8318 MARE 22760007
B SRARERERRE - NARRE 2 AR\ 2021%F 128318 L=EFEEERAH
2 TEBARE B8
ARE26BELR
ARKA0EST
Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to Vehicle Rental 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate; ~ From the Listing Date Will not exceed RMBO.42 million, ~ Approximately
provide two vehicles for the Group's daily Agreement and until 31 December 2021 RMB0.42 million and RMB420,000
business operations in return for a monthly (2) the Company RMBO.42 million for each of
rental of RMB35,000 (inclusive of insurance the three years ending
fees) 31 December 2021,
respectively
RIMESERERTEEANARER NERERE W9F2R188 (1) BHHE: R g rTASER BZ01412A318 HAR 400007
BEREMEAE  EREAEEA 2 AR\ 21E12A318 L=EFERERAH
RE 350007 (BREE) TRBAREILEET
AEEOQEETLR
ARBLEET
The Group agreed to lease from Yincheng  First Master Property 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate; ~ From the Listing Date Will not exceed RMBS.60 million, - Approximately
Real Estate certain offices situated at 19thto  Lease Agreement and until 31 December 2021 RMBS.60 million and RMB4,546,000
21st Floor, Block A, Yincheng Plaza, 289 (2) the Company RMBS.60 million for each of
Jiangdongbeilu, Nanjing, the PRC with total the three years ending
GFA of 2,870 sq.m. with a monthly rental of 31 December 2021,
RMB377,883 (inclusive of management fees) respectively
and 160 car parking spaces situated at the
basement of Yincheng Plaza, 289
Jiangdongbeilu, Nanjing, the PRC with a
monthly rental of RMB88,000 (inclusive of
management fees)
TEERERBICEREUNTER F-HNFEEL  2009F2A1BE (1) BHHE: R BLTAMEE BE021F12A318 MARRE 45460007
RLRILBWOFRIESAEI9ED i @ AAF 2:1F 128318 IF=EFERERDH
BOETHER(RREAEA280T TEBARBESOBEET
R BREEAAREI8TL(E ARESOESTR
ERE)) RANTEERIRILH 289 ARHSEOEET
FRABSHEN 60 ESM(5ARS
AARKSB00TL(RERE))
Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to lease  Second Master 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;  From the Listing Date until Will not exceed RMB48.55 million, - Approximately
from the Group the properties whichareto  Property Lease and 31 December 2021 RMB69.10 million and RMB16,360,000
be used as gymnastic centre, long-term Agreement (2) the Company RMB69.10 million for each of
leasing apartments and elderly home, the three years ending
respectively (Note) 31 December 2021,
respectively
FINELEARERASERENS - E-MONEEEL  009F281BF () FHHE R gEmASEE BZ01F12A318 HARH 16360000 7C
BANEEARERSDL  RED  BE @2 ARE 2001128318 L=EEERFRD
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Transaction amount
Description of continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Dateof agreement  Parties toagreement ~ Term Annual cap 31 December 2020
EZ20205128318
FERERS 2EL i HERS [iE AR MR EELR LEEZRSH
6. Yincheng Real Estate agreed to provide Master Property 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;  From the Listing Date until Will not exceed RMB45.94 million,  Aggregated with the
property management services in respect of  Management and 31 December 2021 RMB75.12 million and transaction amount
the unsold property units and the sold Services Agreement (2) the Company RMB76.80 million for each of under the New Master
property units prior to the agreed delivery the three years ending Property Management
date as set out on the property purchase 31 December 2021, Services Agreement,
contract for projects developed by the respectively approximately
Group including maintaining sales offices of RMB32,902,000
property projects of the Group
RIMERENASEMFARERNY NEERRER WI9F2ABE (1) FRHE R BLHEESEE HZ01F12A318 EHYEERRBE
(BEAOFABERNRHANRAE B 2 ARF 2215128318 IF=AFERERHH ez TR 53
ENEBLREENZBARMNEE TEBARBSUEEBT A8
ER BEARASENZREHE ARENESTR AE#329020007C
hER AR¥T7680EST
7. Yincheng Life Service agreed to provide o New Master Property 21 October 2019 (1) Yincheng Life Service;  From 6 November 2019 until  Will not exceed RMBA45.94 million,  Aggregated with the
the Group the property management Management Services and 31 December 2021 RMB75.12 million and transaction amount
services as originally provided by Yincheng ~ Agreement (2) the Company RMB76.80 million for each of under the Master
Real Estate under the Master Property the three years ending Property Management
Management Services Agreement 31 December 2021, Services Agreement,
respectively approximately
RMB32,902,000
PHAZRERAEAAEERARER TNEEERKE 2019510808 () FWEERB R B019F11B6ARE #Z00F128318 BNEERRFLIGE
NEEBRBGRBETRRWERE  BE @ ARF 1F 128318 IF=EEERFHAT TERSEAH
HEERRE TEBARBSHBEET - AARK329020007T
ARE7NESTR
ARET680E 8T
8. Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to Master Marketing 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;  From the Listing Date until Will not exceed RMB16.0 million, ~ Approximately
provide marketing and sales services, and Sales Services and 31 December 2021 RMB25.6 million and RMB13,816,000
including but not limited to providing Agreement (2)  the Company RMB40.0 million for each of
market and sales services to the on-site sales the three years ending
office of the Group 31 December 2021,
respectively
PIMESERERATEREHR  THEREHRBE 2019528188 (1) HWHE: R BLHEHEE #Z00F128318 MARK 138160007
% ARETRAAASERSHER HiE @ ARF W1F128318 IF=BEERFHAT
FRRETEREERE TRBARE0EET
ARES6EETLR
ARE400EET
Note: Since 3 April 2019, part of the properties which is used as gymnastic centre has been fizE : B2019F 4 A3 HE  WAEESF LI Y

leased to the Yincheng Life Service Group.

Compliance with the Listing Rules:
1. Trademark Licensing Agreement

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group on a
royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Trademark Licensing
Agreement falls within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Master Hotel Services Agreement

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the aggregated annual caps in relation to the hotel services is
expected to be less than 0.1%, the transactions under the Master Hotel
Services Agreement will be exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Vehicle Rental Agreement

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the aggregated annual caps in relation to the Vehicle Rental
Agreement is expected to be less than 0.1%, the transactions under the
Vehicle Rental Agreement will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

First Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the First Master Property Lease
Agreement is expected to be less than 5%, the transactions under the
First Master Property Leasing Arrangement will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Second Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the Second Master Property
Lease Agreement is expected to be less than 5%, the transactions under
the Second Master Property Leasing Agreement will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Master Property Management Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the Master Property
Management Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an
annual basis, the transactions under the Master Property Management
Services Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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/. New Master Property Management Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the New Master Property
Management Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an
annual basis, the transactions under the New Master Property
Management Services Agreement will be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

8. Master Marketing and Sales Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios for the Master Marketing and
Sales Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions under the Master Marketing and Sales Services
Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

In respect of the transactions under the First Master Property Lease
Agreement, Second Master Property Lease Agreement, Master Property
Management Services Agreement and Master Marketing and Sales
Services Agreement which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement, pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the
Listing Rules, the Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted, waivers exempting the Company from strict compliance with
the announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
subject to the condition that the aggregate amounts of such continuing
connected transactions for each financial year shall not exceed the
relevant amounts set forth in the respective annual caps stated above.

For further details of the continuing connected transactions as
mentioned above, please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

The continuing connected transactions (except for the granting of trademark
licence under the Trademark Licensing Agreement) as mentioned above also
constitute related party transactions of the Company under the IFRS(s), details
of which are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Save for the transactions disclosed above, the other related party transactions
as set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transaction which require
reporting, announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all the INEDs have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practise Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company, who will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

A notice convening the AGM will be published and dispatched to the
Shareholders as soon as practicable in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules. The record date and closure of books for
the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM and to receive proposed final dividend will be announced in due
course.
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All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report
form part of this annual report.

Notes:

In this annual report, English names of PRC entities marked “*" are translations of their Chinese
names for identification only. If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names and

their English translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.

Amounts and percentage figures included in this annual report, including information
presented in thousands or millions of units, have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, totals of rows or columns of numbers in tables may not be equal to the apparent

total individual items.
By order of the Board
Huang Qingping

Chairman

Nanjing, 29 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

WA TR

Ernst & Young

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yincheng
International Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 120 to 274, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended 31 December 2020, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

WA TR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

FBREXEIE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERBRPONEERARERSEE

Revenue recognition from property development projects (“PDP”)

EERZER ([FHERZFEE )2 Wm iR

Most of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 was derived from PDP. Revenue from PDP is recognised
when all of the following criteria have been met:
EEEBE2020F 12431 BIEFEHABIKERER
FiERZEIER - BESEENATHAERGHEERER
SR Hh 2E 7R 35 7E B Y AR

(i) thesale and purchase agreement has been signed;
) EEEEREHH:

(i) the related deposit has been received and the
arrangements for the settlement of the remaining
proceeds have been confirmed; and

(ih BUWBEBESBECERRRMSRBENENE
R

(i) the property has been handed over to the buyer, as
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.

(i) MECRBEEHRZOEIMNTED °

We identified the recognition of revenue for PDP as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the Group and any small
errors in the recognition of revenue, in aggregate, for each
property development project could have a material impact on
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020.
EELEFEHEREABNNEBRA RBEREREE
AREHEMZERANKRY BSEENEEN - UK
BEFMERMEIR R HE WA ER L EFAR/ N ERE
mEBRATAEY BEEHZ2020F12 31 BIEFENR
NMEEBATE -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the revenue
recognition are included in notes 2.4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BAR R TR ST BOR MR BE H N AR & B makMiar24
5.
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue for PDP
included the following:

EEREHEREIRRNBRERNETEFBEATERF

(i) evaluating the design, implementation of operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the recording of
revenue for PDP;

() FHEERFMERIER RS EREENER AT
B RETAMETTA ML

(i) inspecting the terms of the standard sale and purchase
agreements for the sale of PDP to assess the Group's revenue
recognition policies for the sale of PDP, with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

(ih L BEEEHEHEFMERZBEBENREEEHZK
F o LARHE EEEAHHEEFRMEREIRE KRS

RBEREBNERITIERNEL

(i) inspecting, on a sample basis, the sales of PDP recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020, sale and purchase
agreements and the documents which indicated that the
properties were physically possessed or the legal titles of the
properties were obtained by the buyers and assessing
whether the related revenue had been recognised in
accordance with the Group’'s revenue recognition
accounting policies; and

(i) FEZE20205F12 831 AL FEERNFHERZEIER
HE MEREEEWARAIAZANEEEREER
THRBERETERGYMREEMBRENME - UK
ERAKREESEERR EXENKREBERASTEE
HR R

(iv) inspecting, on a sample basis, the documents to check
whether the related revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.

(v) fEmEXH  AREHERSRSERENT S
EIRERR o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

3 7 A% Bl e o

BAREXEHE )
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERBERP NN EEEARERSE

Provision for land appreciation tax

B ER B

The Group is a property developer in Mainland China focusing
on the development of residential properties and the
development, operation and management of commercial and
mixed-use properties. Land appreciation tax (“LAT") in Mainland
China was one of the main components of the Group’s taxation
charge. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on the appreciation of
land value. As at 31 December 2020, the management of the
Group estimated the provision for LAT based on their
understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax rules and
regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties less
total deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for
land use rights, property development costs, borrowing costs
and development expenditure. Provision for LAT in Mainland
China was significant to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group and involved significant management'’s
judgement and interpretation of the relevant tax provisions.
Accordingly, provision for LAT was identified as a key audit
matter.

BEEERRXTEAMNEHERER  TIXNFEEE
EMEARFAE KEREERERGAREYE -+
BAe IR ER ([ THIBER DA EREREX

HEEZAKI D 2 —  MEHEN T HIBET TR
30% Z 60% HY 2 1§ K 4 1 i 18 E AU - 720204512

A318 - BESEEEEREESEBEREERERD
BR R - i E R R ET 3 5 B AR AT
MEAXEE(PELERAENEEER  FHERE
A~ AR R RERS) (ERET o NP BRAHA -
HIZEHEES BESENGEUBEHREMEBEX

Wb R E IR B E AR S B AR EAH B k2R o Al -

T IS ETR B ERER A HREEZEIE -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the provision for
LAT were included in note 3 and note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements

B tHIERET RGNS
FMHEE3 R FEE 10 ©

AR R BEH N R E PR

We assessed and evaluated the design and operating effectiveness
of the key controls of management in the calculation of the
provision for land appreciation tax.
FEHFEEMFEEEERAE LR ET B EROBRIE
e R EH RBTT A RIE

We involved our internal tax specialists to assist us to perform a
review on the LAT position, including the review of the estimates
and assumptions used by the Group and the evaluation of tax
exposure based on communications with the relevant tax
authorities and by applying our knowledge and experience. We
also recalculated the tax computation and compared our
calculations with the amounts recorded by the Group.

EEZEABBHEERGH TSR T HIZERAANR - B
G Exl@%m%#&F“M&ﬁﬁﬁH@MW%%m
BBYEAESNAHMERFEREER - BFTEEH
AEREEER  URESNELERE EREEEN

SEAMEITILE o

We assessed the disclosures related to the provision for land
appreciation tax in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
EEE2ERTEERINRE LR
HIE(E T A RO PR ©

BYBHRERABRL
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WA TR

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

3 7 A% Bl e o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

WA TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

11 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's
report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%k o 18 i B LAt 2 T L i

Year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 831 BILFE

2019
20194
Notes RMB'000
B 5T ARETTT
REVENUE g 5 10,679,634 9,092,472
Cost of sales $HE BN (9,522,203) (7,613,165)
GROSS PROFIT EF 1,157,431 1,479,307
Other income and gains HE AU Rz 5 64,773 65,800
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HEAX (258,419) (294,980)
Administrative expenses TERX (226,693) (292,408)
Other expenses HitnFZ (20,142) (22,828)
Fair value gains on investment properties S EMEN AT ERE 125,670 106,300
Finance costs BRI 7 (202,330) (166,991)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMR R R B 1S -
Joint ventures BEME (9,879) (15,440)
Associates /NG 43,988 81,369
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AT SRR 6 674,399 940,129
Income tax expense it x 10 (288,255) (579,769)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERREF 386,144 360,360
Attributable to: THEIEREG :
Owners of the parent ISYNSETZE PN 182,627 150,309
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 203,517 210,051
386,144 360,360
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A" A R EEERFHE AE(S
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BRER
OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted earnings per share FIRERN R E R T RMB A K RMB A R &
12 0.13 yuan JT 0.11 yuan Jt

1 20 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fos oy 4 B S HLAth 4 T W £ 5

Year ended 31 December 2020 E{Z 2020 12 31 BIEFE

2019
2019
Notes RMB'000
BaE ARETTT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hip2mE WKz (BE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income that may be REE#Z BRI g BRI E
reclassified to profit or loss in Bl AmEEKz -
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEB CERERE
of foreign operations (20,988) 33,022
Other comprehensive income that willnotbe — REEZ B ET @ EF 7 HE 2
reclassified to profit or loss in By AmEEKz -
subsequent periods:
Change in use from an owner-occupied ERMENRREE A
property to an investment property BEATEARNREDE
carried at fair value 14,351 -
Equity investments designated at fairvalue ¥ ERAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income Wk 2 IR &
change in fair value NEEED 109,509 1,965
Income tax effect Frigins & (3,588) (324)
120,272 1,641
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHEMBZEYE
FOR THE YEAR 99,284 34,663
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZEWREE
FOR THE YEAR 485,428 395,023
Total comprehensive income attributable to: N3 A L FE(G 2 E Uk 254258
Owners of the parent ISYNSIETZEPN 281,911 184,972
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR 203,517 210,051
485,428 395,023

AR ERARAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B o B 25 5IR O 2%

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2019
20194
Notes RMB'000
BaE ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R M ERE 13 941,547 1,241,223
Investment properties SE=E/ES 15 2,788,700 918,200
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 163,755 281,354
Intangible assets H%EF 14 7,084 5,707
Investments in joint ventures REETEMNRE 17 180,725 78,103
Investments in associates E’\\Hﬁfi%@ ARIRE 18 2,142,510 910,513
Deferred tax assets ELEFIEEE 19 278,034 309,682
Other non-current assets HEMIEnEEE 20 527,709 =
Equity investments designated at fair EERATEGTAREMEE
value through other comprehensive ek (MEAFEFAEA
income (“FVOCI") 2HEE ) HIRERE 21 643,710 326,723
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 7,673,774 4,071,505
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties under development R 22 20,327,503 16,166,537
Completed properties held for sale BEHEND B I 23 2,851,239 6,227,457
Trade receivables “”%Nﬁz%ﬂﬁ 1,294 1,458
Due from related companies FEUS BE S A B I8 40 971,286 895,762
Prepayments, deposits and TEfS IR - ﬁzi N E IR
other receivables A 24 3,762,707 2,729,374
Financial assets at fair value through Tﬁ’&zﬁﬁ*ﬁ')@@ s ([RATE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") AR DNEREE 25 1,934,292 =
Tax recoverable CIRidEE TR 629,284 342,007
Other current assets B nghEE 26 56,610 56,245
Inventories FE 523 890
Restricted cash ZBRGIHS 27 708,538 1,137,115
Pledged deposits [N 27 2,194,070 29
Cash and cash equivalents BEMEEEED 27 3,518,324 2,894,255
Total current assets mEBEERE 36,955,670 30,451,129
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and bills payables B 5 e 50 K FE N 28 4,001,807 2,742,799
Other payables, deposits received HMEMAzIE - elize &
and accruals fEEtE A 29 3,166,054 3,969,718
Due to related companies et Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ’& a) 08 40 4,950,820 624,499
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5 BIR1T R EffE 5K 31 3,323,086 4917819
Senior notes Eﬁ:m?ﬁ 32 2,217,378 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 5,164 16,826
Contract liabilities EXON=RET 30 11,384,909 10,503,434
Tax payable FEI IR 10 1,346,693 1,293,051
Total current liabilities mEBEeRE 30,395,911 24,068,146

1 22 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A o W B IR DL 2%

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2019
20194F
Notes RMB'000
B 5T ARETIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 6,559,759 6,382,983
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBEE
LIABILITIES 14,233,533 10,454,488
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5 BER1T R EffE 5K 31 8,825,094 5,582,140
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 3,543 3,072
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 19 143,125 842,471
Total non-current liabilities EmB A EERE 8,971,762 6,427,683
NET ASSETS EEFE 5,261,771 4,026,805
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners KABEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital & 33 124,119 124,119
Treasury shares EETFR% 1D (7) 7)
Other reserves HAib G 34 2,635,955 2,384,706
2,760,067 2,508,818
Non-controlling interests FEERER 2,501,704 1,517,987
TOTAL EQUITY HRES 5,261,771 4,026,805
Mr. Ma Baohua Ms. Shao Lei
BRELLE MEL L
Director Director
= EF

RABBIRAR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
%o 7 B i 5 B 3%

Year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE 202012 A31 B IEEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SAEEEAER

Investment Statutory Non-
Share  Treasury  Merger revaluation Share  Capital  surplus Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital  shares reserve*  reserve* premium* reserve*  reserve* reserve*  profits* Total interests equity

REE EERE FER
Bx  EERf Afbf:  GE RSEE BARR B EXGR RER: &% B M8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00D RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0OO RMB'OO RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTT ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARKTR ARMTI ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARBTR

(Note33)  (Note33) (Note34(d)) (Note 34(a)) (Note 34(b)) (Note 34(c))

(Wit3s) (Ki33) (Kisk3a(d) (K3t 34(a)) (K3 34(b) (Hi3E 34(c)
Asat 1 January 2020 RNNEIR1A 124119 (7) 6232719 1641 631,475 82,600 195686 33,022 817,003 2,508,818 1,517,987 4,026,805
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - - 182,627 182,627 203517 386,144
Other comprehensive income EREMEENE :
forthe year:
Fichange diferences on translation &SI EH 2 EL£H
of foreign operations - - - - - - - (20988) - (20988) - (20988)
Change infairvalue of investment — REMEATEZE — Mk
properties, net of tax ] - - - 10763 - - - - - 10763 - 10,763

Change in farvalue of equity BATER AL 2 ENE
investmentsat fainalue thiough 2 REREZATEES
other comprehensive income - - - 109,509 - - - - - 109,509 - 109,509

Total comprehensive income FRE2ANGES

for the year - - - 120272 - - - (20988) 182,627 281911 203,517 485,428
Capital contribution from WEAREERRR LA

non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 863,500 863,500
Appropriations to statutory BRTETRGRER

surplus reserve - - - - - - 68,7% - (68,79) - - -
Final 2019 dividend WIYERERE = - - - (30,662) - = = - (30662) - (30662)
Dividend paid tonon-controllng 2 MFHERERS RN

interests Va3 - - - - - - - - - - (83,3000 (83,300)
Asat 31 December 2020 RN0E1A3A 124119 (7) 623279 121913 600,813 82,600 264,482 12,034 930,834 2,760,067 2,501,704 5,261,771
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
i B 2 5 )

Year ended 31 December 2020 E(ZE2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

KRR AL
Statutory Non-
Share Merger Share  Capital ~ suplus  Exchange  Retained controling Total
capital reserve* premium*  reserve*  reserve®  reserve’ profits* Total  interests equity
EERE JER
A Vil RiRE* ERGEr  BR EXRE REEN &5t BE g
RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBOO0 ~ RMBOOO  RMB00O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB00O  RMBOO0  RMBO0O
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARETR
(Note33)  (Note33) ~ (Note 34(d) (Note 34(a))  (Note 34(b))  (Note 34(c))
(M) (WaF33) (Mi0) (W) (Wekdm) (M)
Asat 1 January 2019 R09ETR1A 347 ( 623219 - 82,600 188133 - 674247 1568599 841700 2410299
Profitfor the year EREH - - - - - - 150309 150309 210051 360360
Other comprehensive income ENEMRERE
forthe year:
Exchange differences on translation  BE SN ER B £
of foreign operations - - - - - 3302 - 33022 - 33022
Change infair value of equity RATEFAL 2 ELS
investmentsat fainvalue through 2 RIEREZ ATEEE
other comprehensive income, NBHE
net of tax - - - - - - - 1641 - 1641
Total comprehensive income EMEENRSE
for the year - - - - - 302 150309 184972 210051 39503
Capital contribution from WEARFEARERTE
non-controling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 509044 509044
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HRELRR = = = = - - - - (g (42808)
Appropriations o statutory BETETRGRER
surplus reserve - - - - 7553 - (7553) - - -
lssue of shares ki 13772 - 631475 - - - -5 - TS
Asat 31 December 2019 R09E12A31A 124119 ( 623279 631475 82600 195,686 3302 817003 2508818 1517987 4026805
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB2,635955  * ZERBERPEREMBRARANGS EMEE

(2019: RMB2,384,706,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

AR 2635955 70 (20194F = A R ¥ 2,384,706,000

JT) e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2020 &(ZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE

2019
20194
Notes RMB'000
B 5T ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHRBATRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax & 75 BT Vi A 674,399 940,129
Adjustments for: HTIIFIBELFE
Depreciation of items of property, M - BERREEENE
plant and equipment 6,13 23,201 5,160
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 6,16 15,532 15,708
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih & =5 6,14 710 681
Investment income of business LR BIREK AR E
combinations achieved in stages g A 5 - (11,277)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBARZ (W)
it 5 (1,369) 14,739
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 6,23 3,932 -
Dividend income from financial assets KEZATFEFAEMEE
at FVOCl Wz 2 & BhE ERR BUA 5 (15,154) =
Fair value gains from financial assets REERAFERT ABRH
at FVTPL N ERE 5 (13,524) =
Share of profits of joint ventures JE1E & & 10 5 N Bk & A R & A
and associates (34,109) (65,929)
Fair value gains on investment properties B EN N ERE (125,670) (106,300)
Changes in fair value of financial S ERBENAFEEZS
guarantee liabilities - (18,867)
Finance costs BA TS B AN 7 202,330 166,991
Interest income A A 5 (25,535) (23,323)
Decrease in properties under development  BAZErh )3 MEHEHED B T
and completed properties held for sale W = > 3,477,021 985,427
Decrease in inventories FERD 367 -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SEEIFES G ), 38 27 428,577 (1,014,294)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits SR () w 27 (1,211) 7412
Decrease in trade receivables E 5 WGBS 4,734 1,142
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR - R REMEUGRIE
deposits and other receivables (3g0n),F (783,380) 2,114,423
Increase in other current assets H AR ENE AN (365) (56,245)
Decrease in amounts due JE WS B e B SR TE R
from related companies 155,621 1,005,488
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 e F0E N RS Z R AN 1,000,914 490,853
Decrease in other payables, deposits HEMEMFIE - B S RER
received and accruals &R (2,153,981) (3,508,822)
Increase in contract liabilities BRBEEN 168,283 5222218
Decrease in amounts due to FE < BB & B SR IE R
related companies (59,750) (1,778,645)

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2020 Z(ZE 20206 12 A31 HIEFE

2019
2019
Notes RMB'000
BaE ARETTT
Cash generated from operations KREFRBEE 2,941,573 4,386,669
Interest received B YFE 26,654 23,323
Interest paid EfHE (892,082) (585,287)
Tax paid EfNTIA (648,235) (328,672)
Net cash flows from operating RETHFABRE
activities REEE 1,427,910 3,496,033
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHFARERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BEKZMEEER
plant and equipment (406,231) (723,024)
Purchase of other intangible assets EEHMBEEE (2,087) (20)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (302,262) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W HE BT B A 7] - 100,859
Acquisition of subsidiaries not accounted R ARG AEKA G ZHER A
for as a business combination s B 37 (1,414,943) (2,386,357)
Prepayment for acquisition of subsidiaries U EEFTB A 5] A TE{ 5B (270,540) -
Prepayment for acquisition of 1 B I 12 A e 2 MO TR FRIE
non-controlling interests (175,000) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEHB AR 36 (105) (113,890)
Disposal of a joint venture HESEDRE - 18,108
Purchase of inventories BEFE - (49)
Purchases of items of financial assets BEEAFETFABRZ
at FVTPL TREERR (1,920,768) =
Purchase of equity investments designated B B I8 A FEF AE M2 B
at FVOC| 2 IRHERE (207,478) (325,082)
Advances to third parties ME=FBR (3,854,474) (5,063,367)
Settlement of advances to third parties HEERE=FER 3,623,371 3,545,174
Advances to joint ventures and associates  [A]& &' (D 3 M BiE & N BB TR 40 (1,712,536) (1,750,128)
Settlement of advances to joint ventures HEEMEELEREERARIBNR
and associates 40 1,478,906 2,410,794
Advances to related companies Bz NSIE-E 40 (7,006) (3,071,289)
Settlement of advances to related companies #% &[] BB A =] 24 5k 40 9,491 1,706,495
Investments in joint ventures and associates & 1> 2 LB & N FIIRE (1,300,508) (547,959)
Disposal of items of property, HEMX  WERKHEIRE
plant and equipment 1,339 2435
Net cash flows used in investing RETEHFMARESREFH
activities (6,460,831) (6,197,300)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
S Bl i AR

Year ended 31 December 2020 &(ZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE

2019
20194
Notes RMB'000
B 5T ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METDFFRERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution from non-controlling  FEFEIRAR BT &
shareholders 863,500 509,044
Payment of 2019 finial dividend X 2019 FAREIAR S (30,662)
Increase in pledged deposits B 317 S 0 27 (2,192,830) =
Payment of lease liabilities HEBEBMNK 16, 35(c) (7,005) 3,785
Net proceeds from issue of new shares BT FT S IR F R - 755,247
Advances from third parties F=HER 18,706 4,054,478
Repayment of advances from third parties 1B 55 = 7 B (951,218) (1,982,496)
Advances from related companies ElENEIELE S 40 16,597,131 989,923
Repayment of advances from related ¥tk NS EE N
companies 40 (13,834,839) (188,916)
Advances from joint ventures and associates & ‘& {0 % & Bt = N B 2K 40 2,056,290 382,121
Repayment of advances from joint ventures {838 & 21> 3% M B2 N B2 K
and associates 40 (441,963) (395,400)
Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes %Tﬂ"aflﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ( 2,192,519
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and STESRIT R HMEREIIE
other borrowings 9,741,087 8,084,690
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BB BIRIT REMER
other borrowings (8,353,726) (8,206,135)
Net cash flows from financing activities B & EH IS RE KRB FEE 5,656,990 4,006,341
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRSESEYEMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 624,069 1,305,074
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREMIRNEEEY
of year 2,894,255 1,589,181
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREERBEEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 3,518,324 2,894,255
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBASEEVERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances IR & MIRITE# 27 6,420,932 4,031,399
Less: Restricted cash W PR fﬁi 27 708,538 1,137,115
Pledged deposits [ iR 27 2,194,070 29
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS RERERAARER
STATED IN THE STATEMENT OF REeZEY
CASH FLOWS 3,518,324 2,894,255

1 28 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020



1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Sertus
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue,

P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were
involved in property development, hotel operations, property
investment and exhibition operation.

The particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set out below:

Subsidiaries

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment and
place of operations

1.

Nominal value of
registered
share capital

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

REREBEH

RRAB A/ —HRFASESEMKZNE
BENA  ARANEMPEE IR
Sertus Chambers, Governors Square, Suite
#5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O. Box
2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman
Islands °

KRR A —BEREZERAR - REZRE
2020F 12 A31 BIEFE - AEBEBRKHE
THEBARKRERMERE BEE
B FHERERZRER -

BRAARARMBARZHBEHIIMT

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company Principal activities

REM AR S, B 3L e B ARNEEM
HEAR RBMURE R HEfRAEE BREESL TEXHK
Directly held:
EERS:
Yin Cheng Holding Limited British Virgin Islands/ USD50,000 100% Investment holding
16 January 2018
EBRIER,/ 50000 7T REZK
2018F 1 A 16 H
Indirectly held:
BEEH
Yinjiacheng Holding Limited Hong Kong of China/ HKD1 100% Investment holding
6 February 2018
BEBERBR AR hEEE, 18T REZRK
20182 H6H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Nanjing Yingang Enterprise People’s Republic USD1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* of China ("PRC")/
(“Nanjing Yingang") Mainland China/
21 March 2018
MRRBCEERZABRAR hE ARAME 1,000,000 27T REER
([REREE]) (TRED),/
B,
201843 421 H
Nanjing Yincheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB5,000,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 24 September 2009
(“Nanjing Yincheng")
HRRH B ERE AR A A R hEIR, AR 50000000007 B ERE
(TR REIA ) 20094 9 A 24 H
Nanjing Xicheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 1 August 2002
BARANEHEREER D E hEhERN, AR 200000007 iR %
200258 H1H
Nanjing Hongquan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB98,567,555 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 15 January 2013
BARLEEHMERBEER D E hE/hERN,  ARK985675557T AR %
201351 A15H
Nanjing Hongyou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB236,756,621 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 15 January 2013
BRMEEHERBEER D F* hE/hERN, AR 236756621 7T iR %
201351 A15H
Nanjing Yinguang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 18 April 2014

HRRERHERZEERARE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Nanjing Yinzhuo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 21 April 2014
ARBERMERBEFR LD E R BRI, AR 300000,0007T R AR
20145421 H
Nanjing Yicheng Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Property development
Co,, Ltd.** 25 November 2014
BARSHEHERBEFR D E hERERM, AR 500000007T R AR
2014611 A25 8
Nanjing Eastern Senior Living Health PRC/Mainland China/ RMB964,000,000 75% Elderly service and
Industry Co., Ltd.*** (“Eastern Senior”) 25 March 2015 hospital management
BRRAEFRREEER B/ hER, AR 9640000007T RERBRERER
ARADE = ([RAEF]) 2015938251
Nanjing Yinlan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 25 September 2014
BARERCEERAR AR hE/hERN, AR 20000007T REER
2014%E9 A 25H
Nanjing Mahui Property Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB325,000,000 88% Property development
Co.,, Ltd.*** 19 June 2004
HRGEEEERAR ™ hE/hER, AR 3250000007 B BRI
200446 A 19 H
Nanjing Jiayuncheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 51% Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*** 29 September 2016
(“Nanjing Jiayuncheng”)
AREERFEMEREERAR R RERM, AR 100000,0007T iR
([FamREER]) 20169 A29H
Nanjing Jiuchengxing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB102,040,800 50% Property development
Development Co.,, Ltd.*** 29 September 2016
(“Nanjing Jiuchengxing”) (Note (a))
AR EEEREERA R R B, AR 102040800 7T iR
(TR RSB ) (P 5T (a) 20169 A29H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Nanjing Yinjiafeng Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 14 October 2016
ARERECEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201610 A 14 B
Nanjing Yinjiajin Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 14 October 2016
BARERRCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201610 A 14 B
Nanjing Yinjiaze Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 14 October 2016
BARERECEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201610 A 14 B
Nanjing Yinjiazhan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB51,510,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 14 October 2016
HRAREECEERARAA hE/hERN,  ARES15100007T RERR
201610 A 14 B
Nanjing Yinjiahan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 17 November 2016
BARERRCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201611 A17 8
Nanjing Yinjiahan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 17 November 2016
BAREEHCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201611 A17 B
Nanjing Yinjiarun Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 99% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.*** 22 November 2016
HRREBCETRARAA hE/hERAN, AR10100007T REER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE AR A E REBALE TEEE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
MEEs (&)

Nanjing Yinjialan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 22 November 2016
BREERCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 200000007T REER
2016 11 A 22 A
Nanjing Yinze Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 27 December 2016
BARIEGEERAR LA R R E R, AR#1000007T REER

2016512 A 278

Nanjing Yinjiayuan Enterprise Management  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 15 May 2017
BRERRCEERERAA hE/hERN,  ARY10100007T REER

20175158

Nanjing Yinjiaying Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 99% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.*** 15 September 2017
BARERRCEETEERAA hE/hERN,  AR10100007T REER

Nanjing Yinxing New Material PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Technology
Technology Co,, Ltd** 12 September 2017
BRI BT R R R A+ hE,/hER, AR 1000000007T AT
201759 A 128
Wuxi Century Garden Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB420,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 14 March 2007
EHCEERNEREARAR hE BRI, AR 420,000,000 7T AR %
20073 A 14 H
Suzhou Yinze Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 70% Property development
@, Liel=* 4 July 2017
FMNRERE tERB AR AR R RERM, AR 200,000,000 7T AR
201757 448

2017%F9 A 15H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Wauxi Yinzerun Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 31 July 2017
EHRERCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201747 A31H
Sunac (Jiangsu) Real Estate Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 50% Property development
("Sunac (Jiangsu)") (Note (a)) 24 May 2017
RAIO1E) X AR AR B RENH, AR 3000000007T R AR
(MR8l CI#) 1) (P EE () 2017F5A24H
Nanjing Yinjiaju Polymer Trading Co,, Ltd**  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 100% Retail trade
2 December 2016
HRAREENEESERAA hE/hERN,  ARK100000007T TEES
2016512 A2 A
Nanjing Changtuo Real Estate Co., Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 50% Property development
(“Nanjing Changguo”) (Note (a)) 5 January 2018
HREARMERRA R hE/hERN, AR 200000007 B ER g
(TRRE%R]) (PHEE @) 20181 A58
Wuxi Yifeng Real Estate Co,, Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB160,000,000 35% Property development
("Wuxi Yifeng”) (Note (a)) 12 October 2011
EHRLYBERRAORE B REINH, AR 1600000007T AR %
([EHRE )T @) 2011 E10A 128
Hefei Yincheng Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000,000 100% Property development
Co,, Ltd.** 11 April 2018
BEBBEHEREARA R hE,/hER, AR 5000000007 B BRI
201854 A 11 H
Hefei Yinzanhong Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 29 May 2018
RIEBEUCEEBERAF hE/hERN, AR 10000007 REER
201845 429 H
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Place and date of
incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and registered
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B
MEDR REHURERLE AR A E
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

ArEIREEER ®)

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
FRRIER
REBALE TEEE

Indirectly held: (Continued)

MERE  (4)

Hefei Yinzhilu Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.**

ARRBELERERAT

Nanjing Yinjiabin Enterprise Management
Co, Ltd**
ARBEEACRERBER AR

Nanjing Yinjiabo Enterprise Management
Co,, Ltd**
ARBERHERERERAF

Nanjing Yinjiace Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.**

FRREACEEEERAAE

Nanjing Yinjiajin Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.**

FRREELEEEARDAE

Nanjing Yinjiali Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.**

FRREELEEEARAAE

Nanjing Yinjiapu Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.**

FRREREEEEARAE

PRC/Mainland China/
29 May 2018

FE A,
201845 A 29H

PRC/Mainland China/
22 January 2018
RE/ B,
20181 H 228

PRC/Mainland China/
22 January 2018
RE/ B,
201851 H 228

PRC/Mainland China/
22 January 2018
RE/ B,
201851 H 228

PRC/Mainland China/
22 January 2018
FE A,
201851 A 224

PRC/Mainland China/
22 January 2018
REL/ B,
201851 H22H

PRC/Mainland China/
22 January 2018
REL/ B,
201851 H22H

RMB37,500,000

AR 37500,0007C

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

99.97% Investment holding

REZR

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZR

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZRK
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Nanjing Yinjiagi Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 22 January 2018
BARERHCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
2018%F1 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiasong Materials Trading PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Retail trade
Co, Ltd** 21 May 2018
HAREANEEFERA A hE/hERN, AR 10000007T TEEZS
201845 421 H
Nanjing Yinjiaxian Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 22 January 2018
BARERECEERERAA hE/hERN,  ARY10100007T REER
2018%F1 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiayu Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 22 January 2018
BRERBLEERERAA hE/hERN,  ARY10100007T REER
2018%F1 A 22 H
Wuxi Yincheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 1 August 2005
&R E I ER B AR A A B,/ HRERL, AR 10000000007T B BRI
20058 H1H
Nanjing Yinjiayuan Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 1 February 2018
HARREMCEERERAA hE/hERN,  ARKS500000007T REER
201852418
Nanjing Yinjiazhen Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 21 May 2018
BAREFECEERERAA hE/hERAN, AR10100007T REER
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Place and date of
incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and registered
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B
MEDR REHURERLE AR A E
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ArEIREEER ®)

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
FRRIER
REBALE TEEE

Indirectly held: (Continued)

MERE  (4)

Nanjing Yinke Real Estate
Development Co,, Ltd.**

ARBEMEHERZEERDE

Wauxi Yinzechen Enterprise Management
Co, Ltd**
EHRERPRERARAF

Wauxi Yinzehan Enterprise Management
Co,, Ltd**
EHRERERERARAF

Wauxi Yinzelan Enterprise Management
Co, Ltd**
BEHRERCRERARAF

Wuxi Yinzexin Enterprise Management
Co, Ltd**
BHREECRERARAF

Xuzhou Changshun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**

HNRIEE X AR AR

Zhejiang Yinze Real Estate Co,, Ltd.**

ATRERHEBRE TN

PRC/Mainland China/
15 May 2018

FE A,
20185 150

PRC/Mainland China/
14 March 2018
RE/REAL,
20183 H 148

PRC/Mainland China/
28 March 2018
RE/REAL,
20183 H28H

PRC/Mainland China/
14 March 2018
RE/REAL,
20183148

PRC/Mainland China/
29 March 2018
RE/REAL,
20183 H29H

PRC/Mainland China/
24 February 2014
RE/ B,
201452 A 248

PRC/Mainland China/
14 May 2018

RMB50,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7T

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB20,000,000

AR 20,000,0007T

RMB100,010,000

RERERM, AR 1000100007T

20185 A 14H

100% Property development

i ERRE

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZR

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Property development

FEHERRE

100% Property development

FEHERRE

RABREBARAT
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Zhenjiang Hengrun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB105,000,000 33% Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*** 9 April 2018
("Zhenjiang Hengrun") (Note (a))
HIEBEMEREARAR ™ hE,/hER, AR 1050000007 iR
(METEHE]) (5 @) 20184 A9A
Hangzhou Yinhong Industrial Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB400,000,000 100% Property development
11 February 2018
MMNRABERREE AR R BRI, AR 400,000,000 7T R AR
201852 A 11 H
Nanjing Airport Exhibition Investment PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 49% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.*** 18 August 2017
(“Nanjing Airport”) (Note (a))
AREEGRIRAERERAA B,/ hER, AR 2000000007T REER
(TRmZE ) (P EE @) 20178 A 18H
Nanjing Yinjiang Engineering PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Consulting
Consulting Co,, Ltd.** 21 August 2018
BRBETIRBAERAR hE/hERN, AR 10000007T i
2018%F8 A 21 H
Jiangyin Yinze Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 24 October 2018
TREHBREMERBEAR D E R RERM, AR 100000,0007T iR
2018 10 A 24 A
Xuzhou Yincheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 3 August 2018
WINRIRE s EE B AR A B R RERM, AR 100000,0007T AR
201858 A3 H
Wuxi Tianhong Lixin Real Estate Consulting ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 65% Property development
Co,, Ltd*** 29 March 2016
EHRAFERUELNERAR ™ FE/RERM, AR 1000000007 AR
201653 A 29 H
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
New Town Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB637,428,300 65% Property development
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd.*** ("Wuxi New Town") 12 December 2005
FEHER T (BH) BRAF R B, AR 6374283007T R AR
([ 855 ) 2005 12 A 12 A
Hangzhou Yinzheyi Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co.,, Ltd.*** 5 December 2018
MM X BB AR EEA R hE/hERN,  ARY10100007T REER
2018512 A5 A
Nanjing Zhijun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000,000 25% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.*** 18 April 2019
(“Nanjing Zhijun”) (Note (a))
HREERHERBEARLDE B RERNH, AR 1,0000000007T AR %
(FAmzEE]) (M3 @) 2019F4A18H
Nanjing Jiuhong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd.** 22 April 2019
BARALEHERBEFR D F* hERERM, AR 500000007T AR %
20194 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjialuo Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 19 April 2019
BRERBECEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
20194 A19H
Nanjing Yinjialuo Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB9,910,990 99.9% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.*** 19 April 2019
BARERRCEETRERAA hE/hEAN,S  AR¥K99109907T REER
20194 A19H
Wuxi Yinzehao Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 25 April 2019
EHRBECEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201944 A25H

RABREBARAT
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Jiangsu Shantui Construction Machinery PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 80% Property development
Co., Ltd.*** 15 May 2003
BRI TR AR A F) R RERM, AR 200000007T R AR
20035 A15H
Nanjing Yinjianing Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 6 May 2019
ARERECEERARAA hE/hERN,  AR10100007T REER
201955 H6H
Hangzhou Yinjiarun Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 10 May 2019
MMBEECEEREREEAR hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201945 A 10 A
Nanjing Yinjiahong Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 15 May 2017
BRERACEERERAA hE/hERN,  ARE100000007T REER
201745158
Nanjing Yinjiamu Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB193,000,000 51% Investment holding
Co.,, Ltd.*** 10 July 2019
BAREFZACEERERAF hE/hER, AR 1930000007T REER
201947 A 10H
Wuxi Yinzehong Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd.** 24 April 2019
EHRERCEERERRA hE/hERN,  ARY10100007T REER
201944 A 24 H
Wauxi Yinzemin Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 24 April 2019
EHRBRCEERERRA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201944 A 24 H
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Wuxi Yinzezhan Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd.** 24 April 2019
EHRERCEERERAA hE/hEAN, AR 10000007T REER
201944 A 24 H
Wuxi Yinzefeng Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd.** 24 April 2019
EHWBECEERERAA hE/hERN,  ARY10100007T REER
201944 A 24 H
Nanjing Yinjiaan Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 2 December 2016
BRERRCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
2016512 A2 A
Hangzhou Yinjiayuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB15,384,600 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 9 September 2019
MMBRREEEBER AR hE/hERN,  ARK153846007T REER
201959 H9H
Hangzhou Huixingyu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB930,200,000 100% Investment holding
Management Partnership** 5 September 2019
MMERRCEEBAB hE/hERN, AR 9302000007T REER
(BRAR)* 2019F9A5A
Xuzhou Yinjiahao Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 4 July 2019
BMBERCEEBERAF hE/hERN,  AR10100007T REER
201957 H4H
Xuzhou Yinjiahong Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 4 July 2019
BMBEACEEBER AR hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
201957 H4H

RABREBARAT
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Yixing Yinze Real Estate Development Co,, PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Ltd** 18 October 2019
HRFZEMEREERAR hE/hERN, AR 200000007T Ek
2019610418 H
Nanjing Yincheng Medical Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Medical management
Co.,, Ltd.*** 4 November 2019
BRI ERERARA A hE,/hER, AR 1000000007T BEEE
20195 11 A48
Nanjing Yinjiawo Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 20 September 2019
BRERACEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
20199 A 20 H
Zhejiang Linan Zhongdu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 29 April 2003
HIREPHEEERAA hE,/hER, AR 3000000007T IEk S
200354 A 29H
Hangzhou Zhongdu Qingshan Lakeside PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Hotel operation
Hotel Co,, Ltd.** 13 January 2006
M AR DS LB K IS A PR A R hERERM, AR 500000007T BEEE
200651 A 13 H
Nanjing Yinjiagin Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB278,430,000 35.35% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd.*** (“Nanjing Yinjiagin”) (Note (a)) 3 December 2019
BAREFNCEERERAF B REIN, AR 278430000 7T REER
([FamERE0 ) (i 3E () 2019F 12 A3 A
Xuzhou Tongshun Real Estate Development  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB360,806,000 100% Property development
Co,, Ltd** 6 November 2019
TRINSAIRES s 2 R 3 B R A B * hE,/hER, AR 3608060007 5 Hh EE R 3
201911 A6 A

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Hangzhou Yinjiahong Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 10 May 2019
MMBEACEEBER AR hE/hERN,  AR10100007T REER
201945 A 10H
Guangzhou Yicheng Trading Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000 100% Retail trade
22 August 2019
BMEHE S HR DA R R E R, AR 500,0007T TEEZS
20198 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiafeng Trading Co., Ltd ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Retail trade
18 September 2019
HRRELYESBRAE hE/hERN, AR 10000007 TEES
201949 A 18 H
Nanjing Yinrun Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 9 March 2020
HRRECEERARAR hE/hERN, AR 20000007T RERR
202053 H9H
Nanjing Yinjiapei Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 23 April 2020
BARERTEEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
202054 A 23 H
Nanjing Yinyuan Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd.** 12 March 2020
BARETCEERFR LA hE/hERN, AR 20000007T REER
2020563 412 H
Nanjing Yinjiazhou Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 23 April 2020
BAREZMNCEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER

20204 A23H

RABREBARAT
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Nanjing Yinjiaming Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 11 December 2019
BARERECEERERAA hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
2019612 A1 A
Wuxi Yinzebo Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 16 July 2020
|HRENCEERERAA B,/ hER, AR 1000000007T RERR
202057 A 16 H
Changshu Yinze Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Co,, Ltd** 24 September 2020
FRABEEHERBEABR LA hERERM, AR 200000007T AR %
202049 A 24 H
Xuzhou Yinjiaze Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 17 April 2020
BMBERECEEBERAR hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
202054 417 H
Xuzhou Yinjialan Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 16 April 2020
BMBEZREEEBERAF hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
202054 A 16 H
Hangzhou Yinjiagi Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd.** 29 September 2020
MMNBREHEREBAREER A R REAM, AR 1,0000007T REER
202059 A 29 H
Hangzhou Yinjiaging Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 29 September 2020
MMNBRREEXRERBAREER A R REAM, AR 1,0000007T REER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Hangzhou Yinjiayuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 29 September 2020
MMBRRCEEBEREEAF hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
202059 A 29 H
Hangzhou Yinjiahan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 18 June 2020
MMNBREBRERERBAREER A R RERM, AR 10000007T REER
202056 A 18 H
Hangzhou Yinjiahao Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 18 June 2020
MMBERCEEREREEAF hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
202056 A 18 H
Hangzhou Yinjiapeng Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 18 June 2020
MMNBREZERERBAREER A R RERM, AR 10000007T REER
202056 A 18 H
Hangzhou Yinjiayu Enterprise Management ~ PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 25 May 2020
MMNBRRRERERAREER A R REAM, AR 10000007 KREER
202045 A 25 H
Hangzhou Yinjialuo Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 25 May 2020
MMNBREREREBAREER A REREAM, AR 1,0000007T REER
202045 A 25 H
Hangzhou Yinjiayuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 16 April 2020
MMNBEMERERBAREER A R RERM, AR 1,0000007T REER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Hangzhou Yinjiacheng Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 15 April 2020
MMBEBECEEREREEAR hE/hERN,  AR10100007T REER
202054 A15H
Wenzhou Yinju Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 100% Property development
Co,, Ltd.** 20 April 2020
BMBEEMEREEREEAR hE,/hER, AR 2000000007T B A B
202054 A 20H
Hefei Yinzanze Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 31 July 2020
REBEECEEBERAF hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
202047 A31H
Hefei Yinzanfeng Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Co, Ltd** 31 July 2020
REFEECEEBERAF hE/hERN, AR 10000007T REER
202047 A31H
Hefei Yinhaoze Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Co,, Ltd** 31 May 2019
ARRFEBCEEBERAF hE/hEAN,  AR10100007T REER
201945 431 H
Hefei Yinfeng Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China/ RMB500,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd** 21 May 2020
BRREEEREAR AR B, REA, AR 500,000,000 7T iR
201945 421 H
Wuxi Chengxiang Real Estate Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
("Wuxi Chengxiang”) 30 May 2019
‘A EERRAR hE/hERN, AR 200000007 B ER g
(E:32E =) 20195 A30H
146 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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Subsidiaries place of operations share capital
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B
MEDR REHURERLE AR A E
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ArEIREEER ®)

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
FRRIER

REESL TEXEH

Indirectly held: (Continued)

MEEs (&)

Wuxi Xinfa Jiayuan Real Estate Co,,
Ltd.*** (“Xinfa Jiayuan") (Note (a))

EHTHEEEERARAF
(TR ) (P EE ()

Wuxi Rongshi Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.*** ("Wuxi Rongshi”) (Note (a))

EHRBPRERERAF]
(TEHRE ) (@)

Wuxi Yinxuan Enterprise Management
Co,, Ltd**
EHRELERERERAF

Wuxi Yinzexian Enterprise Management
Co, Ltd**
EHRESERERARAF

Wuxi Yinzetao Enterprise Management
Co,, Ltd**
BEHRERCRERARAF

Wauxi Yinzezhou Enterprise Management
Co,, Ltd**
EHRENCRERARAF

Hangzhou Qingcheng Real Estate
Development Co.,, Ltd.**
("Hangzhou Qingcheng”)

MMNEREEREFR AT
(M ERL)

PRC/Mainland China/
8 May 2019

REL/ B,
20195 H8H

PRC/Mainland China/
11 October 2019
RE/REAL,
201910 A 11 A

PRC/Mainland China/
2 July 2020

RE/ B,
20207 H2H

PRC/Mainland China/
16 July 2020

FE A,
20207 A 16 R

PRC/Mainland China/
16 July 2020

FE A,
20207 A 16 8

PRC/Mainland China/
16 July 2020

FE A,
20207 A 16 8

PRC/Mainland China/
28 May 1998

B, B A,
199845 A 28 H

RMB260,000,000

AR 260,000,000 7T

RMB100,000,000

AR 100,000,000 7T

RMB1,010,000

AR 1,010,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB151,515,200

AR 151,515200 7T

50% Property development

i ERE

50% Investment holding

REZR

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Investment holding

REZR

100% Investment holding

REZRK

100% Property development

FEHERRE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER®)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE R EE REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Hangzhou Zezhou Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.** 14 August 2020
MMBNCEERERA R hE/hERN,  ARE100000007T RERR
2020568 A 14 H
Wenzhou Yinjiahui Enterprise Management  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 70% Property development
Co.,, Ltd.*** 29 October 2020
BMNERECEEREREERF hE/hERN,  ARE100000007T B FA B
202010 A 29 H
Xuzhou Yinzehui Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 51% Investment holding
Co.,, Ltd.*** 20 November 2020
BMPRESEEB AR AR hE/hERAN, AR 10000007T REER
2020611 A 208
Changshu Shajiabang China Ting Land PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Co, Ltd.** 28 September 2018
BERATMPFKBEREMBRAF hERERM,  ARE200000007T 5 Hh EE R 3
201849 A 28 H
Wuxi Xuelang Changguang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
Co,, Ltd.** ("Xuelang Changguang”) 17 February 2020
EHERREEEARAR R B, AR 200000007T AR %
(TEREE]) 2020628178
Nanjing Yinguangji Decoration Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Property development
17 November 2020
HRBRAEEMBRA A hE/hERN,  ARKS500000007T B ERE
2020611 4178
Hangzhou Hongyuyuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,300,010,000 100% Investment holding
Management Partnership** 12 August 2020
MMNBERERER SR BE B REIN, AR 1,300010000 7T REER
202058 A 12 H
148 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L 3t B A e
MEDR REHURERLE AR A E REBALE TEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
MERE  (4)
Grateful Bay Limited** British Virgin Islands USD150,000 100% Investment holding
29 May 2020
RBRZES 150,000 7T REZER

202085 A29H

* g LR is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

*%

These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

¥**  These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the
Company's control over them.

Note () FAREH, |BIIEL BRAWE BIEE BRER, ARRZFD,
% 35 B 2% and #1 8 £ & are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group
mainly because the Group owns 51% of the voting rights according to the
articles of association and the supplemental agreement regarding voting
arrangement entered into between the shareholders, through which the
Group has rights to variable returns from its involvement with these entities
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over these
entities.

B8l UT#R) and B R Z=7 are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group
mainly because the Group owns 100% of the voting rights according to the
supplemental agreement regarding voting arrangement entered into
between the shareholders of &8l (T #k) and B8 3= 22 7%, through which
the Group has rights to variable returns from its involvement with these
entities and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
these entities.

*%

MR IRE S RET BAREMMNIINEEE
i

ZERARARANZEMBE AR -
ZERRIRARRRIEREME A TR

BRR ARARARZERREEES
M ARSI AHB AR

M@ : MREHR  EHEE mARARE.

HTER BREE  mRRzEb
EHREABEERAARIIAAEE
MERAR  TERREAEERE
BAEERMARERZEET LA IR
BB RIHEER S %IRRT -
Bt AREH2EZEEEBEEN
FEIERE AN WERBHEZ
EEROENFEZZLR -

BAIOT#) REREBARIIBAE
BHHEAR  T2REAZASER
IERAIOT &) B R = B RR ZHET
TEBERRL NI EIES 100%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 iRBE%E

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
(which include all standards and interpretations approved by the IASB,
and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the IASB that remain in effect),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") and other
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
Group) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e,,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the
current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

and IFRS 7

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16

2.1

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

152

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all parties to
understand and interpret the standards. The Conceptual
Framework includes new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none
of the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did not
have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs
and processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group has applied the concentration test to the acquisition of
subsidiaries. The fair value of the gross assets acquired in each of
the above subsidiaries was substantially concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiaries. Therefore, the acquisition of these
subsidiaries was determined not to be a business and accordingly,
the Group did not apply the acquisition method to the acquisition
of these subsidiaries (note 37).

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues affecting
financial reporting in the period before the replacement of an
existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR"). The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be
applied retrospectively. The amendment did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.
The Group intends to adopt them, if applicable, when they become

effective.
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Phase 22
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current *
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
IFRS Standards 2018-2020 [llustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

1 54 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020

2.3 B MM {E R ERAYEIRR B 75

3 4 Y2 B

[ = B P

AEBHANZERERRAER TS
B MM 1B R AE A HTR] RSB FT BB
MBHRELER - AEBERNZEFENE
R BR AN Z 2RI (RE )

BRABREENER  SAaERZEL
(BFTK)

BRABREEANSIR - FREENE -
REENENR B FoER
PBREENETRETR
BRMBREENZ45R R
BPRA RS £ E 165

(BFTK)

BRABREEAS05E KREZEABZN A
GRS RELXZENEE
(BFTK) HESTE

BnestERRE R (BEA) REZBERGZ

Frg
RE AR 165 (BRIA) O BERRE —#
ERE LR EHE
RERAE TR (BRA) BEAE —ETAHA
s
18FEN0FEHFHE BRHBREEN
BHZERNE 1% ARTHRES

BRI 95 - BERRATE
REERE 165500

pA SN G -Hy

L EIELILACHEY)

i MR2022F 1 A1 A2 ERAENFE MR
2 M2021 1 A1 B2 & RABKNFE R
e REETERBIERBE - AR

4 20231 A1 B 2 & RABKNFE R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS
3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address issues
not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect financial
reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 & MM 1B K4 NH B PR 7%

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities
are not required to restate the comparative information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
denominated in RMB and foreign currencies based on the exchange
rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China as at 31 December 2020. If
the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future
period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon the
modification of these borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant modification gain or loss
will arise as a result of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 C FE#1B &k & W B PR B 7%

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity instruments
designated at FVOCI at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets, properties
under development, completed properties held for sale and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person:

0]

(if)

(iif)

or

(b)

164

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

()

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the
annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 5%
Motor vehicles 24%
Office equipment and electronic devices 19% to 32%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXESTHBEME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for
owned property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-
of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a
transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXESTHBEME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into
account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs
to be incurred in selling the properties.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to its occupied gross
floor area (“GFA") to the total occupied GFA. Construction costs relating
to units were identified and allocated specifically. Common construction
costs have been allocated according to the saleable GFA similar to land
costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Con

\ued)
wed

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

()

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leasehold land 35 to 50 years
Plant and machinery 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Con

21 100)
ued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

()

©

170

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and vehicles that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through profit or loss, and at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held
for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
atan amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
the end of each of the reporting period. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables, deposits received and accruals, amounts due
to related companies, lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are held by the Company or the Group
(treasury shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s and the Group's own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

a.

Sale of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.

For a property development and sales contract for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the physical possession, or
the legal title of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the consideration
is probable.

Project management services

Project management services income derived from the provision
of support services in connection with development of property
projects is recognised when the relevant services are rendered,
and the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs.

Hotel and catering services

Hotel and catering services are primarily derived from the rental of
rooms, food and beverage sales and other ancillary goods and
services, including but not limited to souvenir, laundry, parking
and conference reservation. Each of these products and services
represents an individual performance obligation and, in exchange
for these services, we receive fixed amounts based on published
rates or negotiated contracts. Payment is due in full at the time
when the services are rendered or the goods are provided. Room
rental revenue is recognised on a daily basis when rooms are
occupied. Food and beverage revenue and other goods and
services revenue are recognised when they have been delivered
or rendered to the guests as the respective performance
obligations are satisfied.

Exhibition services

Revenue from providing exhibition services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the related services are rendered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria
are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the asset related. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at
the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve), over the period in which
the service and, where applicable, the performance conditions are fulfilled
(the vesting period). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or
credit in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum
expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified award,
provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional
expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where
an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain proportion of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains
and losses that are adjustments to interest costs include the interest rate
differences between borrowing costs that would be incurred if the entity
had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing costs
actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are
estimated based on forward currency rates at the inception of the
borrowings.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than one
accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences eligible
for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and is limited to
the difference between the hypothetical interest amount for the
functional currency borrowings and the actual interest incurred for
foreign currency borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did not
meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous years should not be
capitalised in subsequent years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

1 8 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate is based on whether the Group is determined to have control,
joint control or significant influence over the investee, which involves
judgements through the analysis of various factors, including the
Group's representation on the chief decision-making authorities of an
investee, such as the board of directors’ meetings and shareholders’
meetings, as well as other facts and circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their assets, liabilities
and transactions are included line-by-line in the Group'’s consolidated
financial statements, whereas the interests in joint ventures and
associates are equity accounted for as investments in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed by the parties to the contract provides the
Group with a significant benefit of financing.

Certain advance payments received from customers provide a significant
financing benefit to the Group. Although the Group is required by the
government to place all deposits and periodic payments received from
the pre-completion sales in a stakeholder account, the Group is able to
benefit from those advance payments as it can withdraw money from
that account to pay for expended construction costs on the project. The
advance payments received in effect reduce the Group’s need to rely on
other sources of financing.

The amount of the financing component is estimated at the inception of
the contract. After contract inception, the discount rate is not updated
for changes in interest rates or other circumstances, such as a change in
credit risk. The period of financing is from the time that the payment is
received until the transfer of goods to the customers is completed.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are disclosed below:

Provision for properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group's historical experience and the nature of the subject
properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of
completion of properties under development, and the costs to be
incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which
such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based on
management'’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the
tax authorities for certain of its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences realise.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties under construction carried at fair value were
revalued at each reporting date based on the appraised market value
provided by independent professional valuers. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation,
the Group considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair value
include those related to estimated rental values with reference to the
current market rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate capitalisation rates and expected profit margin.
The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2020 was
RMB2,788,700,000 (2019: RMB918,200,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement, are given in note 15
to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was RMB9,642,000 (2019:
RMB14,186,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2020 was RMB808,362,000 (2019: RMB628,173,000). Further details are
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
which includes property development, property leasing, the provision of
project management services, hotel and exhibition operation. Property
leasing, the provision of project management services, hotel and
exhibition operation are not significant in revenue contribution. Thus,
property development is the only reportable operating segment of the
Group, and no further operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

No further geographical information is presented as the Group's revenue
from the external customers is derived solely from its operation in
Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common
control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents income from the sale of properties, project
management income, hotel operations and rental income during the

reporting year.
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Wz - HABWA KR W

WHEREFEAMEHERA - HE
EREA BELERESWA -

An analysis of revenue is as follows: HWEHDITT
2019
2019
RMB'000
ARETTT
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEF ALK S 10,663,274 9,089,267
Revenue from other sources 2 B B A AR B W mm
Rental income WA 16,360 3,205
10,679,634 9,092,472
Revenue from contracts with customers  REZF SRS
Types of goods or services: BEme R ER
Sale of properties YIS HE 10,589,619 8,996,128
Project management service HE BB ARTE 30,489 79,679
Hotel operation B G 40,290 13,460
Exhibition operation income ZRAERA 2,876 =
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERFPAELMBUEE 10,663,274 9,089,267
Timing of revenue recognition: Wi FERR R
Recognised at a point in time: RE—FBER -
Revenue from sale of properties PYERZES S0l € 10,589,619 8,996,128
Revenue from hotel operation REBEEE RS 23,165 7,293
Recognised over time: R—EBRERE®ER
Revenue from project management REIEEB BEMKE 30,489 79,679
Revenue from hotel operation PEN L€ 17,125 6,167
Revenue from exhibition operation REEREERN K 2,876 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERFE AR BN 10,663,274 9,089,267
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wz HWARWE @)
(Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the TRBERANARE HAR WTJEW RRE
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at ER ¥ 5 A& 4 E{fzuﬂz SeF - AR
the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from performance B AR B E (TR W,ZJ%Z@
obligations satisfied in previous periods: T -
2019
20194F
RMB'000
ARBTT
Revenue recognised that was included in RMEBTAESLEERN
contract liabilities at the beginning B R
of the reporting period:
Sale of properties YIS E 5,520,419 4,959,576
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT
Other income and gains H A K Wz
Government grants I #76 B 5,003 2,799
Interest income ) EUA 25,535 23,323
Forfeiture of deposits RiiES 1,463 1,685
Investment income on business LB EIRERE IR ERA
combination achieved in steps - 11,277
Gain/(loss) on disposal of a subsidiary & — T E A Rl R dE, (EB18) 1,369 (14,739)
Investment income from financial assets at FVTPL 3R B2 A ET AB A
TREENDTFERE 13,524 -
Dividend income from financial assets at FVOCl 2K B2 A EFT A E 42 mE
W & R & E 2 BB WA 15,154 10,990
Recovery of financial guarantees contracts W E B B HERE 49 - 13,102
Recovery of a security deposit for W El2 491R B &
breaking contracts - 16,470
Others HAith 2,725 893
64,773 65,800

1 9 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
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6. FRBiATE A

AREEMERBAEF T8 AT IR
B/ (REA)IREE

2019
2019 %
Notes RMB'000
B aE ARETIT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 23 9,503,029 7,534,877
Project management costs I8 B BB AR 15,143 39,290
Operating costs for leased out properties ijﬁ#@%ﬂ%% N 4,705 1,231
Exhibition costs RGN 997 -
Hotel operation costs /@EZ‘“ V%N 23,441 10,885
Impairment loss recognised for BHEHELENE R I YE
completed properties for sales HRAEBE 23 3,932 26,882
Depreciation of items of property, ME  BENREHEETE
plant and equipment 13 23,201 5,160
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 16 15,532 15,708
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ E At £ 2 & &= 2k §5 14 710 681
Loss on disposal of items of property HjE*«@% B & % & B
plant and equipment " E1E - 43
Rental expenses e 16 2,199 4,126
Auditors’ remuneration % B4 Bl 357 B 3,000 2,800
Fair value gains on investment properties & ¥3% A FEW S (125,670) (106,300)
Fair value gains from financial assets REZEAFEGTABRED
at FVTPL SRMEENDFEKE 13,524 -
Employee benefit expense (including REEBANALZ (BEEEN
directors’ and chief executive'’s FEITHA B H
remuneration (note 8)): (fizEs)) -
Wages and salaries HehIE 183,545 195,493
Pension scheme contributions and BEEZSTERRREE
social welfare & 39,816 55,938

R BRI A R A A
REEERZY 193



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. B
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: AR AR DT -

2020 2019

2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT

Interests on bank and other borrowings 8RBT R E Ab S KF B 1,011,867 571,974
Interest expense arising from revenue contracts W s & 4IEA BT B X 313,401 238,253
Interests on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) HEaEF B (FEi6b) 1,042 1,268
Less: Interest capitalised W BARMEFE (1,123,980) (644,504)
202,330 166,991
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEITHAESHM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed BIELTHRBFAEE  F8A0E0E
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong 383(N@) ) O RO IEER AR (FEE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of ENEERDROE 2 EBORNFEE
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: ERFEITHAEFHFMOT :

2020 2019
2020 FF 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFIT

Fees e 804 629
Other emoluments: Hie -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FEALREWEAR 4,121 5114
Performance-related bonuses FRIRAENTEAL 6,954 2,161
Pension scheme contributions and BESFERR L SEF
social welfare 378 732
12,257 8,636

1 94 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERFETHAEHM =)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the 7\3’$$$f§*§ﬁ%§%13|€$ﬂﬁ§$ﬁ’\]
year were as follows: w|EWR

2020 2019
2020 FF 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT

Mr. Lam Ming Fai e e 252 202
Mr. Chan Peng Kuan BRIFE9 % 4 252 202
Mr. Chen Shi Min BRI & 5 4 300 225

804 629
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent BZE200F2An B EFELE
non-executive directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 BN TE I ERITESTNEMME
(2019: Nil). (2019%F : £&) o
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—g-greg 199



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8.
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

BEERTETHRAEFMHN

(b) MITESERIHTES

Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances Performance- contributions
and benefits related and social Total
inkind bonuses welfare remuneration
e EWR BEEEIM
BEYMEN REHBEAL IRUASEF HE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRt AR%¥Tn AR¥Tn AR®Tx
2020 20206
Executive directors: HITES
— Mr. Ma Bao Hua — BRELL 400 841 63 1,304
— Mr. Zhu Li —RXNRE 407 841 63 1,311
— Mr. Wang Zheng — FBEE 444 841 63 1,348
— Ms. Shao Lei — &Lt 437 841 63 1,341
Non-executive directors: FHTES
— Mr. Huang Qing Ping —F=sVEE 1,916 3,290 63 5,269
— Mr. Xie Chen Guang —HRkEE 517 300 63 880
4,121 6,954 378 11,453
2019 2019%F
Executive directors; WITES
— Mr. Ma Bao Hua — BRELE 619 425 122 1,166
— Mr. Zhu Li —RNRE 629 425 122 1,176
— Mr. Wang Zheng —IBREE 655 425 122 1,202
— Ms. Shao Lei — BTt 739 425 122 1,286
Non-executive directors; FHTEE
— Mr. Huang Qing Ping —E=EPEE 1,954 41 122 2117
— Mr. Xie Chen Guang —HRAREE 518 420 122 1,060
5114 2,161 732 8,007

Mr. Ma Bao Hua is the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company. There was no arrangement under which
a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019 were all directors. Details of those directors’
remuneration are set out in note 8 above.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in
or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Group's subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group'’s subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong were not liable for income tax as they did not have any
assessable profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to
the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing
costs and other property development expenditures. The Group has
estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review and approval
by the local tax bureau.

9.

10.

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

FEERSHMES

#H £2020F12 8318 K&2019412 A 31
BIEFE AEEaFMEENASE
o ZEEENHFMFBEI N XXM
80

8%

REBMBERAEBERE ARl RER
FRTERR 75 m) A i 18 B A 3R B B /95 7
RERELEMMAMEE BHRASHES
FREBEZHENHANESR  ~&E
RHASHENRBREZAESTMAIA
WEBRRBABNERMAER - AEE
B S A S FI BT B A B B A BN AT
B ARZARIEZE2020F 12 A31H
IEFEWER T B E BT E £ 8 E (] fEF
FimF o

AEERFREAMEELNHERRFA
IR 25% T RGN BI B RS

= 3 2 (B R T 3% BB 30% = 60% K R R
R T IR EBEB - THIEEEAY
EHEMBSRERARAY (2FE i
BN~ {8 SREK AN & B 5 b 2 5 35 5
%) o AEBRBEEBPRBEB AR R
MARE B IEER M - EH Kt
R TEREE - THISEHBEREHE
RIS BRI TR AR Z AL o

2019

20194F

RMB’000

ARETIT

Current tax; BIHARA IR

PRC corporate income tax R EFTIS R 268,329 492,732

PRC LAT AR B 4 I (E A 137,494 444,236
Deferred tax (note 19) EIERTE (HI5E19) (117,568) (357,199)

Total tax charge for the year FAMIAL H4A%E 288,255 579,769
SRR BB IEAR PR A A 197
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at
the effective income tax rate for each reporting period is as follows:

10. FrB% =)

REMEHE - NABREKRI DM B
NEEMAERDAERIDAERERFTE
R T AR FE B T S > IR B
RATSHREAENMERAERET

2019
2019
RMB'000
ARETTT
Profit before tax 55 BT v Al 674,399 940,129
At the statutory income tax rate REEMSEMETE 168,600 235,032
Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures & 481D 3 K Bt & A B FE(E 3 FI &2
and associates E518 (8,527) (16,482)
Investment income recognised in acquisition IWEEM B A Rl ERERIRE WA
of subsidiaries - (2,819)
Income not subject to tax BAERBUA (3,789) (2,748)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR NFLFA X 3,707 3,335
Unrecognised temporary differences AERNERER 6,181 2,902
Withholding taxes on undistributed profits Bl BB A RIR 9 Ik 48 A 89 78
of the subsidiaries in the PRC e (26,085) 3,101
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A B BT HENTIEEE (4,297) (38512)
Unrecognised tax losses AERRFIEEE 49,344 62,783
Provision for LAT T IE AR B 137,494 444,236
Tax effect on LAT THIRER AR E (34,373) (111,059)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate EASEERREGTEATIE
£ 288,255 579,769

The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures and associates

REE

EEREE QR RETIAX

amounted to RMB44,356,000 for the year (2019: RMB33,506,000). The
share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures and associates amounted
to RMB32,986,000 for the year (2019: RMB11,530,000). Both are included
in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

10. R85 % @)
o & BT R S0 5% PO P TS

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
2020 20194
12A31H 12H431H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
PRC corporate income tax RS 479,878 524,194
PRC LAT R 4 S (E 866,815 768,857
1,346,693 1,293,051
11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE

2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETTT

Proposed final — HK 3.06 cents EEARHRE —EREBER
(2019: HK 2.32 cents) per ordinary share 3.06 7841 (2019 4F = 232784) 37,205 30,062

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REEHIR R AR B AR AR B BERRN
FEERRBEARE LAER T AIMEER -

SR B R R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,446,962,138 in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 1,369,170,287
shares).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 in respect of
a dilution as the Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are

12. AR A B BERBEE AENL
BRER

EREARBIZEENERT ARG LR
BmiFEABEFRRF - REZE 2020
F1ANAEFEANDETEBRINE
g #01,446,962,138 A% (2019 &
1,369,170,287 &A% {7 ) °

RN EEREZE 2020 K& 2019412 A
NALEFEYEFTEEEEL B
AL 2020 F 2 20194912 A31 B IEFE
E2VNERERBFCEEBAEEDLAE -

BREAREERN c EBIHERNAT

based on: KRIF=HE
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity B AR ERERERE ARGRT
holders of the parent 182,627 150,309
Number of shares
BHAEE
2019
2019 4F
Shares [i:&vy
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FAEBITE AR NE T
in issue during the year 1,446,962,138 1,369,170,287
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - MEKRKE

Office
equipment
Motor and electronic Leasehold  Construction
Buildings vehicles device improvements in process Total

BOERE
By RE RETRE HEIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AREBTR ARMTR  ARETR

31 December 2020 2020F12F31H

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A18

Cost A 113,580 7,672 56,168 10,857 1,077,744 1.266,021

Accumulated depreciation  2:H7TE (1,356) (5,608) (9,176) (8,658) - (24,798)
Net carrying amount REFE 112,224 2,064 46,992 2,199 1,077,744 1,241,223

At 1 January 2020, netof ~ FA2020F 1818

accumulated depreciation 1B 2:H4TE 112,224 2,064 46,992 2,199 1,077,744 1,241,223
Additions B 63,840 203 2,014 1,563 410,861 478,481
Transfer from construction ~ ERFAETR

in progress 654,015 - - - (654,015) -
Transfer to investment BREREME

properties (note 15) (FzE15) - - - - (753,617) (753,617)
Disposals HE - (53) (285) (1,001) - (1,339)
Depreciation provided FRMERE (o)

during the year (note 6) (15,408) (830) (6,632) (331) - (23,201)

At31 December 2020, netof  722020€12 A318 -

accumulated depreciation 1B 2517 E 814,671 1,384 42,089 2,430 80,973 941,547
At 31 December 2020; R2020F 128318 :
Cost [B#N 831,435 7,822 57,897 11,419 80,973 989,546
Accumulated depreciation  2:HHE (16,764) (6,438) (15,808) (8,989) - (47,999)
Net carrying amount BEEE 814,671 1,384 42,089 2,430 80,973 941,547

R ERERAERAT
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

202

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

13. % - MEKRE#)

Office
equipment
Motor  and electronic Leasehold Construction
Buildings vehicles device  improvements in process Total
MAER HE
BT e RETHE NEEE ERIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR AREFR ARETR
31 December 2019 20195 12A31H
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A 1R
Cost 5% = 6,610 10903 12,046 352,721 382,280
Accumulated depreciation  23HHTE = (5,060) (6,171) (8407) = (19638)
Net carrying amount BHEE = 1550 4732 3639 352,721 362,642
At January 2019, netof R 2019F1 818
accumulated depreciation  $0f 2EHTE - 1550 4732 3,639 352,721 362,642
Additions NE - 783 2653 447 719,138 723,021
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B A7) 113,580 279 43006 - 6,365 163,230
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMB LA - - (32) - = (32)
Disposals & - - (362) (1636) (480) (2478)
Depreciation provided during £ F#7 & 44 ([t 6)
the year (note 6) (1,356) (548) (3,005) (251) - (5,160)
At31 December 2019, netof #2019 124318
accumulated depreciation 1 2EHTE 112224 2064 46,992 2,199 1,077,744 1241223
At 31 December 2019: R2019F12A318 :
Cost KA 113,580 7672 56,168 10857 1077744 1,266,021
Accumulated depreciation  E5HTE (1,356) (5,608) (9,176) (8658) = (24798)
Net carrying amount FHFE 112204 2,064 46992 2199 1,077,744 1241023

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB105,301,000 (2019:
RMB112,224,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group (note 31).

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB11,217,000 (2019: RMB12,186,000). The rate
used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation was 6.18%, which was the effective interest rate of the

specific borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE
31 December
2019
2019
12H31H
RMB'000
ARETTT
Software B
At the beginning of the year: REH
Cost B %N 6,946 6,922
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (1,239) (558)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 5,707 6,364
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 745 %] 8 BR B # (B 5,707 6,364
Additions NE 2,087 21
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R B A 7 = 3
Amortisation provided during
the year (note 6) FREEEEE (M5e) (710) (681)
Carrying amount at the end the year RNEXRNEREE 7,084 5,707
Atthe end of the year: RER
Cost AR 9,033 6,946
Accumulated amortisation RETHEEE (1,949) (1,239)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 7,084 5,707

REERERARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. REWYHE

Under
construction Completed Total
veged BT #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIE ARETT ARBTRT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 7R2019% 1 A1 BREREE = 811,900 811,900
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ~ AF{EFHE TS K F 5

(note 6) (KtzEe) - 106,300 106,300
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 720198 12 A31 B &

and 1 January 2020 2020F 1 A1 HREREA - 918,200 918,200
Additions NE 75,268 284,428 359,696
Transfer from property, plant and EEEYE BB MR

equipment (note 13) (PfF3E13) 753,617 = 753,617
Transfer from right-of-use assets e AEEE (M 16)

(note 16) 107,332 - 107,332
Transfer from completed properties ~ BEEBFEHENDET

held for sale (note 23) s (£ 23) - 509,834 509,834
Net gain from a fair value adjustment A (BT B 1S5 F 50 81,983 58,038 140,021
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 720204 12 A 31 HHEREE 1,018,200 1,770,500 2,788,700

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2020
based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at RMB2,788,700,000 (2019: RMB918,200,000). The
Group's senior finance manager and the chief financial officer decide,
after approval from the board of directors of the Company, to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's senior finance manager and the chief financial
officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting.

Certain of the Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB602,490,000 at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB225,087,000) have been pledged to secure bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).
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The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

the Group's investment properties:

S 05 e A B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

15. REWVZE #)

DNFEEBR

TERGAREERENENAFEFE
B

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

72020512 A 31 HERAUTRBIN D FEFE

Quoted Significant Significant

pricesin observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REBRT S BEAUEE BAFITHRE

HRE BARE BAHE
(B—%) (B=&) (B=4) et
Recurring fair value FATIE B #1TH) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
measurement for KEHERATEFE AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥T R

Investment properties REM
Under construction pexgea - - 1,018,200 1,018,200
Completed BRI - - 1,770,500 1,770,500
- - 2,788,700 2,788,700
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
P20195 12 A 31 BEA T RN AT ENE

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

PR BT BEAAHE EATATHE

HHRE AR WABE
(B—%&) (B=#) (B=%) st
Recurring fair value A TRIE B #1TH RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
measurement for RENHRTETE AREFT ARBFT AREFT AREBFT

Investment properties KEYE

Completed D% T = = 918,200 918,200
= = 918,200 918,200

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019:

Nil).

RAEE  F—REE -_FKzETER
FEEMERE  TESBSNEREA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

15. REWE #)
AR BIRE Y E R B R E T R

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: TEBHABERE
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fRIE R EXTAHERAHE EERMEFLY
2019
2019%F
Completed commercial Income method Estimated rental value RMB31-122 RMB22-176
properties (RMB per sg.m. and per month)
ERTIEENE LN fhEtie AR¥31ZE ARE 2R TLE
(AR®/THARARYE,/R) 122 7% 176 7T
Capitalisation rate 1.6%-6% 5.0%-6.0%
BARf X 1.6%-6% 5.0%-6.0%
Long term vacancy rate 3%-15% 5.0%-12.0%
REZEEX 3%-15% 5.0%-12.0%
Discount rate 4.3%-5.3% 4.75%-5.5%
IR =K 4.3%-5.3% 4.75%-5.5%
Commercial properties Comparison Expected profit margin 12.5% N/A
under construction method
EREENE B AHFER 12.5% N
Estimated land price RMB2,594-11,075 N/A
(RMB per sg.m.)
et E AR¥2,594 T N
(AR®/FHXK) 1,075

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined by the
income method by taking into account the net rental income of the
properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable in the
existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine the fair
value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to the comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
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15.

16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of commercial properties under construction is determined
by using the comparison method, with reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the
property assuming it was completed and, where appropriate, after
deducting the following items:

Estimated construction costs and professional fees to be expensed
to complete the properties that would be incurred by a market
participant; and

Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to
hold and develop the property to completion.

The higher the estimated construction costs, the lower the fair value of
the investment properties under construction would result.

The fair value of the commercial properties under construction is
determined by using the comparison method, and with reference to
sales transactions as available in the relevant market, comparable land in
close proximity has been selected and adjustments have been made to
account for the difference in factors such as location and property size.

The higher the estimated land price, the higher is the fair value of the
investment properties under construction.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings, machinery
and motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 35 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings and machinery
generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles
generally have lease terms of 2 years.

15.

16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
movements during the years are as follows:

16. A4 (@)
EEBERABEAE)
(a) FHEEE
A B R E N R EE R
WEBHLAT -

Prepaid
land lease Plant and Motor
payments machinery vehicles Total
FEAT L i
HENR BFERHE:S B @et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥Trt AR®TRT AR%®TR
As at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H 263,870 20,123 766 284,759
Additions NE - 2483 - 2,483
Additions as a result of W — B A A
acquisition of a subsidiary IR E 9,328 312 = 9,640
Depreciation charge (note 6)  ITE & (Ki5F6) (5,439) (9,890) (379) (15,708)
As at 31 December2019and #2019 12 831 H K
and 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 267,759 13,208 387 281,354
Additions NE - 7,818 - 7,818
Transferred to investment EBEEERTIRE
properties completed W (BisE15)
(note 15) (107,332) - - (107,332)
Reassessment of lease contracts BT HFHE S 47
— termination — &k - (2,553) - (2,553)
Depreciation charge (note 6) & & A (MizEe) (3,342) (11,803) (387) (15,532)
As at 31 December 2020 R 202012 A31 8 157,085 6,670 - 163,755

As of 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's right-of-use assets
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB8,834,000 (2019:
RMB107,332,000) have been pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group, which are disclosed in note 31.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (Continued) 16. Y (»)

(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during HEBENERELRERNEFH W
the years are as follows: T
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January »1 A1 BREREE 19,898 19,642
New leases HEE 7,818 2,483
Accretion of interest recognised during FABE BRI SILE (FHE7)
the year (note 7) 1,042 1,268
Reassessment of lease contracts EFEHEESRILE
termination (2,545) -
Transfer to other payables HEE S E b e FRIAR (10,501) -
Payments INE:N (7,005) (3,785)
Carrying amount at 31 December ©®12 A3 BHRERE 8,707 19,898
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BNEAES 75 5,164 16,826
Non-current portion JERNEREE 75 3,543 3,072
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () REFZTEIANBEHRBITEN
leases are as follows: T :
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEaEd s (7)) 1,042

Expense relating to short-term leases and HEHHE MEEEEEHEEBN
leases of low-value assets AX (FrATTBFES) (FizEe)

(included in administrative expenses) (note 6) 2,199

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 6) TREEENTEER (Hie) 15,532
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RiBam P HERA IR B RE 18,773

HERMIRE R H AN E NI ER
RHFE35(C) ©

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 35 (c) to the
financial statements.
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of two
commercial properties in Nanjing under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was RMB16,360,000 (2019: RMB3,205,000), details
of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

16. @)

AEEESHHEA

AEBREBELCEHELTHEEBEEMRE
TR EWE(MiE15) - HR B IEME
EmEYE - HEKFBEERBL M
e WRERTMACHARRES -
AEERFARRHES WA BARE
16,360,0007T (20194F = A R # 3,205,000
T0) ¢ A IEE R ISR EES o

R2020F 12 A31 B » ZAEBEBL R
RIS B0 A8 2 T E T B Ak 21 HA D e U Y
RITBBEEMZKOT :

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

2020 20194F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFT

Within one year —FR 42,526 19,097
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 72,376 30,149
After two years but within three years MFEZRE=FA 74,961 52,520
After three years but within four years —FRENFR 77,254 55,104
After four years but within five years MERERFEA 80,884 57,089
After five years hFi& 678,512 487,186
1,026,513 701,145

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17. REETENKRE

31 December

31 December

FEIEBEFE

Share of net assets

2020 2019

2020 F 20195
12A31H 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
180,725 78,103

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with joint ventures
are disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements. There was no recent
history of default and past due amounts for loans to joint ventures. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees of
RMB552,000,000 to banks and other institutions in connection with
financial facilities granted to joint ventures (2019: RMB1,915,592,000). The
directors of the Company consider that no provision is needed in respect

of the guarantees since the fair value is not significant.

(a) Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

17. REEDPENKRE »)

2020512 A31 B AEBRETAE
ENPFEE RRITRE M EERE
(R AR ¥ 552,000,0007T (20194 © AR
#51,915592,0007T) e NRARIEERAE -
HRAFELREKX  RBBRZSE
RIEL B -

(a) AEESELENFBAOT

2020 2020 F
Percentage of
Place of Rl
Paid-in  registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Names capital and business interest power sharing activities
iR
a8 BRER  EBREL e RERE  BEER FEER
RMB’000
AR®T R
MMEEREEERERER 30,000 PRC/ 45% 45% 45% Property development
DA (TMNRER" Hangzhou, (note d)
China 2020
MNBERCEEREREE 30000 B/ HEHM 45% 45% 45% MERH
AR ([HMEEA]) 2020%F (FizEd)
HNEEEMERRA 180,000 PRC/ 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% Property development
(‘EMEE" Suzhou, (note b)
China 2017
HNESEHERAR 180,000 hE,/ 16.7% 16.7% 167% WX
([#MEE]) F B M (Fi3ED)
20178
NI REERRRA 100,000 PRC/ 2001% 2001% 2001% Property development
(BRI ZR) Suzhou, (note ¢)
China 2018
FNURERERAA 100,000 hE,/ 2001% 2001% 2001% #EFE
([ %R ) F B M iF29)
2018%F
BMNEEEEERRA 26,100 PRC/ 40% 40% 40% Property development
“BINEIHE" Wenzhou, (note e)
China 2020
BMEEBEARAR 26,100 hE,/ 40% 40% 40% IR
(DRM D) R ELR M (FizEe)
2020F
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

212

(a) Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: (Continued)

2020 (Continued)

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

Pursuant to an agreement between the Group and R EEE %4
FRAE] (‘FEIREEE"), on 25 December 2020, the Group transferred
85% equity interests in Fg R #R 3 & , a subsidiary of the Group which
holds the equity interests in & 2 {% f 3k, to g = 22 J& . After the
equity transfer, B =G is no longer a joint venture of the Group.

— i

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, k18 & had six shareholders, each
holding 16.70%, 16.66%, 16.66%, 16.66%, 16.66% and 16.66% equity
interests, respectively. Pursuant to the articles of association of & /18 &,
all shareholder resolutions of & Il 18 & shall be resolved by the six
shareholders on a unanimous basis. In light of this requirement, &k &
& is accounted for as a joint venture of the Company notwithstanding

that the Company held a 16.7% equity interest as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, Suzhou Litai had five shareholders
holding 20.01%, 20%, 20%, 20% and 19.99% equity interests, respectively.
Pursuant to the articles of association of &t #N 3Z 2%, all shareholder
resolutions of &/ 3ZZE shall be resolved by the five shareholders on a
unanimous basis. In light of this requirement, &1 322 is accounted for
as a joint venture of the Company notwithstanding that the Company
held a 20.01% equity interest as at 31 December 2020.

The Group acquired 45% equity from 25 ZE S EBR A 7] on 25
December 2020. The Group owned 45% of the voting rights and all
shareholder resolutions of #71 /N #R 52 & shall be resolved by the two
shareholders on a unanimous basis. In light of this requirement, FJ'
$R 324 is accounted as a joint venture.

The Group acquired 40% equity from Fu M L85 B 7555 A PR A7)
on 15 September 2020. The Group owned 40% of the voting rights
and all shareholder resolutions of j& /N & ¥ shall be resolved by the
two shareholders on a unanimous basis. In light of this requirement,
B N4 ¥ is accounted as a joint venture,

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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17. REELENKRE 2
(a) AEBMALOCENFEBOT : (&
2020 & (&)

Mizka :

MIaED -

Mizkc :

MizEd

MosEe :

BEAEEREREEEES
PRARE([FREE )1 20204F
12A25 BRI — I8z - &
SEEEEMB AR M RRE
ME8swix#E TR EE - M
MRREEREREGRIEE
BR#E - RIRIESERE  BmRE
EBTBAREENG SRS -

R 20204F 2019412 318 -
HNESBENERE  §8S
Bl H16.70% * 16.66% *
16.66% ~ 16.66% * 16.66% &
1666% %1 - IRIBEFMEEMN
MAHERME - FINEERFT
ERERERERAANBRE—
HWER BERZHATE  HMNE
BEARINABADAMAEE D
¥ BEAAFN20205128
31 BB E16.7%MHE -

M 20204 & 2019512 A31 8 -
BMNIRBERERR - H5l#E
A 20.01% * 20% * 20% * 20% K&
19.99% A% 1 - BIRE M L FH
ABEIRMA - BRINZFAFT
ERERZRERRERE—
BB R ERZMTE - BHML
FARINBEARAANE &R
¥ BEARAIR2020F128
31 BB HE 2001% 54 ©

AEBRK 2020512 A 25 AU EE
BEHESEEGR A AH45%
MR- REBEHISRNIEER
HE R A 85 52 0% 50 BT A R ERR
HEREHMBRE—BER-
R ZARTE - TN R B WA BR
D AREEMREE -

AL B R 202059 8158 WK EE
MBI A ERAER QA
40% R AE - AEEBES 40% % F
HEROR M & AT IR B RS
REHMBBRR—HE R &
REZBE  BINEEARY B

BEDE-



17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B8R M 18 &, which was considered a material joint venture of the (b)
Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December

2019, the Group co-develops a property development project

with the other joint venture partner in Mainland China and &g /!

18 is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of & /118 adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

17. REEDPENKRE »)

mMIEE (BE20205F 128318 K
201912 A31H IEFEHKR A
EENEAAELE) B RN
ME—REEhERHE Hﬁﬁ%’ff—
EEMEMEER @ KAEZD

EEo

TRIITEEHEMNEENI B E R
WE ERSTHRREMEREL
AR R A M B RR AN REE
R

31 December

2019
20194
12A31H
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 153,183 261,564
Other current assets HMREEE 336,424 1,268,837
Total current assets MENE EBRE 489,607 1,530,401
Non-current assets EMENE E 7 17,438
Current liabilities mENEE (178,009) (1,405,076)
Non-current liabilities FEREBBEE = -
Net assets BERE 311,605 142,763
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HAEEREEEENER
in the joint venture; YR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership N E [ FTh B RE L 1) 16.7% 16.7%
Group's share of net assets of the AEBEEMELECEEEFE
joint venture 52,038 23,841
52,038 23,841
Revenue g 1,171,189 1,624
Cost/expenses BRAFX (995,667) (21,455)
Taxes TIE (6,680) 4,958
Net profit/(loss) and other comprehensive £ R3F5% I,/ (E548) R H b 2™
income/(loss) for the year Wz (E518) 168,842 (14,873)
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(c) FREMHBL, which was considered a material joint venture of the (c)
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, co-develops a
property development project with the other joint venture partner
in Mainland China and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of B R {E{G K adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

17. REEDPENKRE »)

R EE (B Z 201912 A31 8
IEFERRATESENERES D
E)EPBEAMNS —ZAEE
BHERMAE —EEMERZIE

B RAEZEANERE-

TRINEBRERERRNIEE
BRZ  CRetBRRERAZERE
HAARY B S M HRERANRE

the consolidated financial statements: (EESEE
31 December
2019
20194
12A31H8
RMB’000
ARETIT
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 190,060
Other current assets HMREEE 3,075,890
Total current assets MENEEBRE 3,265,950
Non-current assets EMENE E 99
Current liabilities mEaE (1,926,202)
Non-current liabilities IERBAE (1,265,609)
Net assets BEFE 74,238
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HAEEREEDENER
in the joint venture; YR -
Proportion of the Group's ownership AN B P HE A RELL 50%
Group's share of net assets of the AEFEMELECEEEFE
joint venture 37,119
37,119
Revenue g 1,082,459 35,353
Cost/expenses KA B (1,155,241) (30,209)
Taxes R - (1,286)
Net profit/(loss) and other comprehensive 48 (RF5% Fll, (E548) K H At
income/(loss) for the year 2EWE(EBE) (72,782) 3,858

At 31 December 2020, Fg FUEG 3 was no longer a joint venture

of the Group (note 17(a) note a).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(d)

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

17. REEDPENKRE »)

& M € B2 which was considered a material joint venture of the (d) BINeHE (E=2020F12A31HIE
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, co-develops a FERERAREBENERE LD
property development project with the other joint venture partner E)EPRBRAMAN S —RZEEE
in Mainland China and is accounted for using the equity method. PHHARHAR —EERMERZE
B RAESEAR-
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIREBERMNEENITEER
information in respect of )& /1 & ¥ adjusted for any differences in BE Bt RETMEEEL
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the TR BAR A B RS Rk A Y BRI (B
consolidated financial statements: HER
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 143,903
Other current assets BEMnsEE 716,411
Total current assets MENE B 860,314
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,026
Current liabilities mEaE (223,132)
Non-current liabilities FEmEBBEE (390,000)
Net assets BEFE 248,208
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate:  BZN £ B B 42 N &) AR 25 41 B
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEBFTE AR 40%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEBEEHE AR EETE 99,283
99,283
Revenue Wz -
Cost/expenses A X (12,792)
Tax FiI8 -
Net loss and other comprehensive loss for the year FRFEEREMEEESE (12,792)

SR B AE R B R A A
—ZTEER
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(e) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:

17. REEDPENKRE »)

(e) TRIKERLFNEBRNANEEE
ERENEETTEER

31 December

2019

20194

12H31H

RMB'000

ARETFT

Share of the joint ventures' loss for the year R fE(L & & 1> E518 4,160 (14,885)

Share of the joint ventures' total EEEECEN2EEE

comprehensive income/(expense) (%)% 4,160 (14,885)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s NEER AL MERENER

investments in the joint ventures BE 29,404 17,143

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2020 as the
investments in joint ventures are considered fully recoverable
(2019: Nil). The joint ventures have been accounted for using the
equity method in these financial statements.

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

AAREERE  AREGELEN
B AR AR REUIRE - B 2020
F12 431 BHAERRER#E (2019
FE)  RERLELEDNZS
B ek AE i A AR ©

18. REFE R RIAVIRE

31 December
2019
20194
12H31H
RMB'000
ARBTT

FEIGEEFE

Share of net assets

2,142,510 910,513

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with associates are
disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements. There was no recent
history of default and past due amounts for loans to associates. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees of RMB
1,915,592,000 to banks and other institutions in connection with financial
facilities granted to associates (2019: RMB492,000,000). The directors of
the Company consider that no provision is needed in respect of the
guarantees since the fair value is not significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: (a) AEEBMELARIMEBWOT :
2020 2020 F
Percentage of
Place of EEiL:
Paid-in  registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activities
i B &
a8 BRER  EBREL 2oL REE  EEER FEER
RMB’000
ARET R
BRI HEREERAR 50,000 PRC/ 49% 49% 49% Property development
(BRI Nanjing,
China 2014
BRI EHEREER AR 50,000 HE/ 49% 49% 4% MERE
(TARBs ) RERER
20145
NEARNEHEREERAA 50,000 PRC/ 50% 30% 50% Property development
(‘RIS Maanshan,
China 2018
MEHEHFEHEREER A 50,000 HE/ 50% 30% 50% MERE
([FgsL£H5]) H Bl S8
20185
BENEARHEREERAR 100,000 PRC/ 19.99% 19.99% 1999% Property development
(‘EMER" Suzhou,
China 2017
FNERRHEREER AR 100,000 HE/ 19.99% 19.99% 1999% ¥EER%
(TEBMZER D wh AR M
20175
BERAEIEREER AT 20,000 PRC/ 50% 49% 50% Property development
(‘A HREIRA" Hefei, (note a)
China 2018
AERAEHEREER AR 20,000 R/ 50% 49% 50% YIERE
(TaREER3A)) HRESE (FizEa)
20185
EHENEXBR AT 20,000 PRC/ 49% 49% 49% Property development
(BB Wuxi, (note b)
China 2019
BHEMERERAA 20,000 HE/ 49% 49% 4% MERE
(MEHE ) H B A 55 (FizED)
20195

RABREBARAT
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. NEE A TINIRE (@)
(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: (Continued) (a) AEBEBMESARMFEBOT : (&)
2020 (Continued) 2020 F (&)
Percentage of
Place of Rl
Paid-in  registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activities
TR
a8 EMER  EBREL HEE REE  EEER FEEE
RMB’000
ARETR
BRIRETREEXERARAR 463,725 PRC/ 33% 15% 33% Property development
(FRIRETHR") Nanjing, (note )
China 2019
AR IETREXERERAR 463725 HE/ 33% 15% 3% MERE
(MERIETE]) HEIER k29)
20195
HRAEHEEREER AR 147,059 PRC/ 33% 15% 33% Property development
(ERILER) Nanjing, (note d)
China 2019
BRI EHNEHEREERAR 147,059 B/ 33% 15% 33% MEFEE
(TERALER]) HEIER (F¥zEd)
20195
aMmEREHEREBRARF 120,000 PRC/ 40% 40% 40% Property development
("BIMNESR" Taizhou, (note )
China 2019
ANTERBHEREERAF 120,000 B/ 40% 40% 40% WERE
(TBMERD) Bl &M (FizEe)
20195
BERBEEMEREERAR 20,000 PRC/ 33% 33% 33% Property development
(BEERY Hefei, (note f)
China 2018
AERREHEREERAF 20,000 hE/ 33% 33% 33% MEMEE
(TaREER ) REIS R (FzEr)
2018%F
HRENEHEREARAR 20,000 PRC/ 30% 30% 30% Property development
(‘FERER) Nanjing, (note g)
China 2019
BRENEHEREERAF 20,000 hE/ 30% 30% 30% ¥R
(TFamEEs ) HEIER (FzEg)
20195
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. NEE A TINIRE (@)
(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: (Continued) (a) AEBEBMESARMFEBOT : (&)
2020 (Continued) 2020 F (&)
Percentage of
Place of Rl
Paid-in  registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activities
iR R
% BEREX  XBFEM wERE RERE  EEER TTEE
RMB’000
AR®T R
LBEREXERAA 50,000 PRC/ 40% 40% 40% Property development
(EEEE" Shanghai, (note h)
China 2020
LEEEEEARAR 50,000 HE/ 40% 40% 40% MERH
(I E&EE]) HE (FizEh)
20205
MMNAKCEEBER AR 40,000 PRC/ 29.7% 29.7% 29.7% Property development
(TSN Hangzhou, (note )
China 2020
MMNEARERERBR AR 40,000 hE,/ 29.7% 29.7% 297% MEFRE
(THunsnE L) FR LA M (F¥zE1)
20205
HRBRERMEREERAR 20,000 PRC/ 16.5% 12.25% 165% Property development
(‘FERRE" Nanjing, (note )
China 2020
HRRERHEREERAA 20,000 HE/ 16.5% 1225% 165% MERZE
(TFmERIE ) HERER (F¥zE))
20205
TERBENEHEREERAR 20,000 PRC/ 20% 20% 20% Property development
(TERRM Nanjing, (note k)
China 2020
TERENEHEREERAA 20,000 HE/ 20% 20% 0% YEFZE
(NI=ERmM]) HERER (FiaEk)
20205
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows: (Continued)

220

2020 (Continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

Note (c):

Note (d):

Note (e):

Note (f):

Under a co-operation agreement entered into between the Group
and & ETEIB B IR AR A F] on 7 December 2018, & AE#R 54
is a project company in which the Group and & JE/B#E (b & 18
ABR A ) each holds 50% equity interests, respectively. & AE#R 54
is accounted as an associate of the Group as the Group only
exercises significant influence on it according to the articles of
association of & JE#R5A .

The Group established #8575 in cooperation with R 2511 &
¥ B R 2 7 on 5 March 2019. # % 75 1] is accounted as an
associate of the Group as the Group owns 49% of the voting rights
and only exercises significant influence on #& #% 75 3] according to
the articles of association.

On 31 August 2019 , the Group established & 5 T f 7t £ with
Nanjing Xiaguan Urban Cons. & Dev. (Group) Co,, Ltd. and Langfang
Jingyu Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. with 33% interests . 7 &%
L JfE 7T % is accounted as an associate of the Group as the Group
owns 15% of the voting rights and only exercises significant
influence on 8 7L 7TE8 according to the articles of association.

On 31 August 2019, the Group established B 2 FL 2 ¥k with
Nanjing Xiaguan Urban Cons. & Dev. (Group) Co., Ltd. and Langfang
Jingyu Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. with 33% interests . 78 2
FL & Bk is accounted as an associate of the Group as the Group
owns 15% of the voting rights and only exercises significant
influence on B R LK according to the articles of association.

The Group established & /N 2£3% in cooperation with Z& ) T #& 1L
EWEMEZEESRRR A on 16 April 2019. & M X Fis
accounted as an associate of the Group as the Group owns 40% of
the voting rights and only exercises significant influence on & M3
Z& according to the articles of association.

The Group acquired 33% equity from & &% & on 28 August 2019.
& FEEX & is accounted as an associate of the Group, as the Group
owns 33% of the voting rights and only exercises significant
influence on & AE&% & according to the articles of association.
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18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

(a) AEEBMEATNEBZOT : (&
2020 & (&)
Wit : REASEHESEEBMES

M D) :

MiaE (o)

Fi5E (d) :

EACK

B -

EAHRARR2018F12A7H
RIMMEEG® - AR A
AEEERAEBECXERES
RARE B D 5B 50% &=
ZIEE AR c ARAEBEER
BEREIRA 2B EHERARNE
HIEMERNZE - AR
ABRFIEREE ZHEE A 7A] o

AEBM 2019435 HEPER
B B X G R A RS EKILE
5 25340 o B AN 5 B A 49%
BREERERBABERMAA
HESEAEMEATE &
IR A BRDI fEAN S5 B 2 Bt

M2019F8 A31H » ANAQ A #&
MR NERTERAR(EE)
AR A A KBS R 2 S i EE 7
BHERABIKMYBERILET
8% MANE B A33%E -
AR AEEHEE I5%IREER
EREAGERMAUNEERT
ETLSREMEATE  HER
TIIETT 88 ABRSIVER & B 2 B

MR2019F8 A31H » A A&
AR TERmERRAE(ER)
BIRAE R ER R 2 i 2 B
BHR AR K ERFLEW
MASEEFE3B%ER > BN
AEEHEE 5% ZERER
ARG E A2 40 R $ R A FLE
MEMBEBARTE  WERILEN
ABRSIWEREB 2Bt Q7]

ANEER2019F4F16 8 B
EHELENEHEZRAR
AEEAERLEMET - R
AN B A 40%1R 2R R IR
BAKERMAE A N EFEE
MEATE WAEMNERAR
PIERNEE 2B AT -

R2019F8 A28 » AN & E I
B A IR B 330 i 4 - A BEEX
BB AAEBMOEE AT -
FRRABIRBAKZREMA - &
SEEABUHIREE BE
HEERBEEATE -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows: (Continued)

2020 (Continued)

Note (g):

Note (h):

Note (i):

Note (j):

Note (k):

On 30 October 2019, the Group established 58 R B3 with £ 52 B
AR EEEER AR with 35% interest and voting rights in B R
E& 4% . On 1 January 2020, B8 I EE Y added a new shareholder, # &%
A& B % B BR 2 8 with 36% interest, since then interest and
voting rights of the Company in & R EEH, have become 30%. B
BB is accounted as an associate because the Group only exercises
significant influence on it.

The Group acquired 40% equity from _E/EBAEERZEER A
&) on 24 April 2020. £ /8 & is accounted as an associate of the
Group, as the Group owned 40% of the voting rights and only
exercises significant influence on /8 & according to the articles
of association.

The Group acquired 45% equity interests in A SLE from A Sl
FEEEAR AT on 19 May 2020. On 17 June 2020 5= Fig B
BREAGRTCEARER) (‘5= E") made capital injection
into 7T/ §13 which led to 34% equity interests hold by 3z #1482,
and the equity interest hold by the Group in #TL &L¥ reduced to
29.7%. #1 N 8 B is accounted for as an associate of the Group as
the Group owns 29.7% of the voting rights and only exercises
significant influence on fMN8l¥ according to the articles of
association.

The Group established B4R in cooperation with BT T~ 24
W ERFAE(KE)BRAR, MRELEELEFERES
PR A &) and 71 N T 39 3 A 3% & B A PR 2 &) on 30 September
2020. B IR #RE is accounted for as an associate of the Group as the
Group owns 12.25% of the voting rights and only exercises
significant influence on R ERIE according to the articles of
association.

The Group established /T 2 [& Ml in cooperation with B H
MBI EREAR AR, MREFBEEAR AR and BF
RE=®FERABR QA on 25 November 2020. /T % [& I M is
accounted as an associate of the Group as the Group owns 20% of
the voting rights and only exercises significant influence on /L % [&
¥ according to the articles of association.

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()
(a) AEEBLARGENT : (&)

2020 F (&)
MEE(Q) © HA20196F 108308 © A% EH

FHEE (h) -

PR3 G)

MYFEQ)

B (k)

SR B AE R B R A A

BREEREBSERRDAIK
SEREE - WA ERE
35% M 7 AR EHE o 1 20204F 1
A18 - EREEHE —BRE
MRMBHEEARAR - I
BEERMEBHEEBR AT

36% - BUILARA RIRERE
W AR B 30% © /B

RAEMEHEEEEAY
2 S A B B B
R

AN E 202054 H24 B W BB
LEEHEHEREERA A
HI140% AR 4 - AR B IR A=
T2 R4 7 5 B 7 6 40% 1% 1
WEH EBEEEBRERNY
2 W ESERARIIERE
EHEE AR -

AEBR2020%F5 8198 B M
I L > 2B IB A PR A B U E
0 BB B9 45% A% A o 722020
FeAI7H ZEHBEREA
BrEERAE) (ZEME
BEETFMINNE  EBE
FAE BB 34% R mAE
E AN S AT % A 6 AR R
F7% - AR AEEHE B
207% R EiE RERBABER
40 Bl ¥ 0 N S B e A0 B K R
2 WA NS A BRI EARN &
E2HE N -

ANEER2020F9 8308 &R
R NEEmEREAE(SE)
ERAR - BRAIKELE
I EE BB A BR A R) R 0N T 4R
EZHRBEMBERQRE EKL
EREE - BRASEES
1225% % ZfE RIERIFAKE
2 A0 Y B R AR EME AN EE K
2 WERREARIIERS
B HE N -

AREBMK 2020511 A 25 A EHi
REEH R EERZE AR
AR MREEEEBRAA
kEBREGCEZREGR AR
BERIER N - HRA
EBEE B 200 ZERERE
AR E TR AT E &= I oM i
MEAFE  SUIZRIEMA
BRDIVEAREE 2B & A A] ©
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A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REFE X FRVIRE ()

(b) R BHE, which was considered a material associate of the Group (b) m=RBI(EZE2020F KX 2019412
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, is a strategic B31HILEEHEAEANERNE KN
partner of the Group engaged in property development and is BeEna) AAEENEKESIERE
accounted for using the equity method. - REEMERE  KAERZE

ABR °
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIRAE BB R B A S E R
information in respect of B R B adjusted for any differences in HE one:tBREAEZEFH
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the BN AR A B S ek A A R E (A
consolidated financial statements: HER -

31 December

2019
20194
12A31H8
RMB’000
ARETIT
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 17,802 5452
Other current assets HMREEE 698,966 680,617
Total current assets MENEEBRE 716,768 686,069
Non-current assets EMENE E = 1
Current liabilities mEaE (150,417) (142,647)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE = =
Net assets BEFE 566,351 543,423
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HAAC SR BB A R R R A
in the associate: HER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RN EE FT{h A RE L 1) 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the associate NS B FE(EEE L N 7 B E HE 277,512 266,277
277,512 266,277
Revenue Wz 35,642 16,966
Cost/expenses %53 (5,071) (1,368)
Taxes AL (7,643) 64,997
Net profit and other comprehensive FRFF R EH A2 E IR
income for the year 22,928 80,595

2 2 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(c)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 8 L 2 8, which was considered a material associate of the (c)
Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, is a

strategic partner of the Group engaged in property development

and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of FE&FL#8 adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

& FLE S (B = 2020 FF K2 2019 4F
NRAJNBLEFEHERABAREEH
BABENR) AAEBEMNERES
BB EEEME  KAE
A AR ©

TRIREBMEZIL =N 5 E
BRZ  CRetBRRERZEE
HAARY B S M HRERANRE
B :

31 December

2019

20194

12A31H

RMB'000

ARETIT

Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 121,185 173,603
Other current assets HMREEE 1,328,127 1,123,008

Total current assets MENEEBRE 1,449,312 1,296,691
Non-current assets EREEE 10,525 6,633
Current liabilities mEaE (991,070) (833,262)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (115) =
Net assets BEFE 468,652 470,062

Reconciliation to the Group's interest HEAC SR BB A R R A
in the associate: HER

Proportion of the Group’s ownership N E [ FT{h A RE L 1) 50% 50%

Group's share of net assets of the associate  NE& B fE(L B2 A Rl & FE 234,326 235,031

234,326 235,031

Revenue Wz 460,273 -
Cost/expenses % V53 (461,683) (1,903)
Tax 18 = _

Net loss and other comprehensive loss FRFBBEREMEEEE

for the year (1,410) (1,903)
SRR BB IEAR PR A A 223
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REFE A TINRE »)
(d) & BB 8 3k, which was considered a material associate of the (d) ARMEERsA(E = 20204F K& 20194F 12

Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, is a
strategic partner of the Group engaged in property development
and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of & BE#R 54 adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statement:

A3TBEFERBAREENER
BERR) RAEENERAIER
o REFMERSE  KARDE
N

TRIIREBAERANHBEER
WE ERSTHRREMEREL
AR R A M B RR AN REE
R

31 December

2019

20194F

12A31H8

RMB’000

ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 205,391 212,504

Other current assets EMREEE 394,758 682,080

Total current assets MENEEBRE 600,149 894,584

Non-current assets ERBEE 277 429

Current liabilities mEaE (262,555) (478,260)

Non-current liabilities IERBEE (83,100) (277,000)

Net assets BEFE 254,771 139,753
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HEAC SR BB A R R A

in the associate: HER

Proportion of the Group’s ownership N E [ FT{h A RE L 1) 50% 50%

Group's share of net assets of the associate  NE& B fE(L B2 A Rl & FE 127,385 69,876

127,385 69,876

Revenue g 949,030 =

Cost/expenses KA, B (795,618) (13,474)

Tax I8 (38,394) 3,227
Net profit/(loss) and other comprehensive £ X35 I, (E548) K H At

income/(loss) for the year 2EE(BE) 115,018 (10,247)
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(e)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B = B8 3, which was considered a material associate of the

(e)

Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, is a
strategic partner of the Group engaged in property development
and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of E SR EE# adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

A (& 2020 FF F2 20194F 12
A3 BEFEERBAREENER
BENTE) AAEENEE SR
¥ REEWEME  RAEDE
N

TRIRNE R REROM AR
WE ERSTHRREMEREL
AR R A M B RR AN REE
R

31 December

2019

20194F

12A31H8

RMB’000

ARETIT

Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 544,239 3,316

Other current assets EMnaEE 1,811,287 1,030,916

Total current assets MENEEBRE 2,355,526 1,034,232

Non-current assets IEmBEE 81 -

Current liabilities mEaE (785,093) (1,014,378)

Non-current liabilities ErnEaE (1,199,081) —

Net assets BEFE 371,433 19,854
Reconciliation to the Group's interest EAZRER BB & N B AR

in the associate: HER

Proportion of the Group’s ownership RN EE FT{h A RE L 1) 30% 35%

Group's share of net assets of the associate AN [E fE(LEE & N ) B EFE 111,430 6,949

111,430 6,949

Revenue Wz = -

Cost/expenses BRAFX (28,397) (146)

Tax 18 = _
Net loss and other comprehensive FRFBBEREMEEEE

loss for the year (8,519) (146)

SRR BB IEAR PR A A 225
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$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(f) @ = L # %, which was considered a material associate of the (f)
Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, is a
strategic partner of the Group engaged in property development
and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of m R FL &3 adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

the consolidated financial statements:

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

R FLEE I (B & 2020 FF 2. 2019 4F
NRAJNBHLEFEHERABAREEH
BABENR) AAEBEMNERES
BB EEEME  KAE
A AR ©

TRINEBERERIL =R EE
BRZ  CRetBRRERZEE
HAARY B S M HRERANRE
B :

31 December

2019

2019

12A31H

RMB'000

ARETTT

Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 254,433 32,546

Other current assets EMnaEE 2,335,574 626,240

Total current assets MENE EBEE 2,590,007 658,786

Non-current assets ERBEE 7,233 428

Current liabilities mENEE (1,124,243) (512,550)

Non-current liabilities ErnEaE (753,176) =

Net assets BEFE 719,821 146,664
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HEAC SR BB A R R A

in the associate: HHER -

Proportion of the Group’s ownership N E [ FT{h A RE L 1) 33% 33%

Group's share of net assets of the associate N4 [E fE(L Bt & N 71 B EFE 237,541 48,399

237,541 48,399

Revenue Wz _ B

Cost/expenses KA B (28,146) (396)

Tax I8 (1,843) =
Net profit/(loss) and other comprehensive 48 ;%5 Fll, (E548) K H Aty

income/(loss) for the year 2 (BE) 29,989 (396)

2 2 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(g) £ 8 & &, which was considered a material associate of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, is a strategic partner
of the Group engaged in property development and is accounted
for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of =& & & adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. REEZE N RINIRE ()

(g) LEBEE(EZE20204 K% 2019412
AJNBILFEHERAREENEKR
BEAR) AASENEBEAIEE
- REEHERE  KARRE
N

TRINEHE LEEENMHER
WE ERSTHRREMEREL
AR R A M B RR AN REE
R

Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 525,321
Other current assets BEMnsEE 3,027,165
Total current assets MENE B 3,552,486
Non-current assets FERBEE =
Current liabilities mEaE (1,336,519)
Non-current liabilities FEmEBEE (899,980)
Net assets BEFE 1,315,987
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate:  BZN £ B B4 N &) B RE 25 L1 B
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEBFTE AR 40%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEBEEHE AR EETE 526,395
526,395
Revenue s 127
Cost/expenses A X (56,755)
Tax FiI8 -
Net loss and other comprehensive loss for the year FRFEEREMEEESE (56,628)

SR B AE R B R A A
—ZTEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(h) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

18. RE{E N BNRE &)

(h)  TRIIREFILAE A AE HH
BREINELTBEER

31 December

31 December

Share of the associates’ profits and
losses for the year

Share of the associates’ total
comprehensive income or losses

pu)

#E

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
investments in the associates

®E

FAMREGRE QRN R EE

FEIEBE & N R 2 E R B 1R

AEEREE R RHRERE

2020 2019
2020 20194
12A31H 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREETTT
6,746 (5,068)
6,746 (5,068)
627,921 78,679

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2020 as the
investments in associates are considered fully recoverable (2019:
Nil). The associates have been accounted for using equity method
in these financial statements.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

19. DEFERRED TAX 19. IEAE B IH
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are BEEFRBEEERBBENFANESNOT :
as follows:
Deferred tax assets BEEHEBEEE
Losses available Expenses Unrealised
foroffsetting  for offsetting Accrued revenue Financial
againstfuture  againstfuture  construction received guarantee Unpaid
taxable profits taxable profits cost inadvance contracts LAT Total
A 8
ARERH BERR Jeit RER B Rt
AHNER ERREANEX  BRHA AlhE ERAH BEH gt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTL  ARBTL  ARBTL  ARBTL ARBfL ARBT AREBTx

At January 2019 Rw19%1R18 27,85 37 2877 84394 3144 9645 214189
Acquisition of subsidiaries YEEnB AT - - - 17302 - - 17302
Deferted tax credited/(charged) to - EREEA/ (1B A)

pofitorlossduing theyear 1B AELRE (13,099 68 1721 146337 (3144) (63%9) 125484

At31 December 2019 and R019E1 A3 ER

1 January 2020 WNETR1R 14,186 105 4598 248033 - 90053 356975
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o E/EEA /(1K 8)

profitorlossduing theyear B AELHE

(note 10) (3£ 10) (4544) 8 8 (57853) - 2490 (37856)

At31 December 2020 R200F128318 9642 11

o

4641 190,180 = 114543 319119

REERERARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are

19. IEFEFIE ()
EIEREAERABRENMNETMT :

230

as follows: (continued)

(&)

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBER
Fair value Fair value
adjustment adjustment
arising from arising from
acquisition investment Withholding
of subsidiaries properties taxes Total
KRR AR REM=F
EEW EEMN
AVHERR NYERE kil st
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 337213 15,768 27984 380,965
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENEAR 738,104 - - 738,104
Deferred tax (credited)/charged toprofitor R (5t A) /1% B 18251
loss during the year EILEHA (243211) 10,807 3,101 (229303)
At31 December 2019and 1 January 2020 122019 12 A31B K
200%F1A1H 832,106 26,575 31,085 889,766
Others it (553,720) - - (553,720)
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to other FRGIA)/NMEEEMZE
comprehensive income of the year Wi BRI R B - 3,588 - 3,588
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to EREAN)/ Nk EBERE
profit or loss during the year (note 10) BRI (FiFE10) (160,756) 31417 (26,085) (155424)
At 31 December 2020 M 2020%F12 4318 117630 61,580 5000 184210

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

19.

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

EERIE 2)
S B E B 1 (8

BEIMS  BETEEHHEEELAR
ERGEMBARRKAEHE - AT A5
FI%5 R B M RVIR IR RS RO

31 December

2019

2019

12H31H8

RMB'000

ARETTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE BRSO R A ER RV IR IE

consolidated statement of financial position MIBEEFE 278,034 309,682
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE IR R A TR AR T

consolidated statement of financial position HIEBEFE (143,125) (842,471)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax liabilities amounting to
RMB5,000,000 (2019: RMB31,085,000) has been recognised for
withholding taxes. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group's fund will mainly be retained in Mainland China for the expansion
of the Group's operation, management expected that it is probable that
no more than RMB100,000,000 will be distributed by these subsidiaries
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB70,063,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: RMB92,024,000).

BIBE(PEARLNMBCEMESHE)
e HP B A 3 K S R S0 3R A 1D 2 R A
WEE T REIREASBU 0% TEHFL o
SZRTE B 200841 A1 B A E AR
200712 A3 BBREERNEF o i+
Wi B Z NG B E TR el AR T
Bl AT HARETEINRE - R&
EREAH R A% At NEEBR
% 55 72 7R B 9 3 Ak S B A B L B 2008
F1ATVBRBREENRF MY RS
MIBHFL

MR2020F12 A31 B » ERBHHRERAR
#55,000,000 7T (2019 FF = AR ¥ 31,085,000
TL)RIRERIEEE - NARESRA -
REBRE K EZRE R B A H LA
BERASENEY mMEEERHAZE
M AR A T8 R AR KA BE 59 IR B & 58
T#R B A R #100,000,000 7T ° 72020 4
12A31H RV ERRELHIEAR
7 R B b BT B A A B9 R B R R A T R
ERMBEA LN B ARE700630007T
(2019%12A31H : AR#92,024,0007T) °

SR B AE R B R A A
—ZTEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items:

19. IEFEFIE ()

EER IR S & ()
HARBIA TS IBRZELEHRBEE

piry

2019
20194
RMB'000
AREFT

Tax losses TIEEE
Deductible temporary differences AT EER

808,362 628,173
24,724 11,608

833,086 639,781

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB202,091,000 (2019:
RMB157,043,000) in respect of losses amounting to approximately
RMB808,362 (2019: RMB628,173,000), that can be carried forward to
offset against future taxable income.

2 3 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

0 HiERBEE

2019

20196

RMB'000

ARETTT

Prepayments for equity investments A% & TS 708 445,540 =
Others HAth 82,169 =
527,709 -

The Group entered into an agreement with ;T &R im =1 BN EE A
R A A] on 12 December 2020 to purchase its 25% equity interest in
Eastern Senior at a total price of RMB335,347,000, of which RMB175,000,000
was paid as at 31 December 2020. The equity transfer has not been
completed as at 31 December 2020.

The Group entered into an agreement with ‘&3 ZEE AL D AR A 7
on 21 December 2020 to purchase its 51% equity interest in & /N ZE &
% & 3% R B BR A A at a total price of RMB270,540,000 which was
paid as at 31 December 2020. The equity transfer has not been
completed as at 31 December 2020.

AEBR 2020512 A 12 B T /IR 5= 4%
BEBREBERARR —EHinE N
B ANRM335347000 B EHRNEH
B8 F #Y 25% I A - ELAR PR 20204F 12 A 31
B E X A K # 175000000 7T ° 72020
F12 A31 BHARTHRESEE -

AEBRK 2020512 A 21 B EFRYIZE B
R BRARIZER —EBE - UEEBA
R # 270,540,000 7T i B H 78 M 2 5 35K
HEBERBBRARIASI%RE  ZERK
THE A 2020 12 A 31 B o 2020 F
12 A 31 B AR IR % -

REERERARA
—g-grey 233



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

21. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT 21. B EZR AR EFAREMEE
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER B ZRERE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

12A31H 12AH31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®F 5 ARMETT

Listed equity investments, at fair value BRATFENER 2 ETRERE 643,710 326,723

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group received dividends of RMB15,154,000 (2019:
RMB10,990,000) from the companies above (note 5).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's equity investments with a carrying
value of RMB491,567,000 (2019: RMB326,723,000) were pledged as
security for the Group's bank loans, as further detailed in note 31 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22, B PYI=E
31 December
2019
2019
12H31H
RMB'000
ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January K1 A1 BMEREE 16,166,537 17,397,704
Additions NE 10,801,543 10,170,460
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR = (1.124,172)
Transferred to completed properties ERTEEHEND R TYE
held for sale (note 23) (Bt 23) (6,640,577) (11,610,655)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 )= NG = 1,333,200
Carrying amount at 31 December M12 A31 HEME 20,327,503 16,166,537
The Group's properties under development are situated on leasehold 7N ER B 1) ) B R ) 262 5 R B A 3 ) AR
lands in Mainland China. S ko
Certain of the Group's properties under development with an aggregate 20206 12 H31H - AEBERERED
carrying amount of approximately RMB10,872,645,000 as at 31 December A A R #10,872,6450007T (20194 12 A
2020 (31 December 2019: RMB8,214,416,000) have been pledged to 318 : AR¥8214416,0007T) K& T 5
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 31). BEHRYEDER  AAEBRERMNIETT

R E A EFRIEEAR (HEE31) ©

REERERARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

23. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

23. HFHENESRIYE

31 December

2019

2019

12H318

RMB'000

ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 B 1 BREEEE 6,227,457 2,123,761
Acquisition of subsidiaries A= NG = 54,800

Transferred from properties under A R (i 22)

development (note 22) 6,640,577 11,610,655
Impairment loss recognised (note 6) ERERREEE (MiiEe) (3,932) (26,882)
Transferred to investment properties (note 15)  EEREZE I &2 (FffsE15) (509,834) -
Transferred to cost of sales (note 6) R e A (MiTe) (9,503,029) (7,534,877)
Carrying amount at 31 December 712 A 31 BHEREE 2,851,239 6,227,457

Certain of the Group's completed properties held for sale with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB579,493,000 as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB3,630,080,000) have been
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group,

details of which are disclosed in note 31.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, ARRIE  RERHEMER

RECEIVABLES Ig

31 December

2019

20194

12H31H

RMB'000

AREFIT

Prepayments for land auction T RE B A 11,200 154,364

Construction performance deposits BERNERS 388,899 15,284

Other deposits Hiiz e 146,066 182,197

Other tax recoverable H o a] Uk B IE 653,778 519,042

Due from non-controlling shareholders JE IS EHE A% B BR FR0R 1,726,824 1,211,510

Due from third parties FEWEE = E 826,460 598,874

Due from employees FEW R B /I8 651 959

Other receivables H b fE U X T8 13,761 47144

3,767,639 2,729,374

Impairment allowance B (4,932) -

3,762,707 2,729,374

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment. There was no provision made for impairment of
other receivables during the reporting period.

H il UG IR R AR - AEHE B ERE
EEFHR - RS PERERELME
WO IRRL (B AT R34 -

SR B R 42

—ZTEER

TR BRA A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. RAFETFTABENERME

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3

31 December

2019

20194

12H31H

RMB'000

AREFIT

Structured deposits EHEER 1,300,000 -

Investments in the funds REEHIEE 480,192 -

Other equity investments HAib R E 154,100 =

1,934,292 -

Structured deposits of RMB1,300,000,000 were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest. As at 31 December
2020, structured deposits of RMB1,300,000,000 were pledged for related
parties’ bank facilities.

The above investments in the funds at the end of the reporting period
were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they were held for trading.

The above other equity investments at the end of the reporting period
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest.

2 3 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020

SR AR 1,300,000,000 7T 5 48
BIEANFEAFABENS]MEE - A
REGHRESHREVIIEERIHERE R
B o R2020F 12 8318 @ &EUEER
A R ¥ 1,300,000,000 7T B FL B8 B 7 RO ER1T
L& (EHER o

RBERR - LR ESORERNBR
EEEME D EARATFEFABRRDN
TREE °

RBERR - L EpRERERES
HWREREVFERAS MFBHR K
MR D EARAFEFABENE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets are initially recognised for commission to the sales
agents when the agreement for sale and purchase is signed with a
property buyer, if recoverable. The amounts recognised as other current
assets are amortised on a systematic basis which is consistent with the
transfer of the related property to the customer.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for other current assets as
at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

26. Htt R B EE

H RS EERENEXETREER
B RLIH E IR 2 M2 1 41 2 HERR (10
AIYRE) - HER A E MR E) B E 2 RIRIR
HAEFHERARYE R ZEAREE

HimENEER 202012 A 31 B AU
AL BETERRRSRAN T ¢

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

2020 20194

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within one year —FRA 31,566 26,060
After one year — % 25,044 30,185
Total other current assets Hithmeh & ELREE 56,610 56,245

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

27. RERBEEEY - SR

REREERERK

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

12831 H 12HA31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETFIT

Cash and bank balances B MIRITE 6,420,932 4,031,399
Less: Restricted cash o R EIER S 708,538 1,137,115
Pledged deposits BEIRFR 2,194,070 29
3,518,324 2,894,255

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in designated bank accounts for specified use, and as at
31 December 2020, such restricted cash amounted to RMB708,538,000
(2019: RMB1,137,115,000).

RIEEETRBER - AEENE TRME
FZEARARE THESRETENIETER
TERFIEREALZ - MM 2020512 A31
B ZE5XRH3EE A AR 708538000
JL(20194F + AR¥1,137,1150007T) °

SR B R R A A
—z-—zzey 239
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A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 27. RERBRESEEY - ZRF

RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of RMB1,240,000 (2019:
RMB29,000) were pledged as security for purchasers’ mortgage loans,
RMB1,630,000,000 was pledged for related parties’ bank facilities and
RMB562,830,000 was pledged to banks as collateral for issuance of bank
acceptance notes.

ReERheEHFER@®

2020812 8318 - BEARY1,240,000
7T (20194 :© AR ¥ 2900070 ) M ER1TTF
HKEEH  EREHERBERKNIER
@ AR#1,630,000,000 7T 2 7 B EE 5 EY
IRIT AL E MEH IR A &k A R ¥ 562,830,000
TTE B FRITIERBITIRITAR RIE
RO o

2019
20194F
RMB'000
AREETIT

Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY
Denominated in RMB AAREESHE 2,946,302 2,326,586
Denominated in HK$ LB TTEHE 31,608 17,930
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 540,414 549,739
3,518,324 2,804,255

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28. ES RN RERENRE
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at the end RBERR REBEENEZHHNE
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: SEMFIE R ER ZRERE DT T ¢

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

2020 F 20195
12A31H 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT

Within 1 year 19N 2,868,654 1,866,927
Over 1 year 1T E 1,133,153 875,872
4,001,807 2,742,799
Trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally settled E9REMNRBEAEERBELER » —RE
based on the progress of construction. RIBEELEE -
29. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 29. HttENFRIE EWiRER
AND ACCRUALS FEstE A

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

2020 20194
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTT

Retention deposits related to construction EEBRAEELES 109,279 129,218
Interests payable FERTFIE 99,378 94,270
Payroll and welfare payable B TE MEF 59,447 56,634
Other tax and surcharges E M FTE &N E A 26,527 72,782
Advances from non-controlling shareholders  FE{ZE AR A% B £4 3k 1,594,727 2,097,500
Advances from third parties FE=FER 1,218,056 1,445,574
Accrued liabilities st afE 25,460 49,269
Others Hih 33,180 24,471

3,166,054 3,969,718
Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The fair values HMENZB AEEKBY EIRERKE
of other payables at the end of the reporting period approximated to B HEMNZBENIHRE RN A TEE
their corresponding carrying amounts. EBAE HEMBREEME

SR B R R A A
—z-—zaey 241



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

30. SN EE

AEEBZ TIWERBESHREIE:

31 December
2019
20194
12H31H
RMB'000
ARETIT

Sale of properties HEMZE

11,384,909 10,503,434

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. Payments are
usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts
which are mainly for property development and sale. According to the
business model of the Group, for revenue recognised from the sale of
properties, all such revenue is carried forward from contract liabilities
during the reporting period. The amounts of outstanding payments
from customers which are not received but contracted were
RMB3,607,375,454 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB3,326,460,150).
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BORROWINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

Current
Bank loans — secured

Other loans — secured
Other loans — unsecured
Current portion of long term
bank loans — secured
Current portion of long term
other loans — secured

Current portion of long term
other loans — unsecured

Non-current
Bank loans — secured

Other loans — secured

Other loans — unsecured

Ens
RITEH — HER

Hig &5 — AER
HfER — EEA

RERITEFRNAH
#Ho —BHEH
REEMEROAH
#Hn —BHEH
REEMEROAH
#Hn — BEH

FEDFR
RITEH — HER

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

Effective
interest
rate (%)

1 ilk

(%) IME AR¥TR

RMB’000

Maturity

13.00 2021 576,000
20215

12.50 2021 326,245
2021

4.46-6.90 2021 2,321,141
2021

13.00 2021 99,700
20215

3,323,086

4.46-6.65 2022-2029 7,401,345
2022 F -
2029 F

7.00-13.00 2022-2024 1,381,497
2022 F -
2024 FF

7.00-7.50 2022-2024 42,252
2022 F -
2024 F

8,825,094

12,148,180

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

31. sH B R1T R HAtb &5 5K

31 December 2019

2019F 12 A31H
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
P
(%) AEA AR®TT
8,00 2020 200,000
20205
11.50-12.40 2020 373,000
20205
1250 2020 697,620
20206
472-681 2020 2,863,036
20205
8.38-13.00 2020 634,163
20205
7.50-15.00 2020 150,000
20205
4917819
472-681  2021-2029 3485,63
2021 5 -
20295
700-1300  2021-2024 2,093,506
2021 -
2045
15.00 2021 3,000
20015
5,582,140
10,499,959
RN BB IZE R A IR A A 243
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Bank and other borrowings

31.

STESETREMER 2

RITREMER

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
12A31H 12H318
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBT T

Analysed into: DT
Repayable within one year ER—FRNEE 3,323,086 4917819
Repayable in the second year FERE —FEE 2,455,705 2,316,179
Repayable in the third to fifth years ERE=ZZ=ZRFEE 5,886,433 2,810,431
Repayable after five years ERAFRER 482,956 455,530
Subtotal /Nt 8,825,094 5,582,140
12,148,180 10,499,959

All above borrowings are denominated in RMB.

244 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2020

PR BB AARKEFHE »



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. st BRRITRHEAMBER @)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the AEEETRITREMMERBERUAT
pledges of the following assets with carrying values as at the end of the RS HIRBREE R S EEIR R -

reporting period:

31 December

2019

20194

12H31H

RMB'000

ARBTFT

Investment properties (note 15) TEMZE (HFE15) 602,490 225,087

Right-of-use assets (note 16) ERAEEE (M3t 16) 8,834 107,332

Properties under development (note 22) F B Y2 (M5 22) 10,872,645 8214416

Completed properties held for sale (note 23)  #{EHER D8 T Y (M 23) 579,493 3,630,080

Property, plant and equipment (note 13) I - R KRt (B9EE13) 105,301 112,224

Equity investments were irrevocably TR EE M I8 E AR AT E

designated at FVOCI FTAE A 2 AW AR ER E 491,567 326,723
At 31 December 2020, the Group pledged below equity interests in R2020F 12 A31H @ AEBREERT
certain subsidiaries for certain banking facilities granted to the Group. ATHRITHERMTIE THERQ R

A& #E -

Percentage of

equity interest

pledged

Name of the companies ARIER HHREEDL

Nanjing Yincheng Medical Management Co,, Ltd. AR EREEEERA A 100.00%

Zhejiang Lin'an Zhongdu Real Estate Co,, Ltd. WL R EXEERA A 100.00%

Nanjing Zhijun Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. FAREEFRMERZEERAA 25.00%

Xuzhou Tongshun Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. HINGRNEE HhER AR A A 90.00%

Wenzhou Yinju Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. RN EREE M ERZEFR A A 100.00%

Hangzhou Zezhou Enterprise Management Co,, Ltd. MMEMNBREBBR AR 51.00%

Wuxi Yinzebo Enterprise Management Co,, Ltd. EHRENCEEEFRAA 100.00%
At 31 December 2020, Mr. Huang Qing Ping and a company controlled MR2020F12A31B EEFAERE
by him have guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans of ZHl s ARIE AAEE ETRITER
RMB2,614,768,000 (2019: RMB3,308,583,000). AR #26147680007T (20194 : AR

3,308,583,000 7T ) YE HI 1R ©

Management of the Company has assessed that the fair values of ARREEBEENM  sFERITERR
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other borrowings approximate to HERNAFELREREERS £
their carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were RAEE FRBEVNZSERTIENRIRTT
made between the Group and independent third party financial MSHMERANEB B TE =T m

institutions based on prevailing market interest rates. BREEL -

RABREBARAT
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

32. SENIOR NOTES 32. B EE

246

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
2020512A31H 2019F12A31H
Principal Principal
inoriginal Contractual inoriginal ~ Contractual
currency interest currency interest
US$’000 rate Maturity ~ RMB’000 US$000 rate Maturity RMB'000
RAKR
X
CEES A ARBTT BEIARTGLILES MR ARETR

Senior notes due 2021 72021 £ IEAH
(“June 2021 Notes') BLEE
([20214 2021
E2) 140,000 12% 2021 F 901,585 - - - -
Seniornotes due 2021 12021 E HIHAHY
("November 2021 BEAZE
Notes’) (F2001 % 2021
NAZEE]) 200,000 12% 20215 1,315,793 = - - -
Current portion ki) 2,217,378 -
Non-currentportion  3EENEAZ %A - _

In June 2020, the Company issued the June 2021 Notes at a coupon rate
of 12.0%, a maturity term of 12 months, with an aggregate principal
amount of US$140,000,000, approximately RMB913,486,000. The
Company raised net proceeds of US$138,065,800, approximately
RMB900,865,538 (after deduction of an underwriting discount and
commissions and other expenses).

In October 2020, the Company issued the November 2021 Notes at a
coupon rate of 12.0%, a maturity term of 12 months, with an aggregate
principal amount of US$200,000,000, approximately RMB1,304,980,000.
The Company raised net proceeds of US$197,957,625, approximately
RMB1,291,653,707 (after deduction of an underwriting discount and
commissions and other expenses).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. SHARE CAPITAL

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

33. R

Authorised: SERE :

50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

50,000,000,000 P& & AL E 1B
0.1 B TR T @A%

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

2020 F 20195
12831 H 12HA31H
HK$’ 000 HKS'000
T FHIT

5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

Issued and fully paid: ERITRABE :

1,446,962,138 ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each

1,446,962,138 Ax A% I (&
0.1 BT E @

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARKET T

124,119 124,119

34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries. Details of the movements in the capital
reserve are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

34. #&
HZE2020F K% 2019F 12 A31 HILEFE -
AEENBESEREZHZIRGE
EREBRK o

(a)

(b)

IR E
BaEREBETROEERD K
BMREZHENER -

EXR#EE

BARRRIEIFER S B E SR
S it o R BT 8 2 R SR PR AR A s AT A
REAFEZHNERNER - EX
RENESHFEN A ERES
%o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

34. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is
required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as
determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
Group, the statutory surplus reserve may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that
the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued capital of
the then holding company of the companies now comprising the
Group and the capital contributions from the equity holders of
certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group before the
completion of the Corporate Restructuring and the Reorganisation
for IPO purpose.

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

248

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB7,818,000 and RMB7,818,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for plant and
equipment (2019: non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of RMB2,483,000 and RMB2,483,000).
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(a)
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FRAEBEBERSEZHE
ZHHFERREEREEAED
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7,818,000 LAY FEIR SR E (2019 -
HEREEELRHEAEEIAR
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35. S4B EHREXRMT o)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

(b) MEEFBHELENEEEH

Other
payables, Interest-

deposits bearing Dueto Total liabilities
Lease Senior received bank and other related from financing
liabilities notes  andaccruals  borrowings  companies activities

Efty

JEfy5E -
BE BhReR  FERAR ENBE REREED
8% BrEE &R EftfeR ARRE  WEELE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R2019F 1 718 (Z=5) 19,642 o o 10,191,404 1615416 11826462
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BEREHEEE (3,785) - - (121,445) 787,728 662498
New leases Lk 2483 - - - - 2483
Acquisition of subsidiaries LGN 29 - - 430000 - 43029
Accrual of interest JEsHHE 1268 - - - - 1268

Cash flows from non-financing
activiies FREEDIERRE - - - - (1778645 (1,778649)
At31 December 2019 R0195 124318 19898 - - 10499959 624499 11,144,356
At1 January 2020 RN0F1A18 19898 - 3969718 10499959 624499 15114074
Changes fiom financing cash flows AR SR EEE (7,005) 2192519 (932512) 1,387,361 4376619 7016982
New leases Lk 7818 - - - - 7818
Accrual of interest JE:FS, 1,042 24859 5108 90,860 - 121,869
Transfer o other payables EREAMENTE (10501) - - - - (10501)
Lease contract change HEANEY (2.545) = = = = (2.545)
Cash flows from non-financing
actvities FREEIMERONE - - 13740 170000 (50.29) U344
At 31 December 2020 R200E12A318 8,707 2217378 3,166,054 12,148,180 4950820 22491139
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HERNRESARHBERE

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

AR RER CHERNRER

flows is as follows: AZEIN R -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT ARMETIT
Within financing activities BB EEA 7,005 3,785
R B A PR A Al 249
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
31 December 2020

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 30 December 2020, the
Group disposed of its 85% equity interest in B R iRz E (P EE AR

AR ("ERIRFEE") to a third company.

36. HEM B XA A
202012 A31 H

145 B 8142020 4F 12 A 30 B AR 1D 858
Wik AEEAE-RE=FATLEEH

RERBRZECEEEARARA(TER

IRFZ0E |) #9 859% AR A4E ©

Net assets disposed of: HEMNEESE :
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 105
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIR « =e RE M R GRIE 1
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HEMNFIE - EBIRE REFTE R (1,475)
(1,369)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5) HE—RH B AR f s (FEEs) 1,369

Satisfied by cash

AR B

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

BRALENBRRANREMNASEEY

the disposal of the subsidiary is as follows: mEFREA ST
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash consideration ReRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENRERBSEEY (105)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FRHERRREEMNE SR
in respect of the disposal of 8 58 32 [E ReEEYnLFE (105)
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY NOT

ACCOUNTED FOR AS A BUSINESS
COMBINATION

As part of the Group's strategy to expand its property development
business, the Group made the following acquisitions in year 2020:

The Group has applied the concentration test to the acquisition of the
following 5 companies. The fair value of the gross assets acquired in
each of the above acquisitions was substantially concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiaries. In the opinion of the directors, the acquisition of the
companies does not constitute a business. Therefore, the transactions
were determined by the directors of the Company to be the acquisition
of assets and liabilities through acquisition of a subsidiary rather than a
business combination as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The
Group did not apply the acquisition method to the acquisitions of these
subsidiaries.

The above acquisitions have been accounted for an acquisition of assets
in the Group's consolidated financial statements. The purchase costs of
the Group were allocated to the assets and liabilities, respectively on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase as follows:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

37. WIB—B™MERFRBSHA

AR AV F 2 B

EAREBIEAEMEMEEBBREN
— 85 ANEB R 2020 F VEH AT URBE ¢

AEBEC#& T BB E BRI T 5 FEHK
Bam e R RRWEFIEERE
ENRAFEIEETRAKENEAR
ME— R EBEES—ABLUAERE
E-EERRUBARALTENKE -
At - ZEXZPHAARBEFEERE
BEE-EHNEBARKBEEREE
I B BR B 75 3R 5 2 A 3B 3R R F S of
RENEHAH - AEELERBKE
FREZEMBARA] o

BB B AREELGA M B HRERD
MEEWE - AEENBEKADHIR
BEREAHNAYRATEIREEER
BfE - FBWT

HRER EaH nMEH  BHEERRE ERERY Total
HRER i nMEH  BHERRE BRERY st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Properties under development HEhE 631,770 461,636 1,788,145 763976 544733 4,190,280
Completed properties held forsale ~ #{EHENTRTNE - - 26300 - - 26300
Prepayments, deposiisandother — EBRFE - &R
recelvables A 941 - 4467 1 2817 66727
Taxrecoverable T ERE - - 7260 - 5917 13177
Trade and bills receivables EHRMZERENEE - - 4570 - - 4570
Restricted cash XRHHRS - - 108 - 37,166 3704
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEN 2985 4 125 11964 3060 45338
Property, plant and equipment g BEREE - - 7l - 121 192
Otherlong term assets Hfh R BEE - - 5051 - - 5051
Deferted tax assets BLHEAE - - - - 6099 6099
Contract ablfes ARG - - (800 = (398991) (399791)
Tradle and bills payables BIENTERENER = - (196978 - (o) (197.51)
Other payables, deposits received ~ EAERZUR » EMlR S
and accruals REBR (380,000) (355967) (624575) (723865) (51,549) (2135956)
Tax payeble EftHA - - (31,729) - - (31,729)
Interest-bearing bank loansand ~ stERITR M
other borrowings - - - - (170,000 (170,000)
Net assets acquired FUEEESE 284186 105693 982015 52087 36300 1460281

SR B AE R B R A A
—ZTEER
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY NOT 37. WE—BTMEREKRE A
ACCOUNTED FOR AS A BUSINESS ROMKME AR @
COMBINATION (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the EREWERBATMNIRESREDHTET
subsidiaries are as follows:

Cash consideration ReRE (2847186) (105,693) (982019) (52,087) (36,300) (1,460,281)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired ~ MEREE S RE 2 SEN 2985 4 125 11964 30,260 45338

Net outflow of cash and cash BBYBNEL RS

equivalents n respect of e SEMRLEE
acquisition (281,201) (105,689) (981,890) (40123) (6,040) (1414943)
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. HARAE

(1) As of 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees of (1) B ZE2020F12H31H XEBE7H
RMB5,130,590,000 in respect of mortgage facilities granted by ETRITAAEEFEHEND R
certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed IMEERFHOEFREIRMEE
properties held for sale (2019: RMB5,258,668,000). Pursuant to the R A B #5,130,590,000 7T (2019 4F :
terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default on AR ¥ 52586680007T) ° HRIEIEIR
mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is responsible THER G - B K38 R IZIB
for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with F o AREEERERZERITESR
any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted AEZBEBAS NELHNERAE
purchasers to those banks. EfA ERTFIE R &K -
Under the above arrangement, the related properties were B Ll MHEMEEEIRT
pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon ZERITEABBEROEAS
default on mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks WZEBERERIEMET - Bz
are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise the pledged RITEEEERMATERE I
properties through open auction. FRAFBE SRR EEIR -
The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the AEENEREAREERBERE
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and HREHBRE ERIERYEFTAES
registration of property ownership certificates to the purchasers, R ELIE BRI —Ke
which will generally be available within one to two years after the REREEREMELZAT =MW
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties. F o
The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in RER  REBWAREGRRAEER
respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted BELHENERIMEERREN
to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. AR B IR IERESE R EKIE
The directors of the Company considered that in case of default Ko KRR EFRAWHIRELN
on payments, the net realisable value of the related properties o HEYES ] BIREE R B A
would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans BEREERBEREREMEST
together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no FEREIF - B ERET R
provision has been made in connection with the guarantees. & o
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

2

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in
connection with financial facilities granted to the joint ventures
and associates. The directors of the Company consider that no
provision is needed in respect of the guarantees since the fair
value is not significant. Further details are included in notes 17 and
18.

Except as disclosed above, during the year and up to the end of
the year, neither the Group nor the Company were involved in any
litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings, claims or
disputes which had a material adverse effect on the Group’s
financial condition or results of operation.

39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following property development and capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

38. AEBE (2

2 AEERRTALERIBE QR
R TR E AIRTT R E MR fE
ER - ARBESTRE > ARAYF
BIYTERKX - RBARZTERIE
HEE - EZHBEHRME 7R
(IS

B EXFIIREESN  FARBESF
R AREERARRBGES R A
SEVBRARIEEXBELEKX
PHFZENEMFL - FEHITH
YA ~ ERER A o

39, HKIE

AEENHEPBRBEBATFHERE
R EBEARAYE

31 December

2019
2019
12A31H
RMB'000
ARETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRT#E R B
— Property, plant and equipment — W - BENKE 753,017 320,768
— Properties under development — RABERYE 10,247,313 6,527,318
— Investment properties —REME 196,416 =

— Capital contributions payable to — EEE
Subsidiaries i ipEENG| 1,320,093 =
Associates o /NC] 326,300 -
12,843,139 6,848,086
RN BB IZE R A IR A A 253
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BB AR H
(1) Name and relationship (1) BBRER
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
o)y Tt BRAE B HBR
Mr. Huang Qing Ping The director of the Company
=8 VoA KABESE
BARIBEERZEERA A Joint venture
AEMHE
MMIEEREEERBREETAH Joint venture
AEMHE
BN ZBEXER AT Joint venture
AEME
BmMNEEEHER AT Joint venture
BEME
MM EEHEREARE TR A Joint venture
BEE
MMNEHEXER AT Associate
EA /NG
ANTEREHEREER AR Associate
/NG
mRIREEEMRZEER A A Associate
/NG
A IZERHMNEHERZEERA A Associate
I /NE]
A RIRREEREER A A Associate
A /NE]
BNEEREEEBRAT Associate
AN
MEZFLENFHERBEERAR Associate
R olNE]
5 R B B th EE 3 B PR A A Associate
iRl
BNAERFHERE AR AR Associate
i A/NE]
SRR B EHERZERR AR Associate
EA/NEC]
EH T EEFR A A Associate
EA—/NE]
ERRLAEHERERR AT Associate
EA /NG
BN EEEERR AT Associate
EA/NE]
MM KR EEEFR A A Associate
/NG
BRI EXEREER AR Associate
/NG
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 40. BB AR5 (#)

(1) Name and relationship (Continued) (1) BWBREBEE)
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
BEBAHE a8 BARLEENBIER
AR ENEHEREZEARAR Associate

AN
ARBHEEREBRA A Associate
AN
FEBEEEFXARAT Associate
/N

MRERBEEREAR AT
Tk R 3% (i) AR DA
R E SR BRI BR A A
RN AR RIS AR AT
Yincheng Life Service CO, Ltd.

AR R A BENEEZRBERRAR]
MR REHERERRA A
AREREEEGRAR
AREREREERHEAER AR
MrEEEEERERAR
ARBELMELESHERAT
EREAVIMEE HER LA
PRI EREHRE AR A
EAREAEREEEERARA
EARERTEELLARRAR
AR EERRRERAR
ARAREECEERERAR

ERRBEREEBRAR

Joint venture before 25 December 2020
20205 12 A2s HATA &%

Joint venture before 24 June 2019
20196 A24BATAEE %

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
"B T REZERNRR

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
"B TP REZEFNRF

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
AT oREERINAT

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
AT oREERIRNAT

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
HF P REZEFNRT

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
HF P REZEFNARR

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
BB T REEHNAT

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
BB T REEHNAR

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
BB T REEHNAR

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
HF VAR EEFIRN AT

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
BT REZEFOARF

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
AT REZEFNRF

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
BT REZEFNRF

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
AP REZEFNARF

Company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping
AT oREERINAT

RABREBARAT
—E-BEEH
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 40. BB AR5 (#)

(2) Related party transactions (2) BEAEXRS
In addition to transactions with related parties disclosed elsewhere M BB TSR R B A B o ik B2 AV
of the financial statements, the following transactions were carried Bt 22 540 - pAERE BA A £ g Bgh
out with related parties during the reporting period: HEITUATRS

U ??EIT EYNGIE Y R

The companies controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping are collectively

referred to other related parties. kit
2019
20196
RMB'000
ARETTT
Advances from joint ventures and associates & & 10> 3 K B & A 7] Bk 2,056,290 382,121
Repayment of advances from joint EESELENBENTER
ventures and associates 441,963 395,400
Advances to joint ventures and associates  BGR T & &1 K& A A 1,712,536 1,750,128
Repayment of advances to joint ventures & & {3 KB A F(EE R
and associates 1,478,906 2,410,794
Advances from other related parties HibBams 7 8 16,597,131 989,923
Repayment of advances from BB E b BB 5 B
other related parties 13,834,839 188,916
Advances to other related parties T E Ath B B 7,006 3,071,289
Repayment of advances to H At B 5 (BRI
other related parties 9,491 1,706,495
Project management income REBEARAIEE BEKA
from associates 29,061 27,141
Project management income from KREEEEEMNIBREBKA
joint ventures 1,463 52,106
Project management income from 2R B E b EEEE 5 A
other related parties HEEEKA - 432
Rental income from other related parties 3% 5 H{th B EE 5 RO FH £ YA 16,360 2,213
Rental fees to other related parties ST EALREE S E e B A 4,966 4,966
Property management fees to AT E AR R 5 Y
other related parties THEEESE 32,902 25,093
Service fees to other related parties S TFHEAMERHNREE 21,027 16,461
Note: These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and fisk : 52 EX 5 IRBEREK FHRGE

conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

HI R R AR HEAT ©
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

40. B X B (2

(3) Outstanding balances with related parties

31 December

EERAEE T YR (YA BR

31 December

2020 2019
2020 FF 20195
12831H 12H318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT

Due from related companies: PEUR BEEE A RIFRIE ¢
Associate NS 858,037 720,158
Joint venture BEE 104,831 165,057
Other related parties A A B 8,418 10,547
971,286 895,762

Due to related companies: PE{TRARE A RIFRIE -
Associate ik /NG 2,053,016 477,329
Joint venture EEHE 94,339 55,700
Other related parties Ho{th [FA e 2,803,465 91,470
4,950,820 624,499

Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and had no fixed repayment terms.

(4) Compensation of key management personnel

2 It B R 0T BV A AR SRR -
SYSE e

o

(4) AEEEEEEASHM

of the Group
2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Short term employee benefits R BB A 13,588 9177
Pension scheme contributions and RNGHEIH R R AT & 1E A
social welfare 501 978
Total compensation paid to key TRFEEEIEASWNEINEEE
management personnel 14,089 10,155

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

EEWEHE S FBERNYER
FBIaEs o

SR B R R A A
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31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY M. ZEHEsHEMIE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RREPRSESRTANERENT -
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2020 202012 H31H
Financial assets EREE

Equity
investments Financial
designated at assets at
FVOCI amortised cost

EERALE

st AH A
2EHREZ B R AN
BERE JIRzEmMEE Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T ARBT R

Equity investments — designated  $§TE IR A FEFT AEA

at FVOCl EHE M RAERE 643,710 - 643,710
Financial assets included in sSTATENRIE  BE R
prepayments, deposits and HAb W HRIBR @R E &=
other receivables - 2,562,763 2,562,763
Trade receivables E G EWIE - 1,294 1,294
Due from related companies Jilde NGBS - 971,286 971,286
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTABRRN
TREE - 1,934,292 1,934,292
Restricted cash ZRRHIE - 708,538 708,538
Pledged deposits EHEMER - 2,194,070 2,194,070
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBSEEY - 3,518,324 3,518,324
643,710 11,890,567 12,534,277
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—E-BEEH

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 4. ZERESHNEMI A @)
(Continued)
31 December 2020 (Cor 202012 A 31 H (&)
Financial liabilities SHEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 8,707
Trade and bills payables B RNFERENRE 4,001,807
Financial liabilities included in other payables SFARMENZFEREFEANEREE
and accruals 2,912,160
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T ERITREME R 12,148,180
Senior notes BREE 2,217,378
Due to related companies AL YNGR O e 4,950,820
26,239,052
31 December 2019 201912 H31H
Financial assets SREE
Equity
investments Financial
designated at assets at
FVOCI amortised cost Total
BEEAFE
ST AEAM )
2EWEZ R HK AR
AR L& ZERMEE FEE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T ARET T
Equity investments designated FEEEAFEFT AEAM
at FvOCl 2HEWE 2 RERE 326,723 - 326,723
Financial assets included in SFABNFIE - e Kk
prepayments, deposits and HEMEWRRIEN S REE
other receivables - 1,858,487 1,858,487
Trade receivables ‘”%JEHSZ?\IE = 1,458 1,458
Due from related companies FE LR BEES A B FRI8 = 895,762 895,762
Restricted cash ZRHIE = 1,137,115 1,137,115
Pledged deposits [REEECEE=N - 29 29
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReEFEEY = 2,894,255 2,894,255
326,723 6,787,106 7,113,829
SRR BB IEAR PR A A 259
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

41.

31 December 2019 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

REREIHNERMTH @)

2019F 1231 H (&)
cHas

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
BRI BR HY
TRIAE
RMB'000
ARETTT

Lease liabilities HEAR
Trade and bills payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Due to related companies

HEIRTT READ R
JES RRRE A R 5KIR

B 5 RNRBERENRIE
AAAERMENFENEFERNSREE

19,898
2,742,799
3,637,344

10,499,959
624,499

17,524,499

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial

42. 42-

EMTANAIFERAFE
=EN
BEEEEATEAREENSHIA

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably Gy REBESRTEMNEEERAFE
approximate to fair values, are as follows: N
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AEE
2019 2019
20194 20194F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATER AR
TREE 1,934,292 - 1,934,292 -
Equity investments designated 8 E IR A FEFT AEAD
at FVoCl PEM R RERE 643,710 326,723 643,710 326,723
Financial liabilities cHas
Interest-bearing bank and SHERITREAMBER
other borrowings 12,148,180 10,499,959 11,553,517 10,092,679
Senior notes BERE 2,219,608 - 2,219,608 -
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, amounts due from related
companies, trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, deposits received and accruals,
lease liabilities and amounts due to related companies approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the chief finance officer
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the board of directors. At
the reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the board of directors twice a year for annual financial reporting.

During the reporting year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out
of Level 3 for both financial assets and liabilities.

A 755 e % it
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2. EMTAENRAFERRFE

B )

EEECHERERRSEEY &
MER  XBRHRS - EUEH 2 RR
A B 5 RWHE - FEATRMRR - &
T REMEBYFENEREE  BHE
NRBERENER  fFAEMEMNK
B ERREREAEANSRAE
HEBBERENBEEARRENRTFE
HHERHEMRE  TESARZKFTIA
B B B HARR B

AEENRARENFIBMFEAES
R AEETLRMIAQAFEFENK
REEF - RAREEGER AT ELAE
EREFGER NHESAH A7
EEBOMERITAGENEDIIRTE
FERRHENEERARE - AEHHM
BREBRZLIE BFRFEMBER
STHEESHHERTFIERETMR

R

RBEFE SHEENAES EH
F_EBHAYEXNTFEFEES  TE
BASBHE=E -

REERERARA
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY R.TRTENAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) Bz

Fair value hierarchy NEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRFAXEECR T A AN FEEF=2
the Group's financial instruments: B4

Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFENEE :

As at 31 December 2020 72020612831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERATRBNAFESE

Quoted Significant Significant
pricesin observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIER TS BEATEE BAFTEE
ZRIE WARE BAYE
(8—F8) (5=F8) (5=p) met
Recurring fair value BMUTEEETH RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

measurement for KEMNTLEFE ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARBT R

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFERABREN

TRIEE 480,192 = 1,454,100 1,934,292
Equity investments EERATFEFTAEMD
designated at FVOCI FEWE 2 BRIERE 643,710 = = 643,710
1,123,902 = 1,454,100 2,578,002
As at 31 December 2019 M 2019F12 831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERATHRNAFEFE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs Total
R BT BEAAEER EANAEE
ZHE ) A\ 2R AR aEt
Recurring fair value AT IEB#ETH RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
measurement for LEENTETE ARETFT ARETTT ARETT AREFT
Equity investments EBERATEF AEAM
designated at FVOC| G 7 BRERE 326,723 - - 326,723
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as M2020F % 2019 12 31 B » AEEI
at 31 December 2020 and 2019. BAEMRATEFENEREE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN 2REEREHARE —EHESE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for AV EATEFEER  TEE
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Ni). ARBHE=[Z (2019F : £) -
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's financial instruments: (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

R.TRTENAFERAFE
B )
AV EER )
TEHUBAEESPTAY ATETS
B® (&)
WBRATENERE

Fair value measurement using

AT RBIN D FETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTEHEE EXFAEHE
RIERM S Z WA B WA BE
HE(E—F) (8=F) (8=/E) HEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2020 M 2020612 A31H
Interest-bearing bankand B ER1T R EMEK
other borrowings - 11,553,517 - 11,553,517
Senior notes BhREE 2,217,378 = = 2,217,378
2,217,378 11,553,517 = 13,770,895
As at 31 December 2019 2019612 A31H
Interest-bearing bankand  HEIR1T R A {E 5k
other borrowings - 10,092,679 - 10,092,679
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43, I EREEEERBEK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash and bank
balances, restricted cash, pledged deposits, trade and other receivables,
trade and bills payables and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations. The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related
companies and amounts due from related companies. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the
Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. To
keep the Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interestraterisk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 31. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group
manages its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and
other borrowings.

If the interest rate of bank and other borrowings had increased/
decreased by 1% and all other variables held constant, the profit
before tax of the Group, through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB5,504,085 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB8,964,050).

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. The Group has currency
exposures from its cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and senior notes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the USD and
HKD exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of
monetary assets and liabilities).

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

43. I EREEBEERBEEKR @)

(b) SMEEREBE ()

TRBIIERA £ % BRI TS
ERT - RS RET RS
BOE S5 2 22 2] 4 8 ) 1 25 SR E R B
BRI BB (MR EEEER
8 EATEED) -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
USS/HKS rate before tax

Ern/ BrEX BBt A1 2
EFA (TR &/ (Rd)

% RMB'000
% ARETT
2020 2020 F
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBRETRE -5% (100,374)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ M ARBEHETHE +5% 100,374
If the RMB weakens against the HKS i AN R EE 5 B TRV B ~5% 27,463
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ MARBEABTHE +5% (27,463)
2019 2019 F
If the RMB weakens against the US$ i A REE 5 2TV B ~5% 10,056
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ M ARBEHETHE +5% (10,056)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MAREEABTRE -5% (46,864)
If the RMB strengthens against the HKS i A R EE 5B T HE +5% 46,864
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group divides financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk
ratings for the purpose of determining significant increases in
credit risk and calculation of impairment. To manage risk arising
from trade receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure
that credit terms are made only to counterparties with an
appropriate credit history and management performs ongoing
credit evaluations of the Group's counterparties. The credit period
granted to the customers is generally six months and the credit
quality of these customers is assessed, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group
also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue receivables. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
and amounts due from related parties as well as individual
assessments on the recoverability of other receivables and
amounts due from related parties based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Group classified financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and continuously
monitored their credit risk. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group'’s
outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and amounts due from related
parties.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is
mainly based on past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2020. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to
credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Creditrisk (Continued)

43. IR KMEEBEREE®)

EERk &)
202012831 H

(c)
As at 31 December 2020

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
EEEE 2HAENEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
E—RRE E-RER EZRR  #@nE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TxR
Trade receivables B 5 e IE = = = 1,294 1,294
Financial assetsincluded in st ATB FRIB R E A
prepayments and FEWRIAH)
other receivables TREE
— Normal — % 2,562,763 - - - 2,562,763
Due from related parties R Lt RS 7 SRR 971,286 - - - 971,286
Financial assets at FVTPL BATER AR
SREE 1,934,292 - - - 1,934,292
Restricted cash XBHIRES
— Not yet past due — A AR B H 708,538 - - - 708,538
Pledged deposits BHEAFR
— Not yet past due — WAREER 2,194,070 = = - 2,194,070
Cashand cash equivalents  BR&MIREEEY
— Not yet past due — AR B H 3,518,324 - - - 3,518,324
11,889,273 - - 1,294 11,890,567
SRR BRI A PR A A 267
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. MBERAREEBEERBEKR @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EEREZ)
As at 31 December 2019 7201912831 H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 785
EEEE T HEHBEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE—FEER FE_RER E=REER ka7 Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTE ARETT ARETE

Trade receivables g 5 IEWIE - - - 1458 1458
Financial assets included in 5t AT ZUIB K

prepayments and H i fE YRR IB A

other receivables TREE
— Normal —E%E 1,858,487 = = - 1,858,487
Due from related parties R e RS 7 SRR 895,762 = = = 895,762
Restricted cash XBHIRES
— Not yet past due — (M AR ELER 1,137,115 = = = 1,137,115
Pledged deposits BEHEATK
— Not yet past due — (M AR ELER 29 = = = 29
Cashand cash equivalents ~ BR& KRS EEY
— Not yet past due — (M AR ELER 2,894,255 = = = 2,894,255

6,785,648 - - 1,458 6,787,106
(d) Liquidity risk (d) RENVESRER

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity REER B R RS BER BRTT
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank REMEFRREERBESTER
and other borrowings and senior notes. Cash flows are being BEMEEE BT E - AEE
closely monitored on an ongoing basis. REREBB/RAZFERIENE
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

A 755 e % it

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

43. IR KMEEBEREE®)

(d)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

31 December 2020

2020%512HA31H

(o])]
demand

BREXR

RMB’000
AR®T R

Less than
3 months
3EANA
RMB’000
AR%ETR

REBESRERE &)

$%@EA¥&¢HH3H’E & RARITBAS
PEENERBENIBHBERN
T

3to12
months
3Z12{8A
RMB’000
AR¥TR

Over 1
year
10 E
RMB’000
AR®T T

Total

st
RMB’000
AR¥TR

Interest-bearing bankand 5T B3R1T R E A fE 5K
other borrowings - 466,841 3,571,715 9,772,449 13,811,005
Senior notes BrERE - - 2,399,375 - 2,399,375
Lease liabilities HEEE - 6,483 3,526 4,189 14,198
Trade and bills payables BHRNTIERER
=5 4,001,807 - - - 4,001,807
Other payables Hih e /A 3,166,054 - - - 3,166,054
Due to related companies 1S 5‘?‘@ 4,950,820 - - - 4,950,820
12,118,681 473,324 5,974,616 9,776,638 28,343,259
On Less than 3to12 Over 1
demand 3 months months year Total
BER  3EALA 3ZE12MEA 1A E @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETFT AREBTT ARETT ARETRT
31 December 2019 20196 12A31H
Interest-bearing bankand 5T B3R1T N E A fE 7K
other borrowings - 465,728 5,163,561 6,366,125 11995414
Lease liabilities HERE - 5,405 8,777 3,181 17,363
Trade and bills payables B S 5B R e
=g 2,742,799 = = = 2,742,799
Other payables H e 5IA 3,637,344 = = = 3,637,344
Due to related companies FE [o17) - VNGIE Q] 624,499 = = = 624,499
7,004,642 471,133 5172338 6,369,306 19,017,419
SRk B PRIERR B R A A 269
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital management

270

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes,
within net debt, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
and bills payables, other payables, deposits received and accruals
and amounts due to related companies less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

43. B EREEBEERBE®)

(e)

EXREE
AEEERNEENTIEZARERR
EAKEREQEVRFRENE
AEERMBES » UFFEEBI L
BREERAIE

AEESRELERRE(LER
FABEBEARRE - RERHGAR
BARE  AREHEHRN T &K
RHRE - REARCHKEITH
PR AR -

AEERAEABEXR(AERF
BBRAE N GREGRTFEIM)
RELER - REBMERFERT
ARTBIRTTREMER BHEN
IR R ENRIE - E MR IR
Bz e KR 8 R A e B
RAFBERREMREEEY - B
RIEEARBER ABEERS - R
ERRNEABERET :

31 December

2019

20194

12A31H8

RMB’000

AREFIT

Trade and bills payables B HRNFIBRENER 4,001,807 2,742,799
Other payables, deposits received EMERIE - BUURS MER

and accruals £ 3,166,054 3,969,718

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t /88877 K £ {& X 12,148,180 10,499,959

Senior notes BhREE 2,217,378 =

Due to related companies FETRAE A Rl ZIE 4,950,820 624,499

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRE MRS EBY (3,518,324) (2,894,255)

Net debt BT 558 22,965,915 14,942,720

Equity attributable to owners RAEHER AL

of the Company 2,760,067 2,508,818

Capital and net debt BARRERFE 25,725,982 17,451,538

Gearing ratio EXRBEX 89% 86%
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44. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 4. REERFEREZNESR
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NG
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling AREEHEGEAFEIEREZONE R )
interests are set out below: SEHEHY TR
31 December 2020 202012 A31H

Percentage
of equity Profit for Accumulated
interest held by the year allocated balances of non-
non-controlling to non-controlling controlling
interests interests interests

BEFEN L TEE FERER
REBIL EENFREN R iaER
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTR

A REER HREER 49 63,518 145,667
T T 50 72,249 139,851
EHEF EHIEF 65 58,523 100,968
BERE EERE 40 19,526 219,526
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of 3% R AR ot Bt B D B By B S B R
the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter- T o BEENEERGT REMARES
company eliminations: 3 -

AR EEH L B mBREF BiEH S
FA R AEE U E JmBREF Gl

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR AR®TR AR%¥TxR

Revenue & 2,382,306 1,734,197 963,749 67,695
Total expenses B (2,203,203) (1,554,126) (836,923) (2,609)
Income tax expense FriS iR 2 (49,475) (35,573) (36,791) (16,271)
Profit and total comprehensive & A% K1 & 2

income for the year Iz 4858 129,628 144,498 90,035 48,815
Current assets mENEE 806,949 675,550 1,839,842 1,575,058
Non-current assets EMBNEE 19,449 5,857 3,697 143,559
Current liabilities mEAE (528,297) (401,705)  (1,686,965) (745,443)
Non-current liabilities ErREasE (822) = (1,239) (424,360)

Net cash flows (used in)/from  &R&5E8) (FTR),Fif5

operating activities REMEFHE 1,121,713 1,499,471 1,032,398 (803,705)
Net cash flows (used in)/from  BREEE) (FTA), i3

financing activities WEREFEE (1,753,510) (1,488,320) (1,287,901) 1,019,782
Net increase/(decrease) ReRFSEEY

in cash and cash equivalents &40, (R4 ) #58 (631,797) 11,151 (255,503) 216,077

R ERERAERAT
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44. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 44, EEEAREERESZNIES

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EfB AT &)
(Continued)
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling AREEBRGEAFEREZONE R A

interests are set out below:

FBEEIMT

31 December 2019 201912 H31H

Percentage

of equity (Loss)/profit for Accumulated
interest held by the year allocated  balances of non-
non-controlling to non-controlling controlling
interests interests interests

B HEERIEER
Bt A R FA SRR
Bast (&8, &F 2EHERR
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
AR EER MR EER 49 160,231 165,449
BT BT 35 36,071 57,101
MRER ARER 75 (882) 374,118
Fastern Senior RITRESF 25 19,348 345,940

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of
the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

TR LAt b B 2 A e B 75 B B R
2 IRENSEAT REFAAABY

company eliminations: 2
B R EE FIRZEZE Eastern Senior 55 3T
R EE EREE REBE 435 ¥k
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®TFT AREFTT AREBTT
Revenue s 3,809,855 = 175413 1,480,221
Total expenses BHEX (3.372,872) (1,568) (77,372) (1,062,132)
Income tax expense FiSfimx (109,980) 392 (20,650) (315,029)
Profit/(loss) and total FREF(EBE)

comprehensive income/ ka2ERE(FAxX)

(expense) for the year 4B=E 327,003 (1,176) 77,391 103,060
Current assets MENE E 3,154,755 2,874,368 1,434,274 2,776,188
Non-current assets EmENEE 35,764 392 1,286,054 67,346
Current liabilities mEBE (2,852,101) (2,375,936) (665,140) (2,680,328)
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (766) = (671,429) 61)
Net cash flows from/(used in)  4R&SEBIFTTS,(FTA)

operating activities HeRE /558 2,750,437 (2,774,003) (264,358) 493,304
Net cash flows from/(used in) B ESEENFTIS,(FTA)

financing activities RemeEF8E (2,178,684) 2,285,787 (165,180) (334,360)
Net increase/(decrease) B RIBEEEY

in cash and cash equivalents 340,/ G 4>) J# 58 571,753 (488,216) (429,538) 158,944
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45, XN BB IS AR R &R
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at RABNRBEEA R Z B REAR KR E R0
the end of the reporting period is as follows: T :

31 December

2019
20194
12H31H
RMB'000
AREFIT
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 382,564 262,850
Due from related companies FE UL B RS N B BUR 2,343,752 1,182,833
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TBRRIE - 2e R E it EUKIE 22,696 34,926
Total current assets MENEEBRE 2,749,012 1,480,609
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBERE
Other long term assets HEmREEE 9,266 =
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A RIRRE 82,600 82,600
Total non-current assets EREBEELT 91,866 82,600
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Senior notes BhRER 2,217,378 697,620
Payroll and welfare payable JERT T & RAEA 505 -
Other payables H At T R 29,689 =
Due to related companies FE{ B A R 5R0E 19,554 14,462
Total current liabilities mEN BB 2,267,126 712,082
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE 481,886 768,527
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ERABEE 573,752 851,127
NET ASSETS EERH 573,752 851,127
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners of the parent & A T H A FE{GHE
Share capital (note 33) A& A (B 5E33) 124,119 124,119
Treasury shares (note 33) EE AR (B 5 33) (7) 7)
Other reserves H b f#E 449,640 727,015
TOTAL EQUITY MR 573,752 851,127
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's other reserves is as follows:

45, XD B B AR R TR (2)

Capital Accumulated

reserve losses
BERGFE RiTEE
RMB'000 RMB'000

AREEFTT AREETFTT

Wi
ARAZ KA EES T -

Share Exchange
premium reserve Total
R3S E B 5 R @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBET T AREETTT ARETT

Balance at 31 December 2019 FA 20194 12 A31 H &

and 1 January 2020 20204F 1 A1 Ry &R 82,600 (19,680) 631,475 32,620 727,015
Loss for the year FRERE - (204,657) - = (204,657)
Dividend declared and BEEIRRERDIK
distributions - - (30,662) - (30,662)
Total comprehensive income FA2EK=ELRE
for the year - - - (42,056) (42,056)
Balance at 31 December 2020  $ 20204 12 A 31 HHY
1R 82,600 (224,337) 600,813 (9,436) 449,640
46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 46. REHREE

On 4 February 2021, B &R R, and Jiangsu Winfast Investment Holding
Group Co,, Ltd. entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to
which & 5 #R 3% agreed to acquire from Jiangsu Winfast a 25% equity
interest in Eastern Senior, at the consideration of RMB335,347,000.

On 17 March 2021, the Group issued a senior note of RMB1,072,137,000
(equivalent of US$165,000,000), which bears interest at a coupon rate of
11.80% per annum and is repayable by 16 March 2022.

Except as disclosed above, there was no material subsequent event
undertaken by the Group after 31 December 2020.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 29 March 2021.
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A R #1,072,137,000 7T ( #8 & 4 165,000,000
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
4 S 5 B R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,

AEENGARAETRFENEENEE A
ERIEERESHE(HaCTREERTHK
HRMEEHNEFHHDE > WER)HFIWT o

is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 20184 2017 4 2016 4F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETRE AREBTT
REVENUE Wik 10,679,634 9,092,472 5,070,094 4,675,644 2,502,980
Cost of sales FHERA (9,522,203) (7,613,165) (3,600,043) (3,892,117) (1,632,034)
Gross profit EF 1,157,431 1,479,307 1,470,051 783,527 870,946
Otherincome and gains ~ E A UZ A R UKzS 64,773 65,300 324,069 35,502 13,844
Selling and distribution HERDHAYS
expenses (258,419) (294,980) (237,271) (55,567) (66,703)
Administrative expenses T (226,693) (292,408) (331,536) (62,162) (46,787)
Other expenses HARZ (20,142) (22,828) (15,909) (33,058) (349)
Fair value gains on BENENNTE
investment properties g 125,670 106,300 14,803 21,028 23,267
Finance costs IR AN (202,330) (166,991) (254,007) (177,021) (136,015)
Share of profits and FEMR R T & B 18
losses of:
Joint ventures S (9,879) (15,440) (19,716) 11,725 3
Associates Al 43,988 81,369 111,373 71,007 2,295
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RREE AT E F 674,399 940,129 1,061,857 594,981 660,501
Income tax expenses et (288,255) (579,769) (566,535) (204,372) (290,837)
PROFITFORTHE YEAR FXj#F| 386,144 360,360 495,322 390,609 369,664
Attributable to: T & IEEG ¢
Owners of the parent ISY/NCIEZ RPN 182,627 150,309 442,440 420,219 348,144
Non-controlling interests  JEZE i 25 203,517 210,051 52,882 (29,610) 21,520
386,144 360,360 495,322 390,609 369,664
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A A

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

EE  BENFEZERER

INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R12A831H
2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 2018 4F 2017 4 2016 4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 44,629,444 34,522,634 25,539,575 15,904,697 14,047,568
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHEE (39,367,673)  (30495829)  (23,129,276)  (13,918252)  (12,214,118)
NON-CONTROLLING iR ER

INTERESTS (2,501,704) (1,517,987) (841,700) (655,586) (260,268)
2,760,067 2,508,818 1,568,599 1,330,859 1,573,182
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings when used herein:

"AGM"
[ SRBF RS

“Anglo Chinese”

"Articles” or “Articles of Association”

(AR sk [AEE =248

"ASP”
[FIEE]

"Audit Committee”

[EZEZEE]

“Board”

5=

"Board Committees” or “Committees”
[EEgZ8e | [ %ZEZET]
“Board Diversity Policy”
[EEe % bBUR ]

“CG Code”
[EEATA

“China” or “PRC"

[

“Company”

[AR7A]]

DEFINITIONS
B

RAFEHA - RXESBHED -
REREREFEFIATEE

TR

the annual general meeting to be held by the Company

ARBEERIT 2 BERBFERE

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited, a corporation licenced to carry out type 1 (dealing
in securities), type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO and being the compliance adviser of
the Company

ReMBERERAR  REBFLABKRIAIREFZ 1 R(EFRS)  F4HEGE
HFREER) FoRGIUBERERHER) RFIBRRHEEER) RRE RN
MOER - RARFNEREM

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

ARAZ AEERARI (EARHERT)

average selling price
FHEE

the audit committee under the Board
EEg T BEEREZES

the board of Directors

Exg

collectively the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, and the “Board Committee” or “Committee” means any of them

BERELEEE REZESRFMNZES2HBE MIZEFEELZE8g /K ZEE ] EH
REE—E

the board diversity policy as adopted by the Company
ARRRANEZTSZTCBR

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ETARAIP SR T FrE R E A T A

the People’s Republic of China, which for the sole purpose of this annual report, shall exclude
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and
Taiwan

REARAME  ERAFRNS

AN
=P

TEEEE  PEARAMBIRPIRFRITHRE K

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8 January 2018 and the Shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

RIMBEBRIERER AR - —KN2018F 1 AsBEREHST MR INEREER LD
Al RO AR AER T

RAERERARAT
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DEFINITIONS
=

“connected person”

[BAEAL]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)"
[T R ER

"Director(s)”

[E£]

“Dividend Policy”
[ SRR

"GFA"
[325EmETR

“Group”
[AREE

"Hotel”

[ &

"Hong Kong”
[&E]

"Hong Kong dollars”, “HKD" or “HKS”
[

“INED(s)"
(B IFATES]

“Inside Information Policy”
[AREBHER]

“LAT”
[+ 33 (ER ]

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”
[ B A
“Listing Rules”

[ R Al

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LA T &ANRE

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited
=5 F 4 - Silver Huang Holding Limited % Silver Vally Holding Limited

the director(s) of the Company

ARRIES

the dividend policy as adopted by the Company
AR BRI B

gross floor area

BEmE

the Company and its subsidiaries

ANRE N EERE]

Hangzhou Zhongdu Qingshan Wonderland Hotel
T R &R S LA B OB S

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BB RITTIR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BELEEBBTT

independent non-executive Director(s) of the Company

ARRREILIFAITES

the internal policy and procedures in relation to the handling of inside information as adopted
by the Company
AR B FTER NG BB IR N HH B ) A RRER A2

land appreciation tax under the laws of the PRC

REDERIE NE IR ER

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PR OB S P EAR £ T

the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange first
commence, being 6 March 2019

i ERARRBEREREE 2B » B12019F3 A6 H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

X FREZ EMAR A - BARERT - MRS A AR B
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“Memorandum” or “Memorandum

of Association”

[RHA] =k [HEERETR KM
“Model Code”
[E4E<F Al

“NED(s)"
[IFATESR]

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2R B2

“Nomination Policy”

[fRBBR ]

"Prospectus”

[HERER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FHZE2 ]

"RMB"
[ARE]

"SFO”
w7 R R RG]

“Shareholder(s)”
[AZ R

“Share(s)"
[ i1 |

”sqm"’

(3K

“Stock Exchange”

[ B <2 P
"Yincheng Real Estate”
SR 398 3h 2E

"Yincheng Real Estate Group”
SR 398 3t 72 5= 5

DEFINITIONS
B

the memorandum of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
KRR R BEERKM (KETRAERT)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules
EHRBIMES T FAE EM BT AERETESFR HOFEETE

non-executive Director(s) of the Company

ARABZIFMTES

the nomination committee under the Board

ExgTERE%8e

the nomination policy as adopted by the Company

RRRFRA 2 RBBR

the prospectus of the Company dated 22 February 2019
RNRABIEER2019F2 A2 A2 BRER

the remuneration committee under the Board

ExeTEFHEZES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

PEDEEEBARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FEEDIE S BEFLS M IRD (ETEER] ~ Mesi AR N E)

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EEHEST=PN

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company,
which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
AR BRAT FREE0.01 BT AR T E B I AEE 32 P R £ A BB AR

square metre

Tk

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEMERSHMBR AT

Yincheng Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.*, a joint stock company incorporated under the laws of
the PRC with limited liability
RPEEBRNHBR AR - —RBEPBEEREMAZORDFR QA

Yincheng Real Estate and its subsidiaries

R E KR E B AR

RARREBARAT
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“Yincheng Life Service”

Yincheng Life Service CO,, Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted

company with limited liability on 3 April 2019 and the shares of which are listed on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange

[ERIR A0 R 75 RWEEREERAT] -
A ERRRBRPAER EH

“Yincheng Life Service Group” Yincheng Life Service and/or

TR AR AR T 5 12
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its subsidiaries

R AEEIRYS R, E B AR
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